Scheme of Amalgamation of

Wipro Energy IT Services India Private Limited
(Transferor Company No: 1)

And

Wipro Technology Services Limited
(Transferor Company No: 2)

With

Wipro Limited
(Transferee Company)

And their respective Shareholders and creditors under
Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956

PREAMBLE

a. Tne Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of Wipro
Energy IT Services India Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 1)
and Wipro Technology Services Limuted (Transferor Company No. 2)
with Wipro Limited (Transferee Company) pursuant to Sections 391 to

394 of the Companics Act, 1956.

b. As on 31 March 2013 entire issued, subscribed and paid up share
capital of both the Transteror Companies are held by the Transferee
Company and its nominecs. Further, all the Companies are engaged in
business relating to IT and software sector. Thus the parent company
would like to integrate and consolidate its subsidiaries The

’ \qi‘rcumstances that have necessitated or [ustified the proposed Scheme

L .
4o and its main benefits are inter-alia, summarized as under:

o
'Q‘Y\} o . ) o ) )
got M/ o T achieve greater integration and greater financial strength and

"

B flexability, to maximize overall sharcholder value and improve the

competitive position of the combined entity

(iiy To achieve cost savings from more focused eoperational efforts,

3 rctionalization, standardization and sumplification of business processes,



(is1)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

{(vi1)

(vii)

productivity improvements and rationalization of administrative
expenses.

The amalgamation will increase competitiveness of the Transferee
Company since the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company
were operating in [T and software sector. The consolidation of activities
of the Transferor Comparues and the Transferee Company by way of an
amalgamation will lead to operational synergies, greater productivity
and economical operations for future growth of the Transferee

Company.

The amalgamation will provide for pooling of the managerial, technical
and financial resources of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee
Company which will help in increasing the competitiveness of the

Transferee Company.

The amalgamation will result in economy of scales, reduction in
overheads including administrative, managerial and other expenditure,
operational rationalization, organizational cfficiency, and optimal

utihization of resources.

The amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the
multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to
be carried out by both the Transferor Companies and the Transferee

Company.

The increased asset base of the Transferce Company would have better
financial viability and clearer focus, which would be in the interests of

all creditors, including the creditors of the Transferor Companies, if any.

The banks, creditors and financial mstitutions, if any, are not adversely

affected by the proposed amalgamation as their security 1s maintained.

For WIPRO L1 MITED,

(V. Rama~handee
Cuompaity Dui@rdiy



The Scheme of Amalgamation is divided into the following parts:

Part A - Definitions and Share capital

Part B - Transfer and Vesting of Undertaking of the Transferor
Companies with the Transferee Company

Part C- Accounting Treatment

Part D - Dissolution and General Terms and Conditions
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1.6

PART A - GENERAL

DEFINITION

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the

following shall have the meanings as provided herein:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory modification or

reenactiment thereof.

“Appointed Date” means the date from which this Scheme shall become
operative viz, 18t April 2013 or if the Boards of Directors of the
Transferor Companies and the Transferec Company require any other
date subsequent to 1%t Apri} 2013 and/or the Hon'ble High Court modity
the Appointed Date to such other date, then the same shall be the

Appointed Date.

“Court” mecans the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka or such other
Court / Tribunal empowered to sanction the Scheme as per the

provisions of the Act.

“Effective Date” mceans the date or last of the dates on whuch the certified
copy of the order of the Hon'ble High Court sanctioning this Scheme is
filed with the Registrar of Companics by the Transferee and the

Transferor Companices

“Scheme of Amalgamation” or “Scheme” or "The Scheme” or “This
Scheme” means this Scheme of Amalgamation in its present form or

with any modification(s) approved, imposed, or directed by the Court

“Transferee Company” means Wipro Limited, a company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 and having 1ts registered office at
Doddakannelil, Sarjapur Road, Bangalore - 560035.
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1.7 “Transferor Company No: 1”7 means Wipro Energy IT Services India
Private Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1456, and having its registered office at Doddakannelli, Sarjapur Road,
Bangalore - 560 035.

1.8  “Transferor Company No: 2”7 means Wipro Technology Services
Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and
having its registered offtice at Doddakannelli, Sarjapur Road, Bangalore -

560 035.

1.9  “Transferor Companies” means and refer to the Transferor Company

No: 1 and the Transferor Company No: 2 collectively.

1.10 “Undertaking” shall mean and include the whole of the undertaking of
the Transferor Companies, as a going concern, including their
businesses, all sccured and unsecured debts, liabilities, duties and
obligations and all the assets, properties, rights, titles and benefits,
whether movable or immovable, real or personal, in possession or
reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, tangible or intangible, present or
contingent and including but without being limited to land and building
(whether owned, leased, licensed), all fixed and movable plant and
machinery, vehicles, fixed asscts, work 1n progress, current assets,
investments, reserves, provisions, funds, licenses, registrations,
copyrights, patents, trade names, trademarks and other rights and
licenses in respect thercof, applications for copyrights, patents, trade
names, trademarks, leases, licenses, tenancy rights, premises, ownership

S e flats, hire purchase and lease arrangements, lending arrangements,
e _'benefits  of security arrangements, computers, office  cquipment,
‘ telephones,  telexes, facsimile  connections, internet connections,
V’ky communication facilities, cquipment and installations and utilities,
" clectricity, water and other scrvice connections, benefits of agreements,
.contracts and arrangements, powers, authorities, permits, allotments,
approvals, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, casements and all
sﬁ the right, title, interest, goodwill, benefit and advantage, deposits,

reserves, provisions, advances, receivables, deposits, funds, cash, bank
p ! ! ’



balances, accounts and all other rights, benefits of all agreements,
subsidies, grants, tax credits (including but not limited to credits in
respect of mcome tax, sales tax, value added tax, turnover tax, service
tax, etc), Software License, Domain / Websites ctc, in connection [/
relating to the Transferor Companies and other claims and powers, of
whatsoever nature and wheresocever situated belonging to or in the
possession of or granted in favour of or cnjoyed by the Transferor

Companices, as on the Appointed Date

111  All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant
or contrary to the context or meaniny thereof, have the same meaning as
ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and byelaws as the case may be, including any statutory

modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time

2. SHARE CAPITAL

2.1  The share capital of the Transferce Company as on 313t March 2013 was

as under
Authorized Capital Amount Rs.
265,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 2/- cach 530,00,00,000/ -

25(),00,000 - 10.25% Redeemable Cumulative

Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 25,00,00,000/ -
Total 555,00,00,000/ -
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital Amount Rs.

246,29,34,730 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up 492,58,69,460/ -

22  The share capital of the Transferor Company No. 1 as on 31+ of March
2013 was as under:

Authorized Capital Amount Rs,

35,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/ - each 3,50,00,000/-

1,50,000 - 10% Optionally Convertible Cumulative

Preference shares of Rs, 100/ - cach 1,50,00,000/ -

For WIPRO LIMiTID

Total 5,00,00,000/ -
(V. Ramech ;r,:m | Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital A TAE.m?_g\nt Rs.
Company secrainey Fgm6736 equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully pa}dfyb - 87,91,360/ -
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2.3 The share capital of the Transferor Company No 2 as on 31 of March

2013 was as under:

Authorized Capital Amount Rs.
5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 50,00,00,000/ -
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital Amount Rs.
5,92,84,680 equity shares of Rs. 10/- cach fully paid-up 39,28,46,800/ -

3. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

Tae Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any
modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the High Court of
Karnataka or any other appropriate authority shall be operative from the

Appointed Date but shall become effective on the Effective Date

PART B
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING
OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES WITH THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

4, TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

4.1  Subject to the provisions of this Scheme as specified hereinafter and with
etfect from the Appointed Date, the entire business and undertaking(s)
of the Transferor Companies including all the debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations, including thosc arising on account of taxation laws and

other allied laws, of the Transferor Companies of every description and

. . alsg including, without limitation, all the movable and immovable
For WIFLkO Lo-hv ot
properties and asscts (whether tangible or intangible) of the Transfercr

Nroamwerflompanies comprising, amongst others, all furniture and fixtures,

Cotnpely Qutlelary | . A
computers / data processing, office equipment, testing equipment,

o electrical installations, telephones, telex, facsimile and other

wo .

gL communication facilities and business licenses, permits, authorisations,
fon R
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or other mtellectual property nghts, proprietary right, title, interest,
contracts, consent, approvals and rights and powers of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever, privileges, liberties, easements,
advantages, benefits and approvals, shall, under the provisions of
Sections 391 to 394 of the Act, and pursuant to the orders of the High
Court sanctioning this Scheme and without further act, instrument or
deed, but subject to the charges affecting the same as on the Effective
Date, be transferred and/or deemed to be transferred to and vested in
the Transferee Company s0 as to become the properties, assets, nights,

business and undertaking(s) of the Transferee Company

42 With effect from the Appointed Date all debts, liabilities, duties and
obligations of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date
whether provided for or not in the books of account of the Transferor
Comparues and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise after the
Appointed Date but which relate to the period on or up to the day of the
Appointed Date shall be the debts, liabilitics, duties and obligations of
the Transferee Company including any encumbrance on the assets of the

Transferor Companies or on any income earned from those assets.

43  With effect from the Appointed Date, all inter-party transactions
between Lhe Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall

be considered as intra-party transactions for all purposcs.

44 With cffect from the Appointed Date, all the Loans, advances and other
obligations (including any guarantees, letters of credit, letters of comfort
or any other mstrument or arrangement which may give rise to a
contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or which may at any
time 1n future become due between the Transferor Companies and the
Transferce Company shall, ipso ficto, stand discharged and come to an

end and there shall be no liability in that behalf on any party and

" ["_ SRR ;r.';aiap;ibpriate effect shall be given m the books of accounts and records of

For WIP R
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loans, advances and other obligations with effect from the Appointed

Date,

45  All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens, if
any, as on the Appointed Date and created by the Transferor Companies
after the Appointed Date, over the assets comprised in the undertaking
or any part thereof transferred to the Transferce Company by virtue of
this Scheme and in so far as such securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens secure or relate to liabilities of the Transferor
Companies, the same shall, after the Effective Date, continue to relate
and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or
attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred to the
Transferce Company, and such securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets
of the Transferee Company, provided however that no encumbrances
shall have been created by any of the Transferor Companies over its
assets after the date of hiling of the Scheme without the prior written

consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

46  All the existing encumbrances over the assets and properties of the
Transferec Company or any part thereof which relate to the liabilities
and obligations of the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date
shall continue to relate only to such assects and propertics and shall not
extend or attach to any of the assets and properties of the Transferor
Companies transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company by

virtue of this Scheme.

17 It 1s expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or

FL{J’% ‘I condition of the habilities transferred to the Transforee Company is
or WI?RB—H-.\.;.{ D,
maodified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such

\
. Ram*/r amendment is required statutorily or by necessary implication.
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f,(‘\ 2 '4‘8 V\.'ith effect from the Appointed Date all statutory licences, permissions,

: ) approvals or conserits to carry on the operations of the Transferor
\x} Camparueq shall stand vested in or transferred to the Transterce



Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately
mutated by the statutory authonities concerned in favour of the
Transferec Company upon the vesting and transfer of the undertaking
of the Transferor Companies pursuant to this Scherne The benefit of all
statutory and regulatory permissions, factory licences, environmental
approvals and consents, sales tax registrations or other licences and
consents shall vest in and become available to the Transferee Company

pursuant to this Scheme.

49  The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee
Company, pursuant to and n accordance with this Scheme, shall take
place with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance

with Section 2(1B) of the Income- tax Act, 1961.

5. CONSIDERATION

51  The entire equity share capital of the Transferor Companies are held by
the Transferee Company and 1ts nominees. In other words the
Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee
Company. Accordingly, pursuant to this amalgamation, no shares of the
Transferee Company shall be allotted m respect of its holding in the
Transferor Companies. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire
share capital of the Transferor Compames shall be cancelled and

extinguished.

.U“l
N

The investments in the shares of the Transteror Companies, appearing in
the books of account of Transferee Company shall, without any further

act or deed, stand cancelled. .. .

6. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

6.1  Any suit, appeal or other proceedings of whatever nature by or against

e the Transferor Companies is pending as on the Appointed Date, the

;1::‘ 4!

mrrTT T et o oame shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially
For RO LIMITLI., ‘ _ ‘
affected by reason of or by anything contained in this Scheme, but the

. R_mwm;{ " said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be continued,&/
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6.2

71

72

'Scheme. b

prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as the
case may be, in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or
might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the

Transferor Companies as if this Scheme had not been made.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be
initiated or may be initiated against the Transferor Companies after the
Appointed Date, the Transferce Company shall be made party thereto
and any payment and expenses made thercto shall be the liability of the

Transteree Company.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds,
bonds, insurance, Letters of Intent, undertakings, arrangements, policies,
agreements and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature
pertaining to the Transferor Companies and to which the Transferor
Companies is a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective
Date, shall be in full force and effect against or in favour of the
Transferce Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or
against the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of
the Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company had been a party

thereto

The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and/or execute
deeds, writings or confirmations or enter into any tripartite
arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which the Transferor
Companies will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect
tc the provisions of this Scheme, if so required or becomes necessary.
Tihe Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execute
any such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of the Transferor
Companies and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the

part of the Transferor Companies to give effect to the provisions of this
-1 Hhe provisior

R A I [

For WIFRO LI’ i,
qQ\’J\/ '
(v. R:ermrh.‘.ém

Company Secretary



8. STAFF AND EMPLOYEES OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

81  On the Scheme taking effect as aforesaid, the employces, if any, of the
Transferor Campanices on the Effective Date shall be deemed to have
become the employces of the Transferce Company and their
employment with the Transferee Company shall be on the following

terms and conditions:

(i) The terms and conditions of service applicable to the employees shall
not be less favorable than those applicable to them as on the Effective

Date;

(1) The services of such cmployees shall not be treated as having been
broken or interrupted for the purpose of provident fund or gratuity or
otherwise and for all purposes will be reckoned from the date of their

appointment with the Transferor Companies; and

(i) The Transferce Company undertakes to continuc to abide by the
agreement/ settlement if any entered into by the Transferor Companies

with any of its employces, which is in force as on the Effective Date.

(a) It 1s expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective, the
provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or any other special
fund or trusts, if any, created or existing for the benefit of the staff,
workmen and employees of the Transferor Companies shall become
trusts / funds of the Transferce Company for all purposes whatsoever 1n
relation to the admirustration or operation of such fund or funds or in
relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund or funds

- m accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided n

‘or WIPRO LING tHdirespective trust deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights,

V \-‘,,,1// duties, powers and obligations of the Transferor Comparues in relation
‘[1”*:“')’;"‘;‘%'::_‘ :r‘vto such tund or funds shall become those of the Transferee Company.
The Trustees mcluding Board of Directors of the TRANSFEREE
COMPANY shall be entitled to adopt such course in this regard as may

be advised provided however that there shall be no discontinuation or



breakage in the service of the employee ot the Transferor Companies.

g, PAYMENT OF TAX

9.1  All taxes paid or payable by the Transferor Companies in respect of the
operations and/ or the profits before the Effective Date under Applicable
Law, shall be on account of the Transferee Company and, in so far 1t
relates to the tax payment (whether by way of deduction at source,
advance tax or otherwise howsocver) by the Transferor Companies in
respect of the profits made from and after the Appointed Date, the same
shall be deemed to be the tax paid by the Transferee Company, and

shall, in all proccedings, be dealt with accordingly.

PART C
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT FOR THE AMALGAMATION IN THE
BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

10. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall follow
the accounting prescribed under Accounting Standard 14 and other
Accounting Standards as applicable, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and notified by the National Advisory Committee
on  Accounting Standards, Mimstry of Corporate Affairs vide
Notification No G S R. 73%(E) dated 07.12.2006, as amended from time

to time.

11. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

11.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the
Transferor Companies shall stand combined with the authorized share
capital of the Transterce Company. Filing fees and stamp duty, if any,
paid by the Transferor Companies on its authorized share capital, shall
be deemed to have been so paid by the Transferee Company on the
combined authorized Share capital and accordingly, the Transterce
Company shall not be required to pay any fee/ stamp duty for its

increased authorized share capital. Wg,()



112 ‘Clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee
Company shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and
stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 94 to 97 and
other applicable provisions of the Act by deleting the existing Clause

and replacing it by the following'

“The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 610,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Six Hundred and Ten Crore Only) divided into 291,75,00,000
(two hundred and ninety one croves seventy five lakhs) Equity Shares of
Rs. 2 /- (Rupees two only) each, 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty lakhs)
preference shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten only) each and 1,50,000 (One
lakh Fifty Thousand) 10% optionally convertible Cumulative Preference
shares of Rs. 100/- each, with power to increase and reduce or
consolidate or sub-divide the capital of the Company and to divide the
shares in the Capital for the time being into several classes and to
attach thereto respectively such preferential, deferred, qualified or
special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company for the time
being and to verify, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may for the time being be permitted by the
Act or provided by the Articles of Association of the Company for the

time being.”

113 ‘Clausc 4’ of the Articles of Association of the Transferce Company shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered,

modified and amended pursuant to Sections 94 to 97 and other

Tl _e;pplicable provisions of the Act by deleting the existing Clause and

b ;‘\f;' o
LA replacing it by the following:
1“r“'1 li"',_\r", o T

- “The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 610,00,00,000/-

¥ v ,""‘"—Pn v .
{(\i i\' .. ... (Rupees Six Hundred and Ten Crore Only) divided into 291,75,00,000
(two hundred and ninety one crores seventy five lakhs) Equity Shares of
Rs. 2 /- (Rupees two only) each, 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty lakhs) "

preference shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten only) each and 1,50,000 (One

N



11.4

12.

12.1

12.2

lakh Fifty Thousand) 10% optionally convertible Cumulative Preference
shares of Rs. 100/- each subject to being increased as hereinafter
provided and in accordance with the Regulations of the Company and
the legislative provisions for the tie being in force. Subject to the
provisions of the said Act, the shares in the capital of the company for
the time being whether original or increased or reduced niay be divided
into classes, with any preferential qualified or other rights, privileges,
conditions or restrictions attached thereto, whether in regard to

dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwise.

If and whenever the capital of the Company is divided into shares of
different class, the rights of any such class may be varied, modified,
affected, extended, abrogated or surrendered as provided by the said Act
or by Articles of Association or by the terms of issue, but not further or

otherwise,”

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferce
Company under sections 391 and 394 of the Act, whether at a meeting or
otherwise, shall be deemed to have the approval under sections 16, 31,
94, 97 and other applicable provisions of the Act and any other consents

and approvals required in this regard

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN APPOINTED DATE AND EFFECTIVE
DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to the Effective Date:

The Transteror Companies shall carry on and be deemed to have carried
on their business and activities and shall be deemed to have held and
stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of their entire
businesses and undertakings for and on account of and in trust for the

Transferee Company;

The Transferor Companies shall carry on its business and activities in
the ordinary course of business with reasonable diligence and business

prudence;



123

12.4

13.

All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor
Companies or expenditure or losses arising or incurred by the
Transferor Companies shall for all purposes be treated and deemed to
be and accrue as the profits or income or expenditure or losses (as the

case may be) of the Transferce Company; and

The Transferce Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the
Scheme, to apply to the Central Government and all other agencies,
departments and authorities concerned as are necessary under any law
for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee
Company may require to carry on the business of the Transferor

Companics

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and labilities under clause 4 above and the
continuance of proceedings by or against Transferor Companies under
clause 6 above shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already
concluded by Transferor Companies on or after the Appomnted Date till
the Effective Date, to the end and intent that Transferee Company
accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by
Transferor Companies in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf
of itself [ .
N T
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PARTD

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES AND THE
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS SCHEME

14. DISSOLUTION _OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES WITHOUT
WINDING UP

On the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Companies shall,
without any further act or deed, stand dissolved without winding up in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thercunder.

15. APPLICATION TO THE HIGH COURT OR SUCH OTHER
APPROPRIATE AUTHORITY

The Transferor Companies shall with all reasonable dispatch make
Applications/ petitions to the High Court under Section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 for sanctioning this Scheme of Amalgamation.
Since the Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Transferee Company, there is no need for filing application/ petition by

the Transferee Company for sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation

16. MODIFICATIONS f AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

16.1 The Transteror Companies (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee
Company (by its Board of Directors) in their full and absolute discretion
may assent to any modification(s) or amendment(s) in this Scheme
which the High Court or such other appropriate authority and/or any
other authoritics may deem fit to direct or impose or which may

otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question

For WIPRO Lt T doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing and/or carrying

\&\' / ' out the Scheme. Further, the Transfcror Companies (by its Board of

Y. Ram s ‘mndr'm)
Cuuw.sw Secrstary Du‘ectors) the Transferee Company (by 1ts Board of Directors) and after
I ~ thc dissolution of the Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company

ll
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17.

17.1

steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or
proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts,
difficultics or questions whether by reason of any orders of the High
Court or such other appropriate authority or of any directive or orders
of any other authoritics or otherwise howsoever arising out of, under or
by virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters concerning or connected

therewith

The Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies hereby authorize
the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company or any committee
thereof to give assent to any modification(s) or amendment(s) in the
Scheme which may be considered necessary or desirable for any reason
whatsoever and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any
modification to the Scheme involving withdrawal of any of the parties to
the Scheme at any tuime and for any rcason whatsoever, the
implementation of the Scheme shall not get adversely affected as a result
of acceptance of any such modification by the Beard of Directors of the
Transferee Company and the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company be and 1s hereby authorized by the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Comparues to take such steps and to do all acts, Jeeds and
things as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this
Scheme and to resolve any doubt, difficulties or questions howsoever
arising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters

concerning or connected therewith,

CONDITIONALITY OF SCHEME

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject tor

Approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective
members and creditors of the Transferor Companies as may be directed

by High Court;

172 Sanctions and Orders under the provisions of Section 391 read with e
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18.

18.1

Pkl

.
Cortlnage din,

This Scheme although to come into operation from the Appointed Date,
shall not become effective till the date on which necessary certified /
authenticated copies of orders under Sections 391 to 394 of the Act shall
be duly tiled with the Registrar of Companies Karnataka by the

Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company

REVOCATION AND SEVERABILITY

Ir the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in
Clause 16 and 17 above not being obtained and/or complied with
and/or satisfied and/or this Scheme not being sanctioned by the High
Court or such other appropriate authority and/or order or orders not
being passed as aforesaid before 31 December 2014 or such other date
as may be mutually agreed upon by the respective Board of Directors of
the Transferor Comparues and the Transferce Company who are hereby
empowered and authorised to agree to and extend the aforesaid period
from time to time without any limitations in excrcise of their powers
through and by their respective delegate(s), this Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and in that event, no rights and
habilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the
Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company or their respective
shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and
except m respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which
has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and whuch shall be governed and
be prescrved or worked out in accordance with the applicable law and
in such case, each Company shall bear its own costs unless otherwise

mut:uaily agreed Further, the Board of Directors of the Transferor

Wompaniew and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to revoke,

« feancel and declare the Scheme of no effect if such Board of Directors are

ot the view that the coming into effect of the Scheme in terms ot the
provisions of this Scheme or filing of the drawn up orders with any

authority could have adverse implication on all/any of the company



18.2

18.3

19.

[f any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any court of
competent jurisdiction, or unenforceable under present or future laws,
then it is the intention of the partics that such part shall be severable
from the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to
become materially adverse to any party, in which case the parties shall
attempt to bring about a muodification in the Scheme, as will best
preserve for the parties the benefits and obligations of the Scheme,

including but not limited to such part.

The Scheme may be withdrawn by the Board of Directors of Transferor
Companies and Transferee Company only by mutual consent and only
if such Boards of Directors jointly agree that the coming into effect of the
Scheme could have adverse implication on both the Transferor

Companies and Transferce Company

EXPENSES CONNECTED WITH THE SCHEME

All costs, charges, taxes including duties (including the stamp duty, if
any, applicable in relation to this Scheme), levies and all other expenses,
if anv (save as expressly otherwise agreed) of the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in carrying out

and implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be

borne and paid by the Transferee Company. ol L
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WIPRC LIMITED
Pre and Post Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2013 under Clause 35 of the Listing Agreement - Scheme of Amalgamation of

Wipre Energy IT Services India Private Limited and Wipro Technology Services Limited with Wipre Limited.

Aot vy -

PRE AND POST SHAREHOLDING PATTERN WILL BE SAME AS THE SCHEME DOES NOT HAVE IMPACT ON SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF WIPRO LIMATED.

{1){a) STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN IN CLAUSE-35

NAME OF THE COMPANY:WIPRO LIMITED

SCRIP CODE: 507685 Name of the Scrip:
Class of Security:
QUARTER ENDED: 31/03/2013

Partly paid-up shares

No. of partly paid-up shares

As a % of total no. of partly paid-up
shares

As a % of total no. of shares of the
Company

Held by promoter/promoter group o 0 0
Held by Public 0 0 0
Total: 0 0 0

Outstanding convertible securities

No of outstanding securities

As a % of total no of outstanding
converiible securities

As a % of total no. of shares of the
Company assuming full conversion of
the convertible securities

Held by promoter/promoter group 0 0] o

Held by Public 0 0 0

Total: 0 0 0
As a % of total no. of shares of the
Company, assuming full conversion

Warrants: No. of warrants As a % of total no of warrants of warrants

Held by promoter/promoter group 0 0 0

Held by Public 0 D 0

Total: 0 0 0

Total paid-up capital of the P el

Company, assuming full .ccnversmn FO;—W"I—P-R&:O“ LIMITED.

of warrants and convertible

securities 2462934730 0 M / 100.00

{V. Ramachandrn,
Cumpany Sccre.ary
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STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF LOCKED-IN SHARES"

SLNO NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER CAT. CODE NO OF SHARES  (PERCENTAGE
NIL NIL 0 0
TOTAL : 0 ¢

4

Cerufied true CORY

Fog WIPRO LIMITED:




() a}

STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS [DRS)

Number of outstanding

Number of shares
underlying cutstanding

Shares underlying outstanding DRs
as a percentage of total number of
shares {i.e., Grand Tota! (A)+(B}+{C}
indicated in Statement at Para{l}{(a)

Sr.No. |Type of outstanding DR {ADRs,GDRs,SDRs,etc.) |DRs DRs above}
1P MORGAN CHASE BANK, NA 42759035 42759035 174
TOTAL : 42759035 42759035 1.74

P
Cenified true copy
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o)

Statement showing Holding of Depository Receipts (DRs}, where underlying shares hefd by “Promoter/Promoter group” are in excess of 1% of the total

number shares.

Type of Number of Shares underlying outstanding DRs as a
cutstanding DR [shares percentage of total number of shares {Le.,
Sr.No. N f the DR Hold
r-No ame ol the oider (ADRs,GDRs, SDRs, lunderlying Grand Total (A}+(8)+{C) indicated in
etc.) autstanding DRs |Statement at para{l}{a)} above}
TOTAL : 0 0
Note,

* Dut of 11406331 equity shares 1{A) (C) Mr Azim Premy diclaims disclaims beneficial ownership of 10843333 shares held by M/s Anm Premy Foundation (1}

Pvt Lid

*= Mr Azim Premp also disclaims beneficial ownership of 490714120 shares held by M/fs Azim Premp Trust

#3% 13226600 Equity Shares are held by M/s Equity Reward Trust shows under the head “Trust”

**++ The sharcholdings comprises of 35599 shares held by Three {3) Non-Executive Directors & Relatives and 132762 shares held by Two(2) Executive

Director

These Directors are not being promater Directors and in as much as they do not exercise any significant Control over the company, they are classified under

"Any other” Category

Certified true copy
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. PKFSRIDHAR & SANTHANAM m
. Chartered Accountants (:7

{MDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Members of Wipro Energy IT Services India Private Limited
Report an the Financlal Statements

We have autited the accompanying financial slatements of Wipro Energy IT Services India Private Limited {"the
Company®), which comprise the Balance Sheat es at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loas and Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and & summary of signiicant accounting policies and other explanatory
mformation

Managemant's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Managemen! 18 respansible for the preperation of lhese financial statements thal give a tue and fair view of the
financial posilon, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards
referred to m sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act™). This reaspensiblity includee the
dasign, mplemantation and mamtenance of intesnal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
slatements that give a true and falr view and are free from materlal misstalerment, whethar dus to fraud or smor

Auditor's Responsibillty

Qur responsibility is to exprass an oplnion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted cur sudit In
accordance with the Standards on Auditing 1ssued by the Instiiute of Charerad Accountants of inda Those Standards
requirg thet we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain resscnable assurance about
whethar the financial statements ara frae from material rmisstatement An audit involves performing procedures to cblain
Budlt evidence about the amounts and thaclosures in the linancial statements The procedures selected depend on the
guditor's |udgment, Including the assessment of the nsks of matenal migstalament of the finangial stalements, whether
due to fraud or error In making those risk aasessments, the auditor considers intarnal control relevant to the Company's
preparaten and fair presentation of the fingnckal statemants in order o design audit procedures that ars appropnate in
the cireumstances An audit elso includes evalusting the approprisleness of accounting policles vysed and the
raasonableness of the agcounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presantation of ine
firancial sialements We belisve tha! the audit evidence we have oblained |s sufficiant and eppropnate to provide a
basls for our audd opinoa .

Opinion

In pur gpinion and to the bast of our infarmation and according 1o the explanationg givan to us, the financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a trua and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles ganerally accepted In Indra

{a) in the casa of the Balance Sheet, of the atate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013,
(b) 1n the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date, and
{c) in the case of tha Cash Flow Statemant, of the cash flows for the yeer ended on that date

Tod 91 80 25600843 = Fax +B1 B0 23480883 « www pichndu.in ) ~
PKF SRIDHAR & BANTHARAM * T8 & T3 Gum Maza + 68 Infaniry Road « Bangaiore + 580 001 ety -t



Raport on Other Legal and Regulatory Reoguirements

1 As required by ths Companies (Auditor's Report} Qrder, 2003 ("the Ordar’) 1esued by tha Cantral Government of
Inds i terme of sub-section (4A} of section 227 of the Act, we gve in the Annexure a staiement on the matters
specified In paragraphe 4 snd $ of the Crder.

2 As required by saction 227(3) of the Agt, we rapaort that'

(a) Wa have obtained 2l tha Information and explanatons wnch to the best of our knowledge end belief were
necessary for the purpose of our aud,

(b} In our apinion proper baoks of account as requirad by law have been kept by the Company 30 far as appears from
our examinatan of those baoks,

{¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Proft and Loss and Cash Fiow Statement dealt with by this Repart are in
agreemant with the books of account;

() In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Stetement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Siatement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in subsection {3C) of sacticn 211 of the Companies Act, 1956,

(e) On the hesis of writlen representations recetved from the directors as an March 31, 2013, and taken on recard by
the Board of Direciors, nona of the directors s disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appownted as a directar in
terms of clavse () of sub-section {1) of secton 274 of the Companies Act, 1858

Far PKF Sridhar & Santhanam
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reglstration Number 0039905

Sesthalakshml M Y%
Partner
Membership Number 208545
Place: Bangalore

Date: +6§-HAY~2013



ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN THE INDEPENDEN ITORS' REPORT TQO THE MEMBER;
WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIM|TED ON THE ACCOLUNTS YEARE
31 TMARCH 2013

Having regard lo the nature of Company's businass/activiliesiresults for the year, clauses (n) and (xill), of peregraph
4 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO), 2003 are not applicatle lo the company

(i) In respect of its fixed assets.

8 lhe company Is maintaining proper records showing full perticulers, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed agsels,

b according to the Information end explanation given to us, the Company has e programma of physicafly
verifying all Hs fixed assels once in every accounting period of two years, which in our oplnion s
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of ita business

¢ the fixed sssets disposed off dunng the year, in our oplnion do nol constilute B substeniial part of the fixed
asset of the company and such disposal has, in our opinion not affected the golng concemn status of the
Company

(11} The Company has nasther granted nor taken any loans, secured or ungecured to/from companias,
firms or other parties covered In the register maintained under section 301 of the Act

(i} n our apinion and according to the nformation and explanahon provided to us, thera is an adequate
intarnal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of it business, for
the purchase of fixed asssts and for the ssle of services The company's operations do not plve rise to
purchase of Inventory or gale of goods Ouring the course of audil, we have not observed sny major
weaknesses in [nternal control syglem

{1v) in gur oplnfon snd aceording 1o the Infarmation and explanauion provided lo us, thare are no transactions
ol purchase of goods and matenals and sale of geots and services made in pursuance of contracts or
arrangements entered In the register mainigined under sechon 301 of the Companies Act, 1856 and
aggregating during tha period to Rs 600,000 ur more in respect of each party

(v} In our opinlen and according to the information end explanation proviged to us, the Company has not
accepled depusits from (he pubfic dunng the year. Thesefore the provisions of clause {vi) of the paragragh 4
of the CARQ ara not applicable 1c tha company.

(wi} In gur opinion, Lhe Internal awdit functien carried out dunng the year by a firm of Chartered Accountants
appoinied by the Management have been commensurate with s size and nature of its business.

(W) According to the Information and explanestion provided to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
mantenance of cost records under clause {d) of sub-section (1) of Saction 200 of the Companies Act, 1858 for
the Company

(vit)  According to the information and explanation provided to us and records of the company examined by us,

{a) The Gompany has been generally regular in deposiling undisputed statulory dues including Provident
Fund, tnvestor Education and Protection Fund, Employeas’ Siate Insurance, income-tax, Sales-tax,




()

=)

()

{xit}

(=1}

{xiv)

Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duly, Service lax, cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropnate authorities end thare are no undisputed emount payable n respect of thesa dugs which
have remgined outslanding as al the Jast day of tha financial year congatned for a periad of maore than
six months frem the data they became payable.

(&) There was no undisputed dues in respect of Providant Fund, Incoma Tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax,
Employee Stata insurance, Custom duty, Excise duty, Sarvice tax, cess which have nol been
deposited on account of any dispule.

{e) Detais of dues of income Tax which has nol been deposited as on 31" Margh 2013 on sccount of
dispuie are glven below

S # | Assessment Year Amount {Rs Lacs) | Authority

1 2009-10 518 78 | Order passed by Asst Commissionar,
filed with Disputs Resolution Panel

2 2008-08 540 88 | Order passed by Asst. Commissioner,
pending with |TAT

a 2008-09 8 80 | Order passed by AQ, Rectfication
application pending with IT__

4 2008-08 108 78 | Order passed by Depuly Director,
pending with ITAT

5 2007-08 2522 { Order passad by AQO pending with
CIT{Appeals)

The Campany does not have accumulated losses. The Company has not incurred cash loss duning the
financial year covered by our audd and the immaediatsly pracading financial year.

in o1r opinion and according to 1he infarmation and explanation provided te us, the Company has not
takan any loans from the financial nshtutions or banks or issued any debentures,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanatian pravided to us, the company has net
granted loans and advances on tha basis of secunty by way of pledge of shares, debeniures and other
saci, ritlas

In our apinion and according to lhe information and explanation provided o us, the company 18 not
dealing or trading in shares, sscurlies, debentures and other Investmants. Therefore the provisions of
clause {xiv) of paragraph 4 of CARQ era not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation providad fo us, tha company has nol
given any guaraniee for lcans taken by others from bank or financial Institutions,

In cur opinion and according to the information and axplanalion provided 1o us, the company has not
taken any lerm loan




{xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanetion provided to us and on axamination of the
Tinancial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-iarm basls hava not been used for
long term investment and vice versa

(xvl)  According to the Information and explanation providad to us, during the period covered under sudi, the
company hes not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the
Register maintained under section 301 of the Acl

(xvnn) According to the informatian and explanation provided io us, the company has not issued any secured
debentures

{xvitly During the year coverad by our audit raport, (he management has not raised money by public issus

(xix) To the bes! of our knowledge and belief and according to informaetion and explanation provided to us, na
fraud on/by the Company has been noticad or reported during the ysar

For PKF Sridher & Santhanam
Charered Accouniants
Firm's Regn. No . 003880S ... . -~

Bk A o)

A ‘!
M. Seethalakshmi A
Pannar N o
Memn. No. 0208545 . .~

Piace Bangalore
Date |5 - HRY ~20L3




WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly SAIC Indis Private Limited)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT
Mareh 31,
Notes 2013 2012
Rupcey Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholder’s funds
Share Capital , l 8,791,360 8,791,360
Reserves and Surplus . 4 438,093,289 166,243 6535
446,884,649 375,035,015
Non- current liabillties
Long-ierm Provisions 5 19,149,243 20,458 453
19,145,243 20,458,45]
Current Liabilities
Trade payables . . 8 424,771,584 99,048,363
Othe: current hiabilities ... ? 51,937,635 58,792,699
Short lerm provisions e B 3,608,925 5,504,032
490,318,144 163,345,094
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES ....cocciiiiniis 956,152,036 543,838,562
ASSETS
Non-curreat asseis
Fixed assets
Tangible assets g 14,658,214 17,983,230
intangible assets ... . ¢ 3,599,339 11,531,099
Work i progress . ... .. 9 - 1,503,358
Deferred tax assets {net) 21 17,638,818 16,870,039
Long-term oans end advances 10 114,944,190 40,730,141
150,840,581 88,617,867
Currenl assels
Trade recervabies il 198,222,755 210,227,499
Cash nnd bank balances . . 12 331,953,615 176,946,859
Short-term loans and advances e 13 46,737,643 68,257,516
QOther current assets 14 28,597,422 14,788 821
805,511,455 470,220,695
TOTAL ASSETS. ivvs viiviiimmnisnnnninianiisniisssian 956,352,036 558,418,562

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

Ag per our report sltached

Jor PKF Srdhar & Santhanam
Chartered A ccauntants

Firm's Registration Ng, 0039905
-\W

M.SEETHAL AKSHMI
Partner
Membershin No 0208545

Bangalore

MY IE} Jol3

For and an behalf of the Board of Direciors

ot L

NAVNEET KHANDELWAL
Director

A

Directar

SUBRAMANIAN LAKSHMANAN



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Farmerly SAIC India Private Limited)

OF PROFIT A FOR YEAR A H 31
March 31,
Notes 1013 2012
Rupees Rupers

REVENUE
Revenue from
operalians ,. 15 734,363,393 781,394,688
Olhc; lﬂCOﬂK‘ ,,,,,,,,, . - . 16 ]0,9]9.029 15,145&
Totsl Revenue .......... 765,282,422 796,539,391
EXPENSES
Smployee benefite expense ... . . 17 280,325,319 422,435,018
Depreciation and aMoTHZalion EXPense . . v v oo 9 23,085,017 24,828,744
{ther expense T e 18 358,191,251 218,983,602
Toral EXPERSE .ovvvervevivrisnssrsrassnsnnsns 661,801,587 666,247,364
Profit before tax . 103,480,835 130,292,527
TAX EXPENSES
Current tax 32,400,000 37,900,000
Deferred tax | . . 21 (768,799) 5,449 057
Net Profit . e e 71,849,634 86,943,470
Earnings per equlty share [Refer note 25]
(Equrty shares of par value 10/ each)

Basic e . R Ve 8173 93.90

Dilwted, .+ oiviiveer e , e e e 81.73 98 90

The Notes referred to above form an integral pant of the Profit and Loss Account

As per our report attached

Jor PKF Sridhar & Santhanem
Chartered Accownianis
Firm's Regutratron No 0039905

M. SEETHALAKSHMI
FPartner
Membership No 0208543

Bangeiore

May 1§ 2013

For ang on bohalf of the Board of Ditectors

L S

»

NAVNEE ANDELWAL  SUBRAMANIAN LAKSHMANAN

Director Dhrectar



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly SAIC India Privete Limited)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

March 31,
2013 012
Rupees Rupees
A. Cash flows from operating actvities:
Profil before
tax. L - . 103,480,815 130,292,527
Adfustments
Depreciation and amorttzation . . - . \ e 23,085,017 24,828,744
Dividend finierest,net . . . . . . .. C e e e e {10,615,822) (4,052,704)
Gamonsaleof fxedassets ... . ... o e, . (1,884,825 3,359,062
Working capital changas :
Increase / (deerease) intrade payables oo v oo L 325,723,221 50,681,179
Increase / {(decrease) in long-lerm provisions .. . {1,309.210) (16,246,036)
[ncrease / {decrease} in shori-term provisions . e (1,395,107 {1,305,651)
[nerease / (decroase) in other current liabilitigs, . e 3,144,935 22,516,316
increase / {decrease) in long-term loans & advances.. . - (199,024)
(Increase) / decrease 1n trade receivables. e C (187,995,258) 18,781,501
(Increase) / decrease in short-term loans & advances. . . 21,519.873 (11,497,418}
(Increase) / decremse 1y other current nssets,. .. .. e e (13,808,601} 17,262,033
Net cash gencrated from / (used in) operations......cooiieeiin ciriennis 259,445,061 234,460,529
Direct laxes (panl)/refund, net. . (106,614,049 {81,601,23%)
Net cash generated by / (used in) operating ncrivitm ......... reraaenaes 152,831,012 152,849,250
B. Cash flows from Investing activitles;
Acquisition of fixed assets (including capnal advances, mlanglb]e as5et8
and CWIP } .
(10,522,210 (18,180,462)
Proceeds from. sale of fixed assels e e . 2,082,155 79,145
Dividend / intscest income receaved .. . . ... .. . . Lo 10,615,822 4,052,704
2,175,764 {14,248.611)
C. Cash flows from firancing activities:
Net cash used In flnancing activities.....ccivinniniiininian serrernran - .
Net {decrease} / tncrease in cash and cash equivalents during the peniod 155,006,776 138,610,677
Cesh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period . - 176,946,859 38,336,182
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the perlod .........00.0. oe 331,983,635 176,946,859

§ =



March 31,

013 2012

’ Rupecs Rupees
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Belances with banks 1 current secount, .. . Ge e (47,43R) (82,050)
Balances with banks in deposit accounts... ... . - - 332,041,073 177,028,909
Total Cash and cash equivaleuts ..o seserae 311,953,638 176,946,859

As per our report attached For and un behaif of the Board of Directors

Jfor PKF Sridhar & Santhanam

Chartered Accountanits

Firm's Registraiton No 0039908 )‘ .

M, SEETHALAKSHMI NAVNEET KHANDELWAL  SUBRAMANIAN LA KSHMANAN

Partrer Director Director

Mcmbership No, 0208445

Bangalore

May LB 2013



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES [NDIA PRIWATE LIMITED
(Formerly SAIC [ndie Private Limited)

NOTES FQRMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FN

Backgreund
WIPRO Encigy IT Services India Private Limited ("the Company') was incorporated on 27 March, 1996 and is a subsidiary of Wipra

Limined

‘The Company mainly provides lcchmcal services to 1ts Parent, other group companies on 8 'cost plus markup’, and to ather parfies 1n
accordance with agreements entered

Significant Aceounting Palicles

The finarcial staiaments are prepared under the hustorical cost convention, on the sccrual basis of sccounting and in accordance wilh
the Geneally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘GAAP'} in India and comply with the Accounting Standards preacnbed by the
Companizs {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, to the extent applicable and in accecdanca with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the Company The significant accounting policies are a3 follows,

[ 8

Lie of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company 1o make ¢stimatos and assumplions that
aTect the reporied balances of assets and liabilines and disclosures refateng to the contingent linbulities aa as the date of the
financial stutements and reported amounts of income and eapenses dunng the penod Example of such estimates include
provisiens for doubtful debts, provision for income tuxes and the wseful lives of fixed asscts and intangbie assets
Contingencies are recorded when 1t is probable that a habrhty will be incurred, and the amount can be reasanably estimated,
Actua) results could differ from such estimates

Depreciation and amortzation
The Company has provaded fur depreciation veing straight ine method | an the ratey specified 10 Schedule X1V to

the Companies Acl, 1956, cacept in the cases of the fallowing aasets, which are deprecisied based on estimated
useful Ife, which 18 gher than the mtes specafied n Schedule X1V

Partculan Estimzied vaeful

Life In yeary

Cemputers and Computet Software 2-7
Furmture and fittings 5-6
Electrical 1astallations 5
Office equipment 5

Assews costing indmidually Rs 5,000 or bess are depreciated nt 100% over 8 pertod of ong year

Revenue recognitlon

i Reveoue fram software development on fixed price contracts 15 recogmsed according t the mulestane achieved as
specified 1n the contract, and 18 adjusied on the “proportionate completan’ mathod based on the work completed.

n Revenue comprising techrical services rendered to the Parent and other group companmies 1 recognised on delivery off
services to the custormers and is accounted for on ‘Cost Plus' basie m sccordanee with the contracts antered into with the

Parent nnd other group companizs

m On tune and material contracts, revenue 13 fecognised based on ime apent a5 per the 1¢rms of the specific contracts,

d_



Forelgn currency transactions

Foreign sxchange trarsachons ere recorded at the rates of exchange preveiling on the date of the Tansaction, Realised grins
and losses on Foreign exchange ransuctions during the year are recognised 10 the profit end lass account. Foreign corrency
gszets and habililies denominated in foreign currencics, as a1 the yesr end are translated into rupees 81 the year cnd retes and
resultant gains/losses on foreign exchange translatons are recognised in the profit and loss sccount,

In case of forward comtracts for forugn exchange, the difference berwoen the forwerd rate and the exchange tate #f the date
of the transaction are recogmsed over the iufe of the contract

Leasesr

l.  Qperating Lense

Lesses where the lessor effectively retains substantially sll the rushs and benefits of pwnerstisp of the leased zssct ave
¢lasuified s operating leases Operating lease charges are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss accounton s
straight-ling baais over the lease erm,

I, Finanrec Lewse

Leases under which the Company assumes subsiantially all the nisks snd rewards of ownerstup are clasnificd as finance
leases, The tower of fair value of asset and present vaiue of minimum lease rontals s capitalised =y fixgd mssets with
corresponding amount shown us lease Bsabihty The prinelpal component n the lease renuals 13 adjusted agamnst the
\ease lability and 1nterest camponenl 1 charged to profit and loss account

Iacome taxes

Income tax compnses current t@x end deferred ax Income tax is determmined 1 accordance with the provinons of the
Income tax Act, 1961

Beferred 1ax asscts #nd Liabiles are rocogmised for the fiture s consequences of timing dufferences, being the differences
between taxable income and accountng income that onginate {n one penod and ere capable of reveraal m one of more
subscquent penads, subject to the consideralion of prudence Deferred tax assets and liabilitics sre measured using the 1ax
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Employee benellts

L $hort-term employee benefits

The undiscounted smount of shor-ierm cmployee benefits expected 1o be pard m exchenge of services renderid by
employees 13 recogmsed during the penad when ths employce renders the services These benefits include salaries,
wages, bonus and performance (ncentives

i, Post-employment beneflt plans

The Compiny's employee's provident fund scheme is a defined contribution plan The Company's contribubon
paid/payable under the scheme ts recognised as an cxpense in the profit and loss sccount during the penod 1 which the
employee renders the related service,

The Company's gretuity 18 defined benefit plan, The present value of the obhgation under such deﬁneq benefit plan is
detervuned based s actusnel valustion umng the prajected unit eredit method, which recognises each period of service 43
giving Tise 10 sddinonal wnit of employee benefit entitiemnent ard measuses each unit scparetely to buald up the final
obhgation The obligation s measured at the present value of the esumated furure cash flaws The discount rete used for
determining the present value of the ohhgation under defined benefit plans, 18 based on the market yields on government
securities 8s at the halance sheet date Actuaniel gains and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss nccount

The Company has aleg laken the group policy with Life Insurance Compatauon of Indis (Ll(?) 1o meet 113 obhigation
towerds gretuity, Lisbilicy with respect to the grannty plan 15 determmed based on un actuarisl vafuanion done by an
independent actuary st the yesr end and any differential hetween the fund amaunt a5 per LIC and the actuarial valuation is

charged 10 revenue

K L



Benefits compnsing compensated ebsences canshitute other lung lert employee benefits, The hability for compensated
absences 15 provided on the basts of an actuanal valuahan done by an independent actuary at the year end, Actuanal gains
and losses are recognised wnmediately m the profit and loss account,

. Errnlngs per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted canmings per equity share 1n accordance with Accounting Standard 20, Esmings Per
Share Basic earnings per equity share have been compuied by dividing net profit after 1ax by the weighted sverage number
of equity shares outstarding for the year

Dhluted samings per equity share have bean compmied nung the weighted average number of équity shares and dilulive
potential equity shares oulstanding dunng the year,

i I'rovisions and contingencies

4 provision 1 recognised when the Company has 2 present obligation as a result of a past evani, when st {3 probable that an
cutflow of resources embodying economie benefils wall be required to scetie the obligation and reheble estimats can be made
of the amount of the obhgaiion A contingent Liabthily 1s recognued where there is a possible obligauon or a present
¢ bligation that rnay, but probably wall not, require an outflow of resources

IN Empairment of asscts

At each Balance Sheet daiz, the Company reviews the carrying smounts of ils fixed sssels to Jeterrrune whether there 12 any
ridication that those assets suffered an impairment lass 1t any such mndication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel 18
estimated 1n order 1o determine the extent of smpairment loss Recoverable amound is the higher of an ssset's net selling pnee
and valu¢ in usc [n asscasing veluc in use, the eshmated future cash flows expected from the continuing vse of the asses and
from 1ts disposal are discounted to their present value nsing & pre-discount sate that reflects the current market assessenents of
tme vaiue of money and the maks specific to the asser

Feversal of impairment lods 13 recognised 1mmediately as income 10 the profit and loss sccount

Kk Segment Information
1 Business segmenty
The Company operates in 4 single business scgment and 3 primanly engaged tn the busincss of development and
enginesring of computer software and lending of services for research and development of compuler software and
epplication software 1o ita Parent, group companies and others
. Geographic segmenis

Secandary segmental reporting 15 performed on the basia of the geagraphical locauan of cusiomers. The Compuny
provides services overseas primanly in United State of Amenca, United Kingdom and others

Geographical revenues are segregated besed on Lhe location of the customer who 18 invoiced oran relatian to whieh the
revenue Is otherwase recogrised

March 31,
1013 1612
Rupees Rupees
3. Share Capital
Authorised capital
3,500,000 (March 31, 2012 3,500,000) equity shares of Ry 10 ench 35,000,000 35,000,000

150,000 (March 31, 2012, 150,000) 10 % optonally convertibic cumulative
preferense ahares (OCCPS) of Rs 100 each 15,000,060 15,000,000

50,000,000 50,000,600




4. lssued, subseribed and paid-up capital
B79,136 {March 31, 2012 879,136} cquity shares of Rs 10 ¢ech

Of the sbove

¥ 879,136 (Previous year 879,136) equity sheres are hedd by Wipro Lumied
-tke Holding Company and its nomnees)

# Inthe year 2010-11, 37,250 equaty sheres of Ra, 10 cach are atlotied oy
premuuim as fully patd pursuant to contract witheut payment beang reegived
tn cash

Cepitsl Redemption Reserve

Securities Premium Account
Qpening balance

Geheral Reserve

Prafil and loss accaunt
Profit broughl forward
Add: Transferred fram Prafit and loss zecount

Reserves & Surplus

5, Long-term Provisions
Provision for gratury
Provision for campensated absences

6.  Trade peyables
Due 0 rmicro and small enterprises{Refer Mot 29]
Other than micro end small enterprses
Fayables to Holding Company

7. Other curreat linhilitles
Other payables
Accrued Expenses
Statutory habhies

B, Shorx term provisions
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated ubsences

W 'S

March 31,

013 012
Rupees Rupees
8,791,360 8,791,360
8,791,260 5,791,360

14,055,960 14,055,960
70,502,589 70,602,589

70,601,539 70,601,539

15,657,7.8 15,657,748

265,917,188 178,983,918
71,849,634 86,943,470

337,777,022 265,927 388

438,093,288 366,243,655

9,545,882 9,624,621
9,603,361 10,833,832
19,149,24) 10,458,453
19,266,466 20,848,076
405,505,118 78,200,287
414,771,584 99,048,163
55,192,671 45,957,512
$,744,964 12,795,187
61,917,435 58,792,699
- 1,842,541
3,608,925 3,661,481
3,608,925 5,504,032




Note &

Flxed Axsens
(Al smount In Repier)
Partigslars GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION NET BLO
As st Additiont | pefettons Asmt Asal Fer the Deletiony At at Asat Ag et
0104.2012 Adjustments .83 2043 | 01 043012 year Adjustments | 31,03 2813 | 31032013 | 31 €).3012
TANGIBLE ASSETS
o Leaachold
Iraprovements 21,083,819 - 23,083,819 ) 22,737,949 331,574 - 11,069,523 14296 345,870
b Plast & Machinery
Corputers 85,160,462 | 5,229,943 107,898 | 64,288,507 F 43,509,748 | 11,404,834 76,811 | SaRIALIN | 950,736 1 11,550,704
Office Equapment 16,322,936 - 16321936 | 32, 1F4TH | 2 067,135 . 34,255,906 [ 2070 030 | 4,138,165
¢ Furnrture and (ixsures 9063800t 2,188,128 218,881 | §1,033,047 7115309 142,214 46,628 7,810,895 | 3,222,151 | 1,948,491
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
d Computce Scflware 29,697,533 407,400 - 30,265,013 | 18136434 8429260 . 26,665,694 | 15993191 11,53) 0%%
b_'ﬂ.)'l‘Al. 133,288,550 | 12,004,571 320,779 | 144,993,342 | 133,774,223 | 23,085.047 123,449 ] 148,735,789 ] 18,147,553 | 29.514,319
Copital work (n-progeess 1,503,158 3,503,358 - . - . . .
Previous year 159,566 385 | 16877 104 23,154 042 | 131,288 850 | 1'R,622213 | 24,8208 Tad ISET6TIS | 123,774,230 | 20314339 | 40,944,134

,\,Q/
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March 31,

013 012
Rupces Rupees
10. Long term Loans & Advances
Advance 1ncome 1ax less provision for tax 113,858,748 39,644,699
Secunty Deposits — Electricity 1,085,442 1 QB5 442
114,944,154 40,730,144
11, Trade Recelvables
Ouistanding aver 1:x months
Unsecured Considered good 194,866,195 .
Otivers
Unsecured Constdercd gaod 203,356 560 210,227 499

192,212,755 210,227,499

12. Cash wnd bank belances
Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with scheduled banks
In current necount (87,438) {82,050)
In deposit sccount 332,041,071 117,028 509
331,953,628 | 76,946,859

13. Short-term logn and sdvences

Cthers
Employce travel & other advances 5,411,608 E,867,973
TDS Hecoverable 3,630,640 3,627,358
Advance to supphers - 54,970
Balances wath excise and customs 19,247,583 25,834,717
Pregaid expenses 1,301,092 1,337,689
Other depos:ts 7,146,720 18,484,809
46,737,443 68,257,514
Unsecured Considered good 46,737,643 68,257, 516
Daubtful ) - -

46,737 643 63,257, 116

14, Other current assets

Unilled revenue 28,592,591 14,776,238
Interest accrued and not dus 4,833 12,383
18,597,414 14,783,821

MNore 15 Revenue from Operstions

Sale of services 734,363,193 781,394,683
Reverue from operauons 134,363,393 781,154,683

Note 16 Other lncome

Profit an sale of Fized Assets 1,884,815 -
taterest on debrt (nstruments and others 10,615,822 4,052,704
Exchange fluctuations on foreign curency borrowings, net 9,361,935 11,052,499
Other non-gperating income 8,556,447 L)
30,919,029 15,145,203

S —



. Note 17 Employee beneflis expense

Salarics and wages
Cantributior o provident and other funds
Stafl welfare cxpenses

Note 18 Other expensed

Sub contractirg / technical fees / thurd party appheation
Travel
Repairs and maintenance
Plant anc machinery
Others
Power and fucl
Reat
Insurance
Rates and fa%cs
Payment to Auditery'
As auditor
For taxatian maners
Reimbursernent of expenses
Commurication
Adverugement and sales promotion
Legal pnd professional charges
Staff recruitment
Manpower outside services
Misczilansous expenses

19, Contirgeat iabilities and commliments

Particulars

i Bank guaranteea for executing general bond with
custama, sales tax and axcise departments

n  Esturnated amount of contracy, temaimng to be
cxceuted nn capital aceount {net of advances) and

not proviced for

m  Onagcount of Income Tex maners in dispute®

* Thys tax hehidity 18 indemnified by SAIC , the seller of

the company, ‘o Wipra Limiied under the “Asset and
Stack Purchase Agreement” between SAIC lne and
Wipro Limited

A i

March 31,

2013 Wi
Rupees Rupees

267,618,916 198,059,166

9,956,208 14,139,236

2,750,198 10, 263 416

180,125.119 412,415,018

214,627,722 70,834,668

36,667,985 32,663,089

11,799,024 14,018,049

4,054,954 11,409,225

7,156,044 15,853,742

10,587,120 37,178,233

679,494 2,985,926

537 1,781,618

600,000 600,000

625,000 625,000

50,000 30,000

2,579,840 15,051,743

307,241 299997

1,081,176 5,167,809

165,857 1,039,631

4,383,350 4,423,528

2 489,327 5001344

328,391,251 218,583,602
Asat Asat
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
{Rupees} (Rupees)
41,073 2§, 209
219,200 1,009,099
121,045,021 46,633,958}



0. Leascs

Operating Lease.

The Company has entered inte operating Jease agreement for office premmses The future mimmum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lcascs are set out below:

Particulary As ot Ay at
31.02.2013 31.02.2012
(Ropees) {Rupees)

Mimimuem lease payments oyistanding:

4. Not later than one vear 1,563,576 7,548,901

b Later than one year and nol later than five 3,795,208 1,358,784
years

¢ Later than five yewrs - -

Ewpense recognised 1n profit and loss account 10,587,120 37,178,233

duning e current year
1. Dreferred tax
8. Deferred tax atsets and liabilitres are being offset as they relete © taxes on income levied by the same governing taxston laws,

b. The Sreakup of deferred tax assea/labilitica and reconciliation of current yesr deferred tax charge 19 as follows

(All amounts in Rupecs)

Opening ({Charged) Cloting
Credited
to P&L
Deferred Tat Arstty
Tex mpact of difference  between B,119,805 1,524,547 9,644,152
carrying amount of fixed assets 1 the
financial statements and the income tax
Tetum
Tax impact of expenses charged in the
firancial but atlowable es deducuons in
future years under 1ncome tax
= Provision for emplayee benefits 8,423,529 {1,039,642) 1,183,387
» [hsallowsnce under section 40(a) 316,708 283,854 610,599
Total 16,870,039 763,799 17,638,818
Net Deferred Tax Assels 16,870,039 168798 17,638,838
Year ended Year ended
31032013 31032012
(Rupees) (Rupees)
12, Earnings in foreign exchange (on sccrual basts)
Technical sernces 477,054,497 163,524,950

' L



fapeaditure In foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

Travelling expense - 17,391,482
Legs] and profesaional charges - 2,438,500
Salanies, ailowanees and perguisites - 4.013,596
Other sxpense 1,086,904 14,545,663

3,086,914 33,389,241

24. Dlsclosure pursuant (o Actounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on *Employee Beneflts’.

a. Descriptivn of type of plan - Gratulty Plan
The Comoary makes contnbution to the Employee's Group Oratuity-cum-Life Assurance scheme of the Life Insurance

Corporation of tndia, # funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees The scheme provides fot lump sum payment 1o
vested emaloyees at reticernent, death winle in employment or an terminaton of employment

The followirg tables set ouf the funded status of the gratuity plan and arnousts recognised in the Company's financisl
staternents ay at 31 March, 20i3

L Change in benefit obligations:

Particuiars 2052-13 2011-12

(Rupees) {Rupees)
Present value of obligations et the beginmng of the year 14,178,919 27,017,046
Curtent service gost 2,552,124 265789
Past service cost - -
‘nuerest cost 1,224,29% 2,188,381
Curtailment Coat - (8.303)
Acruarial gain on obhgation (3,071,904) {9,381,579)
Jonefits paid (2,6422,355) {8,294,502)
Sresont velue of obligations at the year end 12,461,083 14,178,919

1. Change In Plan Asyets®

Fair value of plen assets at the beginning of the year 2,711,757 2,499,313
Expected return on plan assels 18,423 199,945

Employers Contributions - -

Benefils pnd - -
Actuana) gain/(Loss) 185,021 12,497
Fair value of plan agscty as at year end 1,915,201 L0787
Het Liatillity (=11 9,545,882 11,467,161

tit. Net Cost far the year ended 31 Merch, 201:

Current Service cost 2,582,124 2,657,896
Past Service cost - .
[terest cost 1,224,299 2,188,331
Eapected roturn oo plan assets (18,423) (199,945)
Cunailment Cost (-} (8303)
Actuanial (gaini/loss recogmised duning the year (3,256,928 (9,394,078)
Net Cost 501,078  (4,746,047)

G i



1 Earnings per share

Particulars Units Year ended Year ended
31.03.2013 31 03.2012

B Net profit after tax Rs, 71,849,634 86,943,470
b Waphted average of number of equity shares No of shares B79,134 879,136

used \n compuling basic eurmings per share

¢ Basc earmngs per share (a/b) RE 873 98.90

{face velue — Rs L0 per share)

4 Eftect of potenhal couity shares related 1o share No of shares . -
applicahion money pending elloiment

¢ Woighted average of number of cquity sharcs No of shares £79,136 879,136
used 10 computing diluted earnings per share
(bed)

f  Dnluted enrnengs per share (w'e) Rs 81.713 98 90

¢ face value = Rs 10 per share)
g  Effect of potennal equity shares {¢-f) Rx - -

16, Outstanding farelgn currency cxposures
The Company docs not use foresgn currency forwerd contacts 1o hedge i1 risks associated wath foreign curmency Auctuations
relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted transacuions  Fareign currency exposurcs which are nat hedged by a denvanive
instrument or otherwise as at 31 March, 2013

Currency Payable Rupee equivalent Receivable Rupee equivaleat
(Rs) (Rs.)
UsSD 143,594 7,793,564 2,589,857 140,564,481
{143,594) (7.104,627) (4,063,080} (206,689,881)
aGBP - - 84778 6,560,307
() {-) (6,210 (505,100

Note:Amounis in brachets represent previons year figures,

17. Related Party Disclosures
List af related parties
. Holding Company
v Wipre Limited
fl. Fellow Subudianes
Wipro UK Limited, UK

Wipro Travel Services Limued
Wipre Gulf LLC - Sultan af Oman

Wipro UK Limited- Oman Branch Pg\

e



1. Transactinn/ balances outstandiog with Reiated Parties.

Trapsaction ! Halding Fellow Subsidlary

Quistanding Balances Comprny

WIPROLTD  WIPRO Travel WIPRO UK

WIPRO WIFRO UK

Services Led Ltd (UK) GULFLLC  LTD- OMAN
Sranch
TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR
Seles /Services 625,262,240 - 17,207,311 1,442,531 1,327,268
Rendered
(420,712,419) -} (31,556,367) (2.411,402) (1,638,419)
Purchases /3ervices 266,642,540 771,886 - .
Recewved
(55,785,388) (3,674,665) () (- (=)
Capital Purchases . - - -
(1,427,955) ) () ) 0]
Reimbursements of 26,672,808 - -
expenses
(22,489,403) () (=) ) )
BALANCES OUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END
DebtoryUnbalied 162,684,717 - 52,070,161 4,514,319 31,157,421
revenues
(98,791,937} {-) (32,983,758} (2,512,9435) (1,719,020)
Psyables 403,159,882 894,366 - - -
(78,274,792} {1,836,637) {-) (-} ()
MNotest Amounts 1n brackets represent the previvus year figures
18. Segmental reporiing
Detalls Indla Cutside indis Total
United States of United Others
Americn Klagdom
Segmenl reverus 257,308,896 457,076,927 17,207,311 2,770,259 734,363,393

{17.860,699) (661,306,135) (43,310,023)

Segment aasety 658,146,670 87,622,827 32,070,161
{operating asscts)
(261,536,714) (168,047,354) (33,489,958)
Capital expencinure 12,025,571 . -
(16,877,104) ) )

f - «

(36,908,831)  (781,394,68E)
1,671,800 BOS, 511,458

(5,657,770)  (46R,731,695)
- 12,025,571
50! [16,877.104)



29. Disclosures as per Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

Hused on the information available with the Cornpany the balance duc to Viicro & Smail cnicrprises 83 defined under the Micro,
Small and Medum Enterpnses Development (MSMED) Agr, 2006 15 Ra. Nil (Previous year Ra Nil} and no mterest during the year
has been paid or 15 payeble under the lerms of the MSMED Aci, 1006

AD. Transfer Pricing

As per the Tcansfer Prcing Rules of the Ingome tax Act, 1961 every Company s required (o get a transfer pricing study conducted to
determine whether the international Umnsactions with associsled enterpnscs were underiaken 8t an orm's length bass for each
financial year end Since the law requires euistence of sueh Information and documentation to be contemporaneous 111 namre, the
Cumpany 15 sn the process of updating the documentation for the international tansactions entered Inio with the associsted
enterprises dunng the financial year The management 18 ¢f the opinicn that 1 international transactions sre a1 arm’s length so that
the aforesaid legislation will not have any smpact an the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013,

31, ESOP by Holding Company

Wagro Limuted, the Hotding Company, has instituted a scheme of Restncted Stock Units {RSU) includlag for some of the employecs
of this Company. the cost of which 18 bring charged to Profit and Loss Account on monthly basis{Rs 1.51 lakhs for ycar 2012-13}
and the smount adjustable by Wipro Limited sgeinst “Deferred Employee Cumponsation Expenses sy camed uader “Sundry
Credators” in the Baiance Shect a3 these stocks belongs to Wipro Limited (1the Parent Company)

32, Change in Accounting Estimate- Useful Jife of Assers

Company has aligned useful ife of the assets in line with holding company which Is en accounhing estmate change. Duc to th
change sdd'uona) depreciabion in current year 13 Rs, 8,992,031 es useful 1ife of assets has been reduced aeross the board

33, Previgus year's figures have been presented for the purpoese of coraparisen and have been regrouped where necessary

c L R

For and on behall of the Board

NAVNEET KHANDELWAL SUBRAMANIAN LAKSHMANAN
Director Director

DANGALORE

April _ 2013
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crartered Accountants

Ta

P KF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM B0 % d

AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Members of WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1

m

(1)

i}

(W)

{v)

TB & T4 Gem Plaza No 66, Infantry Road Bangalore - 560 001 India

\We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Wipro Energy IT Services India Prvate Limited as at 31" March
2012, the Profit and Loss account and also the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed
therato These financial statements are the responsibiity of the company's management Our respensibility 15 to
express an opinion on these financiat statements based on our augdrt

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India Those standards
requirs that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whather the financial statements
ara frea of matenal misstatement An audil includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the finangiat statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used andg
significant estmates made by managsment, as waell as evaluating Lha overall financial statement presentation We
beliove that our audit provides a reasonable basss for our opinion

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Repon) Order, 2003 1ssued by the Central Government of India, in terms
of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Compames Act, 1956, we enclose 1n the Annexure & statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order

Further to cur commenis in the Annexure referred to above, we report that

We have obtained all the nformation and explanations. which to the best of our knowiedge and behef were
necessary for the purposes of our audt,

In gur opinicn, peoper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears
from our examinatian of those books,

The balance sheet, proht and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are m agreement
with the bocks of account,

In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow siatement dealt with by this report
comply with the accounting standards referred 10 sub-section {3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1958,

On the basis of writlen representations received from the directors, as on 31 March 2012 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors 1s disqualified as on 31* March 2012 from being
appointed as a drector in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Agt, 1956,

Phone (+91] 80 2558 0853 Tele Fax {+31) 80 2559 0553 Email bangalore@pkiindia in Web * www pkfindia i .

Head Office  KRD Gee Gee Cryslal 91.92 7ih Floor, D Rachaknshaan Saiai Myl
f ylepora, Chennal-600 004, Indig
Tele (+91)044 2811 2585 - 68, Fax . (+91) 044 2811 2038 Email sands@pkfindia n Web  www pkfindia 1n I

(V Ramar»andr i

Compuny Lo
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vnp AP Ll op 2 and o the bBost of cor adormation ana accarumryg W e e anabions jven 12 us, the sad
£CCH s glee Wy atormialon feguired by e Compana=s Act 1985 i the n@anner s required 197 gIve @ hiug
@and far v v canfarmty wli the socountng prngisles unerally accoldcd m Inda

(a} Inthe case of the balance sheet, of the state of affaws of the company as at 31% March 2012,
(b) In case of the profit and loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date, ang

¢ <) In the case of the cash flow staternent, of tha cash flows for the year ended on that date

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam
Charlered Accountants
Firrm's Regn, No. 0039905

(<

Place: Bangalore
Date. oglulia




Annexyre

efe £d ea, sraarapt 3 of our repont of wyen asts,

Having regard 1 the noture of Company's ousiness/activilies/results for the yuar, clauses (i) and (xi) of paragraph
4 of Companies Auditor's Report) Order (CARQ), 2003 are not applcable to the company

M

(1)

{im

(v

{v]

(v

(v

(vin)

in respect of its fixed assets,

@ the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, ncluding quanttative details and
situation of fixed assets:

b according to the infarmation and explanation given 1o us, the Company has a programme of physically
verfying all its fixed assets once in every accounting period of two years, which i1n our opinion 1s
reascnable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business

¢ the fixed assets disposed off during the year, In cur apinion da not constituts a substantial pant of the fixed
asset of the company and such disposal has, 1n our opinicn not sffected the going concern status of the
Company

The Company has ne:ther grantsd nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured toflrom campanies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Acl

In qur opinion and acceording to the information and explanation provided to us, there I8 an adequate
internal contrel procedure commansurate with the size of the Company and ihe nature of its business, for
the purchase of fixed assels and for the sale of sarvices, The company's operations do not give rnise to
purchase of inventory or sale of goods Dunng the course of audi, we have nol observad any major
weaknesaes in ntarnal control system,

In our optnion ana according to tha information and explanation provided to us, there are na fransactions
of purchase of goods and materials and sale of goods and services made in pursuance of ceniracts ar
arrangements entered in the register mantained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1958 and
aggregating during the pericd to Rs, 500,000 or more in respect of each party

In our opinion and according to the mfarmation and explanation provided to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits fram the public during the year. Therefore the provisions of clause (vi) of the paragraph 4
of the CARG arg not applicable to the company

In our opinion, the inlernal audit funclion carmed out dunng the year by a firm of Charlered Accountants
appainted by the Management have been commensurate with s size and nature of its business.

Acceording to the information and explanation provided to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
mainienance of cost racords under clause (d} of sub-section (1) of Section 20¢ of tha Companes Act, 1958 for

the Company

Accerding to the informatien and explanation provided to us and records of the company exanned by us,

{a) The Company has been generally regular In depositing undisputed statutary dues including Provident
Fund, lnvestor Education and Protaction Fund, Employees' Stale inswiance, Income-1ax, Sales-tax,




(i)

(x)

(=)

(x1)

{xnn}

{xiv})

{xv}

Voot Tosg Custono Gty Evcies 3o e afe 1Y meas ane an, Aher 1000 4005 itk thp
ATprL s gl @ teantes and hote 202 1 WSdLUEY 3 cLnt payanle o [Cafety & u-f dues wluch
nave 1eranzd cutstanding as a! the iss! day of the tmanciel year concerned for a perica of mare than
si» months from the date they became payable

{b) There was no undisputed dues in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales tax, Waalth tax,
Employee State Insurance, Custom duty, Excise duly, Service tax, cess which have not besn
deososited on account of any dispute,

{c) Detals of dues of Income Tax which has not been deposited as on 31" March 2012 an account of
dispute are given below

S # | Assessment Year Amount {Rs Lacs) Authonty

1 2008-09 41864 | Order passed by Asst Commissicnar,
pending with Dispute Resolution Panel

2 2008-09 47 69 | Order passed by Deputy Uirector,
pending with Dispute Resolution Panel

The Company does not have accumulated losses. The Company has not 1acurred cash loss during the
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year

tn our opimon and accerding to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not
taken any loans from the financial institutions or banks or ssued any debentures

In our opivion and acgording o the information and explanation provided ta us, the company has not
granted loa1s and advances on the basis of secunty by way of pledge of shares. debentures and other
securities

In our opinion and according to the infermatian and explanation previded to us, the company 1s nat
dealing or trading In shares, securties, debentures and other investments. Tharefore the provisions of
clauss (xiv) of paragraph 4 of CARQO are not appiicable to the Company.

In our opinon and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the company has not
given any guarantes for loans taken by others from bank or inancal insttutions

In our opinion and according to the \nformation and explanation provided to us, the company has not
taken any term loan

In our epimon and according to the information and explanation provided 1o us and on examinalion of the
financial statements of the Campany, we repart that funds raised on short-term basis have notl been used for
long term mvestment and vica versa




i) Arcaivag i e aleetion ondg sxplanation Loy deg bous g 10g the perod fovered Lnted avil, e
23y has et cas g, peeterential aloiment ot Shafun 0 parties and compun es covered 1n t-g
Ragsler mantanad under sectior 30° of the Act

(xvil)  Accorcirg lo the snformation and explanation provided to us, the company has not issued any securad
debentures

{xvii )} During the year covered by our audit raport, the management has not raised money by public issue

(x1x)  Taihe best of our knowledga and belief and accerding to information and explanation provided to us, no
fraud onvby the Company has besen noticed or reported during the year,

For P KF &ndhar & Santhanam
Chartered Accountants
¢ ‘inm's Regr No 0039808

M Saethalakshmi
Parner

Mem No 0208545
Place. Bangalorg

Date  gelyii




' WIPRO ENERGY 1T SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT

March 31,

Notes 2012 2011
. Rupees Rupees
EQOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds
Share Capial 3 8,791,360 8,791,360
Reseives and Surplus . 4 366,243,655 279,300,185
375,035,015 288,091,545
Ny n- current lalblities
Lang-term Movisions, ., 5 20,458,453 36,704,489
20,458,433 36,704,489
Current Liabih-ies
Trade pavabies 6 99,048,363 48,367,184
Crliercanent  ahilies 7 58.792,699 36,276,383
Shorl tcrm presisions g 5,504,032 10.866,223
163,345,094 95,509,790
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILTIES ......... Crerrnees 558,838,562 420,105,824
ASSETS
Nan-current ussets
Fixed assets
Tanwiole assets .o e 0 e 9 17,983,230 34,838,947
Imtangible assets,.. ... . . g 11,531,099 6,105,219
Wark in jnogress 9 1,503,358 .
Deterted [av asaets (net) 22 14,870,039 22,319,094
Long=erm leans e odvarees | . 10 2,574,442 2375418
50,462,168 65.638.690
Curient assets
T rade receivabies . . t) 210,227,499 229,009,000
Cash and bank adlonces e L2 176,946 859 38,336,182
Shor-temm Juans and advances C . 13 106,413,215 55,271,098
O3he) Cuent esels . o |4 14,788,821 32,050,854
508.376,394 _ 354,667,134
TOTAL ASSEIS o e, PP 588,838,562 420,305,824

The Notes 1efetivd to ubor e form an integral part of the Balunce Sheet

As g ot et ettaned Totand an beralf of 15c Board ot Directors

NAVNEET KHAMDELWAL

et

MOSLETHAL

e

Mebor s Noo 0083

aglulis

Haoadione

Apel 28 012

.

SUBRAMANIAN LARSHMANAN

Duecan

a&lu\u




WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 2012

March 31,

Notes 2012 2011
Rupees Rupees

REVENUE
Revenue from
operalons . .. ... 15 781,304,688 £35,286,000
Qther Income ..... i6 15,145,203 20,326,626
Total Revenue ......... Peabterrasararaasaraaatiraarirs 796,539,891 855.012,635
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense | 17 422,436,068 476,350.1112
Finance Costs ce e e 18 - 30,3006
Depreciation and amoriization ¢Xpense ..., 9 24,828,744 26,667,986
Qther expense ., .. 19 218,981,952 211,836,075
Total EXPENSE .eveeerrnineenrensans rereieierenebeinreraens 666,247,364 714,884,479
Profit before tox . 130,292,527 140,728,156
TAX EXPENSES
Current tax 37,900,000 51.000.000
Deferred tax . ..o e e 22 5,449,087 13,319,282
Net Piofit 56,943,470 01 047 0%
Earnings per equity share [Refer note 26|
(Copuity skares of pa- value 10/ each}

Basic..... . . C e 93 90 106 61

iniated . . . oL 98 90 106 61

The Notes jeferred to above form an integral part of the Piofit and Loss Account

As per our 1eport atached For and on behalf of the Bonrd of Direciors

w2\

NAVNEFT KHANDELW AL SUBRAVIANIAN LAKSHMANAN

fhreetor Dsg ren

for PKF Sridhar & Saathanam
Chartered Accuniat s

46lh]|1 92‘{'-(“1
Bangalore
April _®€ 2012




) WIPRO PXNY DN 77 0 o

L L I T S RREIN & B
e Murch 31,
anl2 2011
Rupees Rupees
Cash lows from operatig activities:
Profithctore
fan 130,292,527 140,728,156
Adptistnzent.
Deprect dtion diw amytisahion 24,828 744 26,667,986
Interest on ronewsigs . 30,306
Divadend - mierest et (4,052,704) (3,510,630)
Prori o) sg e ol ivesineis - (9.539‘20“
G on sale ot Faee asuets 1,399,002 {6,000)
wekings capritel ¢ hages :
“necrease 4 (deertase) i lrade payables 50,68!,179 {40,239 885)
Increase ¢ (deciedse) w long-lein: provisions., (16,246,036} 5.754 960
Increase 7 (decicase) N shori-term provisions e e R (1,305,651) 132,616
Increase 7 (Ceciesse) i other cunent habilites. . 22,516,316 (9,131,795)
(nerease} ) deereise nwrade recewnvables L, 18,781,501t (93,274,281
flnerease) £ Jdecrease n shart-term loans & advances (11,497,418} (6,726,571}
fhnerease ) decicasy 0 other cunent assets . 17,262,033 (3,581,154)
Net cash penerared from / {used in) operations......civivivoiieniin, 234,460,529 7,204,516
et res (pand) refund,
nel . . (81,601,239 (34,847.45M)
Met cash genevated Iy s (used in) operating activities................ 152,859,290 (27,642 966)
Cush flows from investing activities:
Acgunsttzon of Taed assets {mcluding capital advances, intangible assets
nd CWIP
(18.380,462) (16,674,602)
% rocceds [rom sale of (iaed assats , |, . C e 79,145 6,000
Proceeds f1om sale S motunny of current investinents - 2,675,560
Disrcend receives Lip v suhsidiary
Company . - 9,639,201
13 vidend 7 mlerest meane reveived 4,052,704 3,597,832
(14,248,613} {756,009}
Cash flows from {inancing activities:
Renayments of long-lerm butrow:ngs - {1.019,55M
Imterest pand on bontovesags o0 . L (30.306)
Drvrgtends puid (urzluding distmbution rax) . (164,319,079
Set cash used in financing activities.......... ere ieens e revertierarannn, . (165,368,942)
St (daeraase) s merease incash and cash equivalents duning the period 138,610,677 (193,767,917 00)
38,336,182 232,104,00¢
176,946,859 38,336,182




1011

2012
Rupees Rupees
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks i current account . . e e (82,050 307,273
Balances with banks in deposit aceounts., .o oo oL 0 L 177.028,909 38,028,000
Total Cash and cash equivalents ..o i, 176,946,859 38,336.133'

A% per our reporn aitached For and cn behalf of the Board of Directors
Jor PKF Sridhar & Santhanam
Chartered Accountanls %ﬂ‘ﬂw

NAVNEET KHANDELWAL SUBRAMANIANT AKSHVIANAN
Duector Directar

26heha Dol

Bangalore
Aprl 6 2012




WIPR( ENERGY 1T SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Former v SATC Tndia Private Limited)

- FORMING "SR OF THL ACCOUNTY
derthoee o
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Duirrg tie cuaent vear, the shares of the Company have been acquired by Wipro Linmted (Wipro') and 1s nominess’
co nsequent Lo which, the Cumpany became a wholly ewned subsidiary of Wipro Limited with cffect from 10 June,
201, Trereatter, the Company epphed for a change of name and a fresh certificate of incorporation effecting the name
charge to "'WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED" was issued by the Registrar of Companies,
N.CTlor Del & ITayuna on | September, 2011 under section 23(1) ot the Compames Act, 1956.

My Company mamly provides technrcal sorvices to its Parent, other group companics on a “cost plus markup’, and to
athaer parties w aceotdaace wath agreements entered

Siggnificant Accounting Policics

The Nnancial slwements arc prepared wnder the histonical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting and 1
accordance witl the Generally Aceepted Accounting Principles (‘GAAP’) m India and comply with the Accounting
Standards presenbed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 20086, to the extent applicable and in aceordance
with the siovisians of the Compamies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the Company The significant accounting
salicics aic as [olows

it L we of estiinates
The preperitaon of finoesal starements reguires the managemen: of the Company to make cstimates and assumpnions 1hat
alleet the cpontad balances of wasets and labibitons ane diselosures relating 10 the contingent Labaittics as at the date of the
finrwoal vaverents ana 1gponed amaurts of ircome and expenses durng the perind Example ot such esurmates include
pron oy ans o dosbtiut debts, prosiaion fo ncore taves and the usefu’ lives of fiked assets ard tangible assets
Corngerees aie gecorcea when ity prabable that a Lability will be incunied and the amount can be reasorably
esumated Acrual cesa s could difler om such estimates

b. Foved ussats and depevihion
A Tved assets e stated at cost less accuriulated depreciatinn. Cost includes purchase price and all other
wrut table costs o7 brirgag the assets to working condition for intended use,

o Demzcunan on ali assets 1s charged from the month: when the fixed assets ate 1eady for then wtended use and up to
the 1 ontl ul disposal

Mo Depravianiey s provided onoa siraight-ling busts at rates bused on macsgement’s estumate of useful Ines, which 1y
b gher then he raves presceibed m Schedule Y1V o the Companres Act, 1956 The depreciation rates are as follows

Farticulars Life in years
“Com p_'._lré: 5 36

Uftice equipnem 5

Puistwee end fittings 3

I aschold tiproveincnts Perrod of lease or § vears

wlhichever 15 lower

Assetsa ot R 500U o1 less n 1 fully depreciated 1n the year of purchase,




Revenue recognition

~E

7

1 Revenue from software development on fixed price coniracts 15 recognused accorcing 1o the mulestone geluesed ag
spec.fied 1n the contract, and 1 adjusted on the “praporionate ecompletion” methad based an the wark compieted

1 Revenue compnising techmucal services 1endered to the Parent and other group companies is recogn.sed on delivery o
services to the customers and 15 accounted for on ‘Cost Plus’ basis in aceordance with the conructs entered inro with th
Parent and other group companies,

#i.  On time and material contracts, revenue is recognised based on time spert as per the terms of the specific contraces

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevalling on the date ot the nansacbon Realised
gams and losses on foreign exchange nansactions durieg the year are recognised i the profit and lows aceouns 1 oreign
currency asscls and habilities denominated in foreign currencies, a5 at the yoar ond are wanslated .o rupees at the yom
cnd rates and resultant patns/losses on foreign exchenge tianslationy arc secogmsed i the profis and lass account

In case of forward contracis for foreign exchange, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction are recognised over the life of the conuagt

Leases
L, Operating Lease (

Leases where the lessar effectively retains substantially ali the risks and benelits of ownership of the leased
assel are classified as operating leases, Operating Tease charges are recognised as an expense in the arofit
and loss account on a straight-hine basis over the lease tenn

li. Finanee Lease

Leases under which the Company assumes substannally all the nsks and rewaids of owneisip ore
classified as Minance leases The lower of farr vajue of asset and present value of sirmmam lease 1entals 15
caputalised as fixed assets with coresponding amount shown as lease hability The principal component o
the lease 1emals 1s adjusted agamst the lease hablily and imerest compopent 18 chaiged 1o profit and lose
account.

(

Income taxes

Income taax compnses current W and deferted s Income tav 13 derermmined iy accordance with the provstims of the
Income 1ax Ac, 961

Deferred tax assets and liabitives are recogmised for the Sfuture tax consequences of tnung difterences, beng rhe
differences between tavable income sud sccounting 1ncome that origmarte in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent penods, subject 10 the consideraton of pradence, Dreferied tax assets ard Babilities are medstred usisp
the taa rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Enplovee beneflts

IR Shore-term ermployvee benefils

T e vadircowated a vown of shoea-ts; Beachts evpeetad Lo be P i ot a s e o e eidered
cuploseas s orecognised Juuing the cieployee sonders Uw sonviees Thvse e oo wde sal
wages borus and pertonmance e




h.

.  Post-employment Lenefit plans

The Company’s employee™s provident fund schenie 1s a defized contrbution plan The Company’s contnbution
randipayable under the scheme i recogmsed as an expense 1 the profit and loss account during the penod i which the
e aloyee senders the reluted service

(ke Company’s gratuy 1s aefinea benefit plan The present value of the obhgation wnder such defined benefiy plan is
dermved based on acttanal valuaton usag the progecied und credst method, which recognises gqach period of service
g e we additonal ueat of employee benefit entfement and measures vach umt separately to build up the final
ehigatin Hhe whliganon s measured at the present value of the estimated futur ash flows The discount rate used for
dutamuring the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans. 1s based on the market y1elds on government
seeauiies as at the balazes sheet aate Actuaral gains and losses are recognised immediately o the profit and Toss

AL,

The Compayy b1s alsu axes the goavp policy with Lite Iisurance Corporation of India (LIC) to meet 1ty obligaton
sards pratuity Lability with respect to the gality plan s detenmined based on an actuanal vatuation done by an
ubopencunt actary atthe vear end and any d'lferential berween the tund amount as per LIC and the actuaral valuat:on

Soaged e e

Rorefils compy sing compensated absences constitute other long serm employee henefits, The lizbility for compensated
dbsences s previded un the basis of an actuanial valuation done by an mndependent sctuary at the year end Actuanal
gt s dod lusses e evagaied mumediately e the profir and loss aecount

Farangs pedr Share

e Canpany 1eports basic and ciluted carnngs per equity share i accordance with Accounting Standard 20,
Earmmps Pev Share Batie cainings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the
weghied averege number of equity shares outstanding for the yem

Dilated cainimegs per equity share have been computed using the weighted average nunber of equity shares and
dilirve polential ceunty shares owstandmg dunng the year

Provisians and contingencies

A provisail 1= recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of 5 past event, when it 3
probasie thatan cutflow ot resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
teltable evtimate can be made ot the amount of the abirgation. A contingent Lability is recogmsed where there 15
a poswible vbhhipation or a present obhigation that mey, but probably w:i! not, require an outflow of resources

Limpairment of assety

At cach Bulance Sheet date, the Company rev ews she varmymg amounis of 1t fised assets to determuine whether there s any
widieation hat -hose arsats suffered an impairment less 1 any such mdication exists. *he rocos crable amount of the assc! .o
csimmated i ordes ra dotemune the etent of mparmnent fass Pecoverable amount is the higher of ap rsset s net selling pricy
are valre 1oase Leoassessing value i use, the esumated tutwie cash 1lows eapected from the cortimuing use of the assel and
from s dposel are discounted ta then present valae usmg a pre-discoun: jate that teflects the cuitest market assessments of
e vl of mone, el the nsks speci’e o the asaet

Reversil o mpaitment oss s recogrised vinigdiately as mcome in the profit and ioss accoum
Segrmeat Information
1 Busir ess segments

lae Company operates 1 a smigle business segment and 1s primanly engaged w the business of
deve opmeat and engineermg of comy gre and lending of services for research and development

of co mputer software and appiicat




il.  Geographic segments

Secondary segmental reporting 1s perfonned on the basis ot the geographical locution of customers |he
Company provides services overseas primanly in Umited State of Amenca, United Kingdom and others

Gieographical revenues are segregated based on the location of the customer who 1s wvorced or 1 relation e
to which the revenue 13 otherwise recognised ‘

March 31,
2012 2011
Rupees Rupees
1. Share Capital
Acuthorised capital
3,500,000 (March 31, 2011 3,500,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each 35,000,000 15 000,000

150,000 (March 31, 2011 150,000} 10 % optionally convertible
cumulative preference shares (OCCPS) of Rs. 100 each 15 000,000 15,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

879,136 (March 31, 2011 879,136) squity shares of Rs 10 cach R, 791,360 8,791,360
8,791,360 8,791,360

Of the above

# 879,136 {Previous vear 879,136) equity shares arc held by Wipro Lumited
~the Holding Company and its naminges)

ks

In the year 2010-11, 37.250 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 212 allotted at
preinium as fulty paid pursuant to contract without payment being received
10 cash,

4 Reserves and Surplus
Capital Redemption Reserve 14,055,960 14.035.560 (

Securities Fremium Account
Opeming balance ' 70,602,589 13,725,089
36,877,500

Addiion duzmg the year -
70,602,589 70,602,589

General Reserve 15,657,718 [5.657,718

Profit and loss account

Profit brought forward 178983914 87,936,510

Add Trnsterred from Profit and loss account H6,943.470 91047 40
265,927,388 178983918

Reserves & Surplus m3“66,243,655 271)"590.135




March 31,

' 2012 2011
‘ Rupecs Rupees
s, M.ovg-term Proviyions
Provision for gratuily 9,624,621 23.062,89:
LProvisun tor leave encashnent 10,833,832 13,541,893
20,458,453 36,704,489
6. Trade payables
e te tmao and wmall enterprises{Refer Note 30} - -
Othet thanimre o und sinadl enterpiises 20,848,076 29,607,784
Paxobles uHalding Company 78,200,287 18,759,400
99,048,363 48,367,184
7. Orther current wabilities
Other payables
Accrucd Lypen-cs 45997512 26,686,224
Statutory bbibilivs 12,795,187 9,590,159
58,792,699 36,276,383
8. Shoritermpro-fsions
Movivon or gy 1.842.541 1,355,137
Proveeou To leave ercaslunen: 3.661,49] 5,454 54¢
Frovvenion tr an less advance tax - 4,056,540
5,504,032 10,866,223
§ Fosod A el
(A swnupgs A Bupees,
Fartlcilers e o t‘RU\G J1OEN T DETRECIA FCIN ! MET ALOCK
[YRY] ratiiluna [ | As ot Al Farthenear 1 Dalsbany Ay Ab at Ad i
o Adg L aeE PINGRELIES J at o doel Adjustmenis Y0t 3oy 1 a3 amg EIR PR LIN]
7 i -cindnn
TANGIBLE venlf 1% E , ] l I
LAEDEENS !
PR bt ! - [ ‘ e FLPTEIT Y POIEGN A s 3 13319 #9 2277 9ay T 10 48 ™7
'
]
TA S b o l ! 1
LTS oo | .l e i LR LAY a4 a8 0 47 A [ SN s g TR L N 15481 ART
Sawp oww I Wi AT i AR Ay LR Lny g 137 in 13,71 4 1% 1 48s 041
"A:l I8 S TR T AL ‘ T [RERFL unY B [k R L] LY 114 B4s TL A (R E L 305 a0
INEANGIHLE ASBE 4
VLA it SR [EELEEY] [EALLEY 5 PLYSERLE] 14 .ap 11} & 740t LRRLERE] T1A] pag A 108 219"
tOTAL Jotmasw aaf 1 Tomrtioe ) 21idasey LI TRL) 112633 313 24 B30, Ted 19 876,734 131972430 FLETIRFL] ITXITREC A |
Ty Sk v ok v | | A N 380008 1 W11, 15k
4 4 |
ot sy Losn e t 1 Khe I TR TS 14 66 VA 10761 K64 | 1Ihats ot 41 vag 118 3T g3V ApD




10. Longterm Loans & Advances
Seecurity Deposits - Rent
Secunty Depouts - Elecncity

11. Trade Receivabley
Outstanding over s1x menths
Unsecured Considerced good
Others
Unsecured Considered good

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and Cash equivalents .
Balances with scheduled banks

In current account

In deposit account

13. Shorf-term loans and advances
Others
Employee travel & other advances
TDS Recovetable
Advance to suppliers
Balances with excise and customs
Prepaid expenscs
Other deposiis
Advanee incotne tax less provision for tax

Unsecured Cons:idered good
Doubtful

14, Other current assers

Unbilted revenue
Interest accived and not due

March 31,

2012 201
Rupees Rupees
1,489,000 1,449,000
1,085,442 886,418
1,574,442 2,375,418

210,227,499

229.,009.000

210,227,499 229,009,000
{82,050y 207,273
177,028,909 38028 809
176,946,859 18,336,182
4,867,973 3,687,145
3,627,358 3,627358
54,970 .
25,884,717 15.608 972
1,337,649 5,1548M
26,995,809 27 165,600
39 644,690
106,413,218 85271098
10643215 55,271,098
106,413,215 55,271,098
14,776 238 324037283
12,583 13871
14,788,821 32,050,854




Note U5 Revinue tomm Operations

Sale of sevies

Fevenue from operalions

Nate 16 Other Incame

Profit/ (oss) on sile of investinents, net

I nterest on dent mstruments and othe:s

Exerange lucteations on foreien currency botrowings, net
COther ron-epsatl 1g mening

vote 17 Fepruy e benefits expense

* -
My ED TS Dl wages

Connnuren ty provident and other tunds
ST weline expense:

Note 18 Finance casts

Crasl crede and o1

Note 19 Other enpenses
Sub contrectmy *techmeal fees £1hrd party application
Travel
Repais and mimtenance

Plant and machinery
* Othes
Power and fue,
Rent
Insuwrance
Rates and tanes
Payment 10 Auctory”
A auditop
For lasaney matrers
Reambutseneirt of expanses
Commumeation
Addvertsement vad wades promotion
Loga' and projsvsiaal chages
Loss on faterpy 2 xeauuoe tuciuanons (ner)
Sttt reciuiiaen.
Manpower outs e services
Miscellaneous ¢ gpenses

March 31,

2012 2011
Rupees Rupees
781,394,683 835,286,009
781,394,688 835,286,009
- 9.639.20!
4,032,704 3,510,630
11,092,459 .
- 7.176,795
15,145,203 20,326,626
308,154,716 450,342,677
14,139,236 16,765,530
10,142,716 9,241,905
422,436,668 476,350,112
- 30,306
- 30,106
70,834,668 13,868,634
12,661,439 58,865,341
14,018,049 4,379,279
t1,409,225 15,857,793
15853.742 14,827,721
37.178,233 42,202,521
2,985.926 4.659.286
1,781,618 39250
600,000 2,225,000
625,000 925.000
50,000 58.210
15,051,743 10,619,080
299.997 248818
5167.809 32,122,688
- 427,161
1,039,631 1,075,270
4,423,528 3.454.586
5,001,344 4,976,437
218,98] 452 211,836,075




10, Contingent liabilties and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2012 J31.03.2011
(Rupees) {Rupees)
1. Bank guarantees for exccuting gencral bond 28,909 28,909
with customs, sales tax and excise
departiments
11 Fstimated amount of contracts, remaining to 1.009,099 16,138,673

be executed on capital account (net of
advances) and not provided for

111 Estumated amount of other commitnients. (
remaining 1o be executed on employee benefil
account

2,476,102 -

iv  Onaccaant of Inconse Tax matters i dispute

In respeet of inarters which have been decided agamnst
the Company and scquired Foreign Branch

+ by the Asst: Commissioner of Income Tax. 41,864,690 .
where the company has filed an objection on
drafi assessmen: order and approach to the
Thspate Resolution Panel (DRPY*(excluding
interest)

s by the Deputy Durector of Ilncome lax 4.769.291 -
{Internaonal Iaxanuon), where the coimpany
for 115 acquired foreign branch has filed an
obrection on draft assessment order and
approach to the Dispute Reselution Fanel (
(DRP)* (excluding intervst)

* Thig tax liabihity 15 indemnified by SATC , the
seller of the company, to Wipro Limited under the
“Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement”
between SATC Inc and Wipro Limited

21, l.eages

Operating Lease:

The Compary has entered into operating lease agreement for office premuses The futre tununum lease pay neniy

I
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Patticalars

Mmimum lers¢ payments ourstanding,
@ Notater then one yeal

b. Later than ene year and not later then five
Years

¢ Latr than five years
E~xpense recogaised in profit and loss

account dwng the current year

Deferred tay

As at As at
31.03.2012 31.03.2011
(Rupees) (Rupees)
7,548,901 41,259,608
7,358,784 14,907,684
37,178,233 42,202,521

a. Deferred tas asscts and labihines are being offsct as they relate 10 taxes on income levied by the same goverming

it on laws

h. Tle breahup of deferved tax assets/iabilities and 1econcilation of current year deferred tax charge is as follows .
(All amounts in Rupees)

Qpening (Chargedy Closing

Credited

to P&IL.
Deferred Taa Assets
Tax nrpact at ditference between 5,445,706 2,674,099 B.119.R05
canry.ng amawit ¢ Jived asseis in the
{inancia. statemems and the income tax
remin
Tax impact of evpenses charged i the
hrancia, but a los thie as deduhons m
future yeas wrder neune mye
+ Lueasw dgual 7acom | 458,550 (1,453,550 -
*  Prosevan for cployes benefits 14,938,888 (6.515.359) 8,423,529
+  Dioalowaned uoder section 4074) 475,952 (149,247) 326,705
Total 22319090 (5.449,057) 16,870,039
Net Delerred Tax Assels 11,319,095 {5,449,0587) 16,870,039
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Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basls)

Techmeal services

Expenditure in forelgn exchange (on accrual basis)

Travcihing expense

Legal and professional charges

Salarics, allowances and pergansites

Other expense

Y ear ended Year ended
31.03.2012 31.03.2011
(Rupees) (Rupees)
763,524,990 £35,286.009
17,361,482 34,508,351
2,438,500 30,167,724
4,013,596 12,667,705
14,545 663 .
38,389,241 77,343,780

25, Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on ‘Employee Benefits’.
a Description of type of plan - Gratuity Plan

The Company makes contnbution lo the Employee’s Group Giatuty-cum-Life Asswance scheme of the Lo
Insurance Corporation of India, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees The scheme provides fin
lump sum payment to vested employees at renrement, death while wm employment or on ternunaton ol
employment.

The foliowing tables <t oul the funded siatus of the grauuty plan and amavnts recopnised m the Campany's finan. il
statemer ts as at V] March, 2012

i Change in benefit ablkgations:

Particulars 2011-12 056-11

(Rupees) {Rupees) (
Progent value ol obligatons at the begmning of the yewm 27.017.046 T1.914 521
Curent seavice cost 2,657 896 SA14087

Phsl service cost -
Interest cost 2,188 381 L7583 162

Cuntailmens Cost

(8,303)
Actuarial gain an oblhigation (9.381.579) (R4 €5
Reacfits pard (8,294,527 {1,480 %44)
Iresert value of obiganon 14:1‘78,9 19 27,017,040




ii.  Cbaagein Plan Assers;

Fun value of plar assets o2 the begmy ung of the yea 2,499,315 2,338975
Fxpecied reairn on plan assets 199,945 198,813
Lraovms o apolpon. - GO0 ALS
Bepelits paic . (637.837)
Azl gandLoss) 12,497 (41,952
Fair value ot plan assets as al year ead 2,711,757 2,499,315
Net |abilty (i-l) 11,467,162 24,517,731
A
it “et Cost for the vear ended 31 March, 2012:
Curmnt Service sl ' 2,657,896 5.514.687
Past fervice ooy -
Ir terest easl 2,188,381 1 753,162
Fapested Teturn on plan dssets (199,945) {198, 813;
Cuainen; Cost (8.303) -
Actaw i (g T eas recognised dunng the year {9.394 075) (642,598)
,
LY et Cost (4,756,04T) 6,426,438

", Principal actuarial assnmptians:

Diseeantiate (p a.) 8.60% 8 10%

Lapeniediate of retuin on assets ipa) 8 50% £ 00%

Salary eseclaton tate (pa) 500% 9 00%
Notes!

The discount rate 1s based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government secunties as at the
bl

ance shees date for the estmated term of obligations




26.

3 Demographic assumptions’

a.  Retircment age

b, Maortality rate

58 years

Published rates under 1.1C
{1994-96) mortahty 1ables

v Additlonal information
2011-12 2010-11 2009-10

Particulars

Present Value of benefit obhgation 14,178,919 27,017,046 21 a4 521

Fuir Yalue of plan assets 2,711,757 2,499.315 2.338,976

Excess of obligation sver plan assets 11,467,162 24,517,713} 19,575,545

Eaperience Ad]ustment:
On pian liability 4,391,750 412,948 J.626,852 (
Or pian assets 12,497 {41,952

b Description of type of plan — Compensated balances

The employees of the Company are entitled 10 compensaled absences The emplosecs can cany forward a
portion of the wnunhsed accumulating compensated absences and utihse st fuure penods or reegive cash
at 1etiement or tersmnation of employment The Campany 1ecords an obhgatien for compensited absences
i the penod :n which the employee renders the services that ncreases this enttlement The Compars
measuics the expected cost of compensated abscirees as the additonal amount that the Company cApects i
piy @s a result of the unused entittement that has accumulated st the end o! the repsring penod lae
C einpany 1ecognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuanial valadtion, Non-accumulating
compensated absences are recogiuzed in the penod i which the absences oceur The Company recognizes

actuanial gans and losses mmmediately n the statement of Profit and Loss.

The table below shows a summary of the actuanal gam/lass fo1 peniod ended 35 03 2012

Assets/Liabilitles

t Present Value of Obligation

2 Farr Valuc of Plan Asscis

3 Net liabiluy recogrized m Balance Sheet

Earnings per share

(

Ason As on

31032012 3103201
.44 95,3234 157 12,531
14445 323, VST A

Particulars Units Yeur endecl Y ear ended
31.03.2012 31.03.2011
a INetprofit afler tax s 86,943,470 9 047 40
b Weighted average of numbet of No. ol shazes R79.136 §54.031

equity shaies used i computing basie

“
x
@
.
Lo/
A\ ‘)q‘,




R

Particulars Units Year ended Year ended
31.03.2012 31.03.2011

cd nings per share
¢ Basic carungs per share (ab) Rs. 58.90 106.6!

{tace value — R 10 per snare)

d  Effect of petential equity shares No, of shares - -
related to share appheaton money
pending allotment

e, Waeighted averape of number of No of shares 879,136 854,031

equity shaies used 1 computing
diluted carnings per share (b+d)

[ Duuted carnings per shave (nle) Rs. 98 o0 106.61
Ifnce vatie - R4 10 per share)

n Fiect of poenual ecuity shares (o) Rs - -

Outstanding fereign currency exposures

The Company loes not use furergn currency farward contracts to hedge its 1isks ussociated with foreign currency
Nucruatious eictrg 1o certar firm comuutments and forecasted tansactions

Forcign cuiuney eaposuies which are not hedged by a derivative wstrument or otherwise as at 31 March, 2013

Currency Payable Rupee equivalent Receivable Rupee cquivalent
(Rs.) {Rs.)
UsD
143 594 7,304,627 4,062,080 206,688,881
(420,143) (18,759,400) (3.842,172) {260,852,98])
B3P - - 6,210 306,100
(=) (+) (2,637) (193,300)

NOTEIAMALL t 1 AChels represent previous yea ligures.
Related Party [Tisclosures
& Listaf vefatxd parties (for the period 01-Apr-11 to [0-Jun-11)
1 binmae Holdmg Cowpany
o SAIC I, USA
no Holdmp Compary

* Sawne Applications Tnternational Corpatazion, U 5 A




p——

m  Subsichanes

» Scicom Technologies Ine (3T
¢ Scicom Technologies Lumted (STL)

1v, Fellow Subsidianies

o SAIC Liputed (SAIC Lid.)
+ STPL Holdings LLC (STPL)

List of 1elated partes (for the period 11-Jun-1} to 31-Mar-12)
i.  Holding Company
s Wipto Limited
i, Fellow Subsidianes
+ Wipro Lumited, UK
« Wipro Trave! Services Limited

« Wipro Oman
¢ Wipro Gulf

b.  Transaction/ balances outstanding with Related Partles.

RELATED PARTY FOR THE PERIOD 01-APR-11 TO 19-JUN-[]
Tranvaction / Dutstanding Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Subvidiaries
Balances
SAKC SAIC Ltd, SIPL §11 Sl

TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR

Sales /Services 160,043,503 11,359,680

716,976,970) (88,964,975) (- 8] ()
Remnbuisenents of gypenses 6478811 . -
{pa.d}

144,716,426) -} (- [ i

Dividend neon.e

L} i) {4 [CRLYRAYA H e T

Snare Capeol Refiond - - - -

(-] =) i 12,587,500} 1% UnU;
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RELATED PARTY FOR THE PERIOD 11-JUN-11 TO 31-MAR-12

I e aacGot C Quistandiog
Balances

Haldtng Campuny

Fellow Subsidiary

WIFRO LTD WIPRO WIPRO LTD GULF OMAN
IRAVEL WK)
SLRVICES L1D
TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YRAR
Sales Services Rendered 420712419 31,556,367 2.411,402 1,638 439
- =) 1} (-} (-}
Privclses S cos Rocong S8, 745 W8 1ATE 9hS
(- =) (-) 18] (8]
Uapita! PUrchaaes L1217 uss
-} L) (-) (+) (3
Re e upsom enle ¢l espenses ID AR, 4GS -
{-} ] (] () (}
BALANCES OUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END
Melrtors ' Urbilied rever uee 9% 791,537 32,983,758 2,512 968 k719020
1} 13 ) {-) t
Pashivs T8I, 92 LE164637
] - (] i- {-)
Notes At i brachets represent the previvus year figures
Segmental repurting
Details Indla Qutside India Total
Unlited States United Others
of America Kingdom
Segument tesenie 17,869,669 681,306,235 45,310,023 36,908.831 781,394,688
(-} (682,116 514 (90,747,678 62,421.817) (83%.286 009)
Scgment asscls 303,755,854 168,047,354 33,489,858 5,657,770 510,950,836
195.996,269) (3.000.414) (357.042.550)
Capnat expendtute 16,877,104 - 16,877,104

(16,674.602)

{-)

(16,674,602)




30 Disclosures as per Micro, Medium and Smasll Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MEMED)

Based on the informaton available with the Company the balance due to Migro & Smal. enterpnises as defined under
the Micro, Srmali and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 15 Rs Nil (Previous vear Rs Nilyand no
interest dusing the year has been paid or 15 payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006

31. Transfer Pricing

As per the Transfer Pncing Rules of the Income tax Act, 1961 every Company 15 required to get a transfer pncing
study conduced to detcrmine whether the international transactions with associated cnlerprises were undertaken at an
arin's length hasis for each financial year end. Sinee the law tequires extstence of sucht intormation and documentation
to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updatmg the documentation for the international
transactions cntered indo with the assoated enterprises during the financial year, The management 1s of the opinon
that us international tiansactions are a1 arm’s length so that the afoiesaid legislation will not have any impact on
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

32 Previous year's figures have been presented for the purpose of comparison and have been regroupec where

NECCE5ATY

Tor and on behalf of the Board
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AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)

1

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Wipro Energy IT Services India
Private Limited (Formerly SAIC India Private Limited), as at 31 March, 2011, the
Prot and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the vear
ended on that date, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
India Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financlal statements are free of maternal misstatements,
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also mcludes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estrmates made by the management, as well as
evawating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our optnion.

Without quallifying our opinian attention is invited to Note 16 of Schedule 13 wherein it
18 stated that the Company has not accounted for and disclosed detals of employee
share based payments as required under the guldance note on employee share based
payments 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2003 i1ssued by the Central
Government of India In terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act,
1955, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4
& 5 of the said Order

Further to gur comments in paragraph 3 and In the Annexure referred to n paragraph 4
above, we report as follows:

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

. in our opinion, proper boeks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examinatwon of those books,

€. the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement deait
with by this report are 1n agreement with the boaks of account;

d 11 our opimon, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Elow

Htatemnent dealt with by this report are In comphance with the accounting standards
referred to in sectfon 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956;

!
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e In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the said accounts read together with the notes thereon give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, In the manner so required and
give a true and falr view i conformity with the accounting principles generaliy
accepted in India:

. nthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affalrs of the Company as at 31
March, 2011;

iil. 1n the case of the Proftt and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on that date; and

hir. 1n the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the
year ended ¢n that date,

6. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as at 31 March,
2011, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors 15 disqualified as
at 31 March, 2011, from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 274(1)(g) of
the Companies Act, 1956.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Registration Ng. 015125N)

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner
(Membership No, 87104)

GURGAON, 17 September, 2011
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I ' RE
(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

Hawving regard to the nature of the Company’s business/activities/results for the
year, clauses (i1} and (xiil), of paragraph 4 of Compames {Auditor's Report) Order
(CARQ), 2003 are not applicable to the Company,

In respect of its fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including
quantitatwe details and situation of fixed assets.

b According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a
programme cf physically venfying all its fixed assets once In every accounting
period of two years, which In our opinion 15 reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its business According to the information and
explanations given to us, the management had carried out a physical verification
of fixed assets during the year. The discrepancies noticed on such venfication
were not matenal and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of
account,

z. The fixed assets disposed off during the year, In our opinion, do not constitute a
substantial part of the fixed assets of the Company and such disposal has, in our
opinian, not affected the going concern status of the Company.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured,
to/from compantes, firms or other parties listed in the Register mamntained under
Sectlon 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

tn our opinton and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
s an adequate Internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of Its business for the purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of
services. The Company’s operations do nobt give rise to purchase of inventory and
sale of goods. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any majer
weakness in such internal control system.

In our opimion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no transactions of purchase of goods and materials and sale of goods and
services made i pursllance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register
mamtained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating duning
:he period to Rs. 500,000 or more in respect of each party.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Zompany has not accepted any deposit from the publc during the year. Therefore,
she provisions of clause (vi) of paragraph 4 of CARO are not apphcable to the
Zompany.

[n our opinion, the internal audit function carried out during the year by a firm of

Zhartered Accountants appointed by the Management have been commensurate
with the size of the Company and nature of Its business,

1
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Vi,

X1

Xl

Xl

XV,

xv

XVI

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1)
of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the Company.

According to the information and explanatrons given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us*

a. The Company has generally been regular In depositing its statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Employees State
Insurance, Customs Duty, Service Tax, Cess and other materlal statutory dues
applicable to it within the prescribed time with the appropriate authonties and
there are no undisputed amount payable In respect of these dues which have
remained outstanding as at 31 March, 2010 for a peried of more than six
months from the date they became pavable.

b There were no dues in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Wealth Tax, Employees State Insurance, Customs Duty, Service Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

We are informed that operations of the Company do not give rise to any Investor
Education and Protection Fund and Excise Duty.

The Company dees not have accumulated losses. The Company has not incurred any
cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

In our opimon and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the
Company has not taken loans from financizl institutions or banks or issued any
debentures

In our opimon and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of securlty by way of
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our optmon and accarding to the nformation and explanations given to us, the
Company 15 not dealing in shares, securities and debentures, Therefore, pravisions
of clause {xiv) of paragraph 4 of CARO are not applicable to the Company

In our opimien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for lcans taken by others from banks or
financial institutions

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any term |oan,

In qur opimion and according to the mfermation and explanations given to us and on

an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that funds
raised on short-term basis have not been used during the year for long- term

investment,
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xvil, According to the information and explanations given to us, during the period covered
oy our audit report, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares
to parties and companies covered In the register maintained under Section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

xvil  According to the information and explanations given to us, durlng the year covered
hy our audit report, the Company has not issued any secured debentures,

xix. During the year covered by our audit report, the Company has not raised any money
by way of pubhc 1ssue.

%X. To the best of our knowiedge and belief and according to the information and
axplanations given to us, no fraud on the Company and no fraud by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 015125N)

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner
{Membership No. 87104)

GURGAON, 17 September, 2011



WIFRO ENERGY I'T SERVICES INOIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2011

Schedutle As at As at
Reference 31.03.2011 31.03,2010
Rupees Rupees
SQURCES OF FUNDS
1 SHAREHOLDERS' FUND
3 Share copital 1 8,791,360 8,418,860
b Share appiication money gendlng for algtment - 37,250,000
£ Reserves B surplus 2 275,200,185 151,375,277
2. LOAN FUNDS
a Secured Inan 3 - 1,019,557
288,091,545 198,063,694
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
3. FIXED ASSETS
& Gross black 4 159,566,388 153,655,654
b Less. Accumulated depreciation 11B,622,212 102,718, 094
¢ Ivet block 40 044 176 50,937,560
4, INVESTMENTS 5 - 2,675,560
S. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 22,315,096 20,999,644
{see note 7)
5. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
a Sundry debtors 6 229,009,000 135,734,119
b Unbilied revenue 32,037,283 28,456,129
c Cash & bank balances b4 38,336,182 232,104,099
d Loans and advances 8 57,660,087 63,116,696
357,042,552 459,411 643
7. LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 9
a Currgnt liabilities 84,643,567 134,015,247
b, Prowisions 47,570,712 201,945,666
132 214,279 335,960,813
8, HNET CURRENT ASSETS 224 B2B 273 123,450,730
288,091,545 198,063,694
hoves farrming pert of the accounts 13

The schetules referrad to above from an integral part of the Belance Shee

interms of our repart httached

For DELDITTE HASKINS f SELLS For and on behalf of the Boar
<h rtered Accoumanl‘
W‘Kj E% . _
JITENDRA AGARWAL CAYAPATRA NEVATIA SUSRAMANIAMN LAKSHMANAN
Partner Cirectar Qiractar
Lul

(*
VALERIAN JOHN FEAMANDES
Company Secretary

Place CMURGRAD M Place 'Eﬁﬂ'la
P17 SEP 2D oate q/w/



WIPRO ENERGY I'T SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly

SALIC Indma Private Limited)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2011

1

&

7

INCOME

a. Income from operations
b, Other incorr e

. EXPENDITURE

a Payments to and provisions for employees
b Adminisrative and other expenses

¢ lnterest expense

d Depreciation

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

PROVISION FOR TAXATION

a Current income tax
b. Deferred income [ax

PROFIT AFTER TAX
profit brought forward

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

a Transfer to General Reserve
b Proposed Dividend
¢. Tax on proposed dividend

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Earnings per equlty share
(Face Value of Rs 10 per share] (See note 13}

Baslc
Dilutive

Notes forming pat of the accounts

Schedule Year ended Year ended
Reference 31.03,2011 32_:03.2010
Rupees Rupees

835,286,009 920,475,658

10 20,326,626 3,697,603
§55,612,635 924,173,261

11 476,350,112 557,615,061
12 211,836,075 237,734,005
30,3086 270,492

4 26,667,986 29,453 780
714,884 479 825,073,338

140,728,156 99,099,923

51,000,000 35,000,000
(1,319,252} (274,847}

91,047,408 64,374,770

87,936,510 203,538,537

178,083,918 267,913,307

- 15,657,718

- 140,914,879

- 23,404,200

178,983 918 87,935,510

106 61 76 4b

106 61 73.23

13

‘The schedules reterred to above from an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

tn terms of our report attached

For DELOXTTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accodntants

A

ITENDRA AGARW
Partner

Place: (mutk

Date:

3SR

DAYAPATZ MNEVATIA

For and on behalf of the Board

o

Cirector

Sew

VALERIAN JOHN FERNANDES
Company Secretary

piace  Rowngalote
Cate*

Y Jzelt

SUBRAMANIAN LAKSHMANAN
Director



WIPROD ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2011

A. Cash flow from Operating Actlvitles

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss / (Profit) on retirement / sale of assets
Gain on closure of subsidlaries

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for .
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in pther recelvables
Increase/ (Decrease) In provisions
Increase/ (Decrease) trade payables and other liabilitles
Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes paid

Net Cash from Operating Actlvities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activitles
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Sale of fixed assets
Proceeds from Closure of Subsldiary
Dividend Pald (including dividend distribution tax)
Interest recelved
Gain on closure of subsidianes
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest patd
Proceeds/(Payment) of short term borrowings
Net Cash from Financing Actlvities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yaar

As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARW.
Partner

DAYAPA

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Rupees Rupoes
140,728,156 99,099,923
26,667,986 29,453,780
30,306 270,492
(3,510,630} (2,868,147}
£,000 896,969
(9,639,201} -
154,282,617 126,853,017
(96,855,435) (48,453,927)
(6,726,571} (7,732,090}
5,887,585 9,814,557
(49,371,680} (56,126,633)
7,216,516 24,355,224
(34,847,482} (39,042,339)
[(27,630,966) (14,687,015)
(16,674, 602) {6,501,832)
(6,000) 653,085
2,675,560 -
(164,219,079) -
3,597,832 2,972,892
9,639,201 -
(165,087,0889) (2,875,855)
(30,306) (270,492}
1,019,557 2,036,016
1,049,863 2,306,508
(193,767,917 {19,869,378)
232,104,059 251,973,477
38,336,182 232,104,099

NEVATIA
Director

For and on behalf of the Board

i

SUBRAMANIAN LAKSHMANAN
Director

M
Place. GRS

Fuwanda

VALERIAN JOHN FERNANDES
Campany Secretary

place: Tam 0,,0.0.1{_

Date. i o3f 2o Mt



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

As at As at
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
3,500,000 (Previous year 3,500,000) Equity Shares 35,000,000 35,004,000
of Rs. 10 each
158,000 {Previcus year 150,000} 10% Optionally Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (OCCPS) of Rs. 100 each 15 000, 000 15,000,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
879,136 {Preyvicus Year 841,886} Equity Shares
of Rs. 10 each 8,791,360 8,418,860
OF the above’
1 879,136 {Previous year 841,886) equity shares are held by
Science Applications International Corparation - the
Holding Company and Its nominees)
2. 37,250 [Previous year Nil] equity shares of Rs. 10 each are allotted
at premium &s Fully paid pursuant to contract without payment being
recelved in cash.
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a. Capital Redemption Reserve 14,055,960 14,055,960
b. Share Premium Account
(i) Opening balance 33,725,089 33,725,089
(ily Addition during the year 36,877,500 -
70,604,589 23,725,089
¢. General Reserve
(1) Opening balance 15,657,718 -
(i} Add' Transferred from Profit and iess account - 15,657,718
(i) Clesing balance 15,657,718 15,657,718
d. Profit and loss account 178,683,918 87,936,510
279,300,185 151,375,277
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
From others - 1,019,557

(See note 11) - 1019, 557




WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

{Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

SCHEDULE 4
FIXED ASSETS (AT COST)
{aH amounts in Rupess)
Particuldre GROSS BLOCK DEPRECLATION NEY BLOCK
Az at Additons Deletions/ As at As at For the year Defations/ A5 at s at As at
10 Adjust: tx 35.03.203% 31.031.2010 Adwstments | 31.03,2011 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

TANGIBLE ASSETS
a Leasehold Improvements. 45,90%,869 - - 45,905,869 26,584,336 § 636,736 - 35,221,072 10,684,797 19,321,533
b Pant & Madunery

- Compulers 47,412,265 16,209,375 £,649,546 50,572,094 12,426,036 9,102,907 6,649,546 34,879,397 16,092,697 14,956,229

- Office Equipment 35,673,527 1,472,377 1,031,680 35,934,224 23,558,611 5,831,242 1,011,680 28,378,173 7 556,051 11,914,916
€. Furniture and fixtures 8,028,766 491,625 1.257 740 7,262,641 7,052,601 962,388 1,257,750 6,757,239 505,402 976,165
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
d Computer Software 16,835,227 4,501,225 1,844,892 19,491,560 13,096,51¢ 2,134,713 1,844,892 13,386,331 6,105,229 1,738,717
TFOTAL 153,655,654 16,674,602 10,763,868 | 159,566,398 | 102,718,094 76,667,986 10,763,868 | 118 622312 30,944,176 50,937,560
Frevials year 151,432,576 6,501,832 3,278,754 153,655,654 75,693,014 258,253 780 3,728,700 102,716 054 £0,537,560 75,439,562




WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

SCHEDULE 5

INVESTMENTS - AT COST
{Non-Trade and Unquoted - Long Tarm)

Nil (Previous year &) equlty shares of USD 10,000 each, fully paid
up 1 Scicom Technologies Inc |, USA, a wholly owned subsidlary

NIi (Previous year 1,000} equity shares of GBP 1 each, fully

patd up In Sciccm Technologles Ltd , UK, & wholly owned
subsidiary

SCHEDULE &

SUNDRY DEBTORS
{Unsecured, considerad good}

a Qutstanding for more than six months
b Others

SCHEDULE 7
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
a Balances with scheduled banks In:

{1} Current accounts
(i} Fixed deposit accounts®

* Fixed deposits under hen with bank

As at As at
31.03.2011 31,03.2010
Rupees Rupees
- 2,587,500
- 88,060
- 2,675,560
- 3,881,436
229,005,004 131,853,283

229,009,000

135,734,719

307,273 384,090
38,028,909 231,720,000
38,336,182 332,104,099
28,909 220,000

-

M



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly Scicom Technologies Private Limited)

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE 8

LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)

3, Interest accured and not due

b Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for vaiue
to be recewved

¢ Balances with excise authortles

d Secunty deposit

e Advance tax [net of provision for Income tax Rs, 174,096,251
and fringe beneflt tax Rs, 8,455,934 ]

SCHEDULE 9
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
a. Current llabilities

. Sundry creditors
-Micre and small enterprises {See npte 18)
~Others

il Other Yabllities

b. Provisions

B Prowvision for tax [net of advance tax Rs, 220,718,811
and fringe benefit tax Rs. 8,455,934 |

i Provision for tax on proposed dividend

il,  Provision for employee benefits

w Provisign for proposed dividend

13,571 100,773
12,469,526 12,824,501
15,605,972 8,508,426
29,571,018 29,587,018

- 12,095,978
57,660,087 63,116,696
75,053,408 121,197,382
9,580,158 12,817,865
84,643,567 134,015,247
4,056,540 -
- 23,404,200
43,514,172 37,626,587
- 140,914,879
47,570,712 201,945,666

A



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{ Formerly SAIC India Private Limitad)

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

SCHEDULE 10
OTHER INCOME

a Interest income on fixed geposits
[Tax deducted at source Rs, 347,482 (Previous year
Rs 496,313}]
Galn on ctosure of subsidianes
Service tax refung
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
. Miscellaneous incame

(1« S T~

SCHEDULE 11
PAYMENTS TC AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

a Salanes, allowances and perquisites
b. Contribution ta prowvident fund and other fund
¢. Staff welfare expenses

SCHEDULE 12
OPERATING AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

a Rent and fura charges
b. Legal and prafessional charges {see note 5)
¢. Communication expenses
d. Repairs & maintenance
(1) Plant and machinery
{u) Others
Insurance
Travelling ar ¢ conveyance
Loss on fore gn exchange fluctuations (net)
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Water and electricity
Rates and taxes
. Advertising & business promotion expgnses
Trainlng expenses
m Printing & statlonery
n. Miscellangous expenses

— X O ™o

Year anded Year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Rupees Rupees

3,510,630 2,868,147

9,639,201 -

5,805,883 -

6,000 -
1,364,912 828 456
20,326,626 3,697,603
450,342,677 529,742,753
16,765,530 17,688,685
9,241,905 10,183,623
476,350,112 557,615,061
42,202,521 44,809,206
51,274,802 47,251,244
1¢,619,080 9,603,744
1,544,810 2,342,315
22,145,849 20,673,003
4,659,286 5,008,505
58,869,341 63,194,606
427,152 23,777,782
- 896,969
14,827,721 14,038,912
39,250 9,600
248,818 826,958
1,788,086 1,673,244
1,657,839 1,895,526
1,530,510 1,431,891
211,836,075 237,734,005

M



WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
{Formerly SAIC India Private Limited)
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

RCHEDULE 13
NOTES FORMING PART QF THE ACCQUNTS

1. Background

SAIC Tndia Private Limited (‘the Company‘) was ingcorporated on 27 March, 1996 and is 2
subsidiary of Sclence Applications International Corperation, a company incorporated in the
US A (‘the Parent’) The Company mainly provides technical services to its Parent and other
SAIC group companies on 8 ‘cost plus markup’ basis (0 accerdance with agreements entered
1nto with the Parent and ather SAIC group companies,

Subsequent to the vear end the shares of the Campany have been acquired by Wipro Limited
(‘wWipro} and Its nominees consequent to which the Company became a wholly owned
subsidiary of Wipro with effect from 10 June, 2011 Thereafter, the Company apphed for a
change of name and a fresh cerlificate of incorparation effecting the name change to "WIPRD
ENERGY IT SERVICES INGIA PRIVATE LIMITED' was issued by the Registrar of Companies,
N C.T of Deitn & Haryana on 1 September, 2011 under section 23{1) of the Companies Act,
1956.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are preparcd under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting and 1n accordance with the Genszrally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP’Y in Indla and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, to the extent applicable and in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as adopted consistently by the Company. The
significant accounting policies are as follows:

a. Use of estimates

The preparatlon of financial statements requires the management of the Company to
mahke estinates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
Labilties and disclosures retating to the contingent hatilities as at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of Income and expenses dunng the penod.
Example of such estimates Inciude provisions for doubtful debts, provision for incame
taxes and the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets Ceontingencies are
recorded when it |s probable that a hablity will be incurred, and the amaunt can be
reasonably estimated Actual results could differ from such estimates,

b Fixed assets and depreciation

i All fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Cest includes
purchase price and all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to working
condition for intended use

1l Depreclation an all assets Is charged from the month when the fixed assets are
ready for their Intended use and up to the maonth of disposal,

ill  Depreciation is provided on a stralght-line basis at rates based on management’s
estimate of useful (ives, which 1s higher than the rates prescribed In Schedule XIV
to the Companles Act, 1956 The depreciatlion rates are as follows.:

Particulars Life in years
Computers 4-6
Qffice equipment S
Furniture and fittings 5
Leasehold Impraovements Peripd of lease or 5

years whichever |s tower
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Assets costlng Rs 5,000 or less indwidually have been fully depreclated in the year of
purchase

Revenue recognition

i, Revenue from software developrnent on fixed price contracts Is recognised according
to the milestone achieved as specified In the contract, and is adjusted on the
"proportionate complietion” methad based on the work completed.

i Revenue comprising technical services rendered to the Parent and other SAIC group
companies is recognised on delivery of services to the customers and 15 accounted
for on ‘Cost Plus’ basis in accordance with the contracts entered into with the Parent
and ather SAIC grgup companies

W On time and material contracts, revenue is recognised based on time spent as per
the terms of the speciflc contracts

Investments

Long-term Investments are stated at cost, less provision for other than temporary
dlminution in the carrying value of each investment,

Foraign currency transactions

Foreigm exchange transactlons are recorced at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Reahsed gamns and losses on foreign exchange transactlons
during the year are recognised In the profit and loss account, Foreign currency assets
and habilities denominated In foreign currencies, as at the year end are translated into
rupees at the year end rates and resultant gans/losses on foreign exchange
transiations are recogrused in the profit and loss account.

In case of forward contracts for foreign exchange, the difference between the forward
rate and the exchange rate at the date of the transaction are recognised over the life of
the contract,

Laases
L. Operating Lease

Leases where the lassor effectively retalns substantially all the nsks and benefits of
ownership of the leased asset are classifled as operating leases Ogerating lease
charges are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-
I'ne basls over the lgase term,

il. Finance Leasa

Leases under which the Company assumes sunstantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance ieases The lower of fair value of asset and
present value of minlmum lease rentals 15 capitalised as fixed assets with
corresponding amount shown as jease llabihty The principal component In the
iease rentals is adjusted against the tease liallity and interest companent s
charged to profit and loss account.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and ceferred tax. Income tax s determined in
accordance with the provisions of the [ncome tax Act, 1961

Defer-ed tax assets and liabilitres are recognised for the future tax consequences of
timing differences, being the differences between taxable income and accounting
income that onginate In gne period and are capable of reversal In one or more
subsequent periods, subject to the consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets and
liabilitles are measurad using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date



h.

Employee benefits
i,  Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid In
exchange of services rendered by employees Is recognlsed dunng the period when
the employee renders the services, These benefits Include salarles, wages, bonus
and performance incentives.

il, Post-employment benefit plans

The Company’s employee’s provident fund scherme is a defined contribution plan The
Company’s contribution paid/payable under the scheme 1s recognised as an expense
in the profit and ioss account during the pencd in which the employee renders the
related service.

The Cornpany's gratuity 15 defined beneflt plan. The present value of the oblgation
under such defined benefit plan Is determined based on actuanal valuation using the
projected unit credit sethod, which recognises each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately
ta builld up the final obligation The obligation 1 measured at the present vatue of
the estimated Future cash flows The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligauon under deflned benefit plans, is based on the market yieids on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediateiy in the profit and loss account

The Company has also taken the group policy with Life Insurance Corporation of
India (LIC) as part of SAIC Branch acquisition to meet its obligation towards gratulty
Liability with respect to the gratuity plan is getermingd based on an actuarial
valuation done by an wndependent actuary at the year end and any differential
between the fund amount as per LIC and the actuarial valuatlon Is charged o
revenue,

Benefits comprlsing compensated absences constitute other long term employee
berefits, The iabillty for compensated absences Is provided on the basis of an
actuaral valuation done by an Independent actuary at the year end, Actuarial gains
and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

Earnings per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share In accordance with
Accounting Standard 20, Eamnlngs Per Share Basic earnings per equity share have been
computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding for the year,

Druted earnings per equity share have been computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and ditutive potentlal equity shares outstanding during the
year,

Provisions and contingancies

A provislon is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and rel:able estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation A contingent lability ts recognised where there is a
possible oblgation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, requlre an
outBow of resources



k. Impairment of assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrylng amounts of its fixed
assets to determne whether there 15 any indication that those assets suffered an
impairment loss. If any such Indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset (s
estimated n order to deterrmine the extent of impairment loss, Recoverable amount 15 the
higher of an asset's net seling price and value in use In assessing value in use, the
estirmated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset and from Its
disposal are discounted ta their present value using a pre-discount rate that reflects the
current market assessmeants of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Reversal of imparrment loss 15 recognised immediately as Inceme in the profit and loss
account.

l. Segment Information

i.  Business segments
The Company operates in a singie bus:iness segment and Is pnmarily engaged in
the business of development and engmeering of computer software and lending of
services for research and development of computer saftware amd application
software to its Parent and other SAIC group companles,

H. Geographic segments
Secondary segmental reporting is perforrmed on the basis of the geographical
lgcation of customers. The Company provides services overseas primanly in Unlted
State of America, United Kingdom and others

Geographical revenues are segregated based on the lacation of the customer who
1$ Invoiced or in relation to which the revenue is otherwise recognised

3. Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Rs.} {Rs.)
I, Bank guarantees for executing general bond 28,809 220,000
with customs, sales tax and excise
departments.
it. Estimated amount of contracts, remalning to 10,138,673 -

be executed on capltal account (net of
advances) and not pravided for

4.  Pursuant to the approvai of the Board of Directors vide 1ts meeting held on 12 QOctober, 2007,
the Cornpany had during the financial year 2007~08 acquired the business of India Branch
Qffice of Science Applications International Carparation (‘India Branch Office of SAIC’) at an
aggregate value of Rs 37,250,000 The value was determined by adding a premium of 5% to
the fair value of India Branch Dffice of SAIC as per the valuation repart of an independent
accounting firm

In accordance with agreement entered into between Sclence Applications International
Carporation and the Company thls purchase consideration was to be settled through issue of
equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Campany at a valus of Rs, 1,000 per share each fully
pad. During the current year the shares have been allotted after recewving appraval from
Reserve Bank of India



5.

Auditors remuneration *

Legal and Professional fees include auditor’s remuneration as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
{Rs.} (Rs.)
a Audit Fee

- Statutory audit 2,225,000 2,100,000
- Tax audit 325,000 300,000
b QOther services 600,000 1,100,000
¢ Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 58,210 44,950
Total 3,208,210 3,544,950

* £xclusive of service tax

Leases
Operating Lease:

The Company has entered nta operating lease agreement for office premises, The future
mimmum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases are set out balow:

Particulars As at As at
31,03.2011 31,03.2010

{Rs,) (Re.)

Minimum lease payments outstanding:

a Not later than one year 41,255,608 44,092,560

b, Later than one year and not fater than 14,907,684 56,126,792

five years
¢. Later than five years - -
Expense recognised i profit and 1oss 44,457,565 39,842,225

account during the current year

Finance Lease:

The Company acquired computers under finance lease. Future minimum lease payments
under these finance leases as of 31 March, 2011 are as follows

Due within Due between Total
1 year 1to S years amount due

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.}
Minimuen lease payments - - -
(1,049,863) {-) {1,045,863)
Less' Amount representing interest - - -
(30,306} {-) (30,306}

present value of mimmum iease - -

payments (1,019,557) {2 {(1,019,557)

Note: Amounts |n brackets represent previous year figures.



7.

10

Deferred tax

. Deferred tax assets and llabilties are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied

by the same governing taxation laws

b. The break up of deferred tax assets/liabllities and reconcilistion of current vear deferred

tax charge is as follows

(All amounts in Rupees)

Opening Charged/ Closing
{Credited)
to PRL
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax impact of diference between 2,854,856 (2,590,850) 5,445,706
carrying amount of fixed assets in
t1e financlal statements and the
income tax return,
Tax impact of expenses charged in
t1e financial but allowable as
ceductions in future years under
ncome tax
+ Lease equalzation 2,242,353 783,803 1,458,550
+ Provislon for employee beneflts 13,568,802 (1,370,085) 14,538,888
« Disallowance under section 2,333,833 1,857,880 475,952
40(a)

Total 20,999,844 {1,319,252) 22,319,096
Met Deferred Tax Assats 20,999,844 {1,850,65%) 22,850,503

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2011 31.03.2010

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Earnings In foreign exchange
Technlcal services 742,571,006 916,146,164
Expanditure in foreign exchange (Cash basis)
Travelling expense 34,742,162 37,020,011
Legal and professional charges 26,995,392 34,519,693
Salanes, allowances and perquisites 48,019,326 31,445,754

109,756,880 102,989,458
Managearial Remuneration
Emoluments paid to Managing Director by Sclence 12,667,705 30,809,588

Applications International Corporation and reimbursed by

campany

11. fecured loans are secured by computers acquired under finance leases,

Jk



12. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on ‘Employee

Benefits'.

a.,

Description of type of plan ~ Gratuity Plan

The Company makes contribution to the Employee’s Group Gratulty-cum-Life Assurance
scheme of the Life Insurance Carporation of India, a funded deflned benefit plan for
qualfying employees The scheme provides for fump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of emptoyment

The following tables set out the Funded status of the gratuity plan and amaounts recognised

In the Company’s financial statements as at 31 March, 2011,

Chang= in benefit obligations:

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
{(Rs$.) {Rs.)
Present vatue of abligations at the beglnning of the year 21,914,521 16,245,297
Current service cost 5,514,687 5,254,692
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 1,753,162 1,218,397
Actuarial galn on obligation {684,550} (601,204)
Benefits paid (1,480,774) (202,661)
Present value of abligations at the year end 27,017,046 21,914,521
Change In Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 2,338,976 2,155,738
Expected retumn on plan assets 198,813 183,238
Emplayers Cantrlibuticns 661,315 -
Benefits paid {657,837) -
Actuarial galn/{Loss) (41,952) -
Falr value of plan assets as at year end 2,499,315 2,338,876
Nat Liability {i-i1) 24,517,731 19,575,543
Net Cost for the year ended 31 March, 2011:
Current Service cost 5,514,687 5,254,692
Past Service cost - -
Interest cost 1,753,162 1,218,397
Expected return on plan assets {198, B13) (183,238)
Actuarial {galn}/Loss recogrised dunng the year (642,598) {601,204)
Net Cost €.426,436 5,688,647
Principal actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate (p.a.) 8.10% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on assets (p.a.} 8.00% 8 50%
Salary escatation rate (p.a.} 9 00% 9.00%



MNotes:

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vlelds of Indian
Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of
obfigations

2 The estimates of future salary Increases considered takes Imto account the
inflation, senlority, promotion and other relevant factors.

3. Demographic assumptlans.

a. Retirement age 60 years

b, Mortality rate Published rates under LIC
(1994-96) mortallty tables

v. Additional information

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09
Present Value of  benefit 27,017,046 21,914,521 16,245,297
obligation

Fawr Value of plan assets 2,499,315 2,338,976 2,155,738

Excess of obligation over plan 24,517,731 19,575,545 14,089,559
assets

Experienca Adjustment:
Qn plan llability 412,948 3,626,852 -

On plan assets (41,952) - -

13, Earnings per share

Particulars Units Ysar ended Year ended
31.03.2011 31,03.20190
a. Net profit after tax ks ©1,047,408 64, 374,770
b Weighted average of number of No. of shares 854,031 841,886

equity shares used In computing
basic earnings per share

¢ Basic earnings per share {a/b) Rs. 106 61 76.46
(face value - Rs 10 per share)
d  Effect of potential equity shares No. of shares - 37,250

related to share application money
pending allotment

e. Welghted average of number of No of shares 854,031 879,136
eguity shares used in computing
diluted earnings per share {b+d}

f Dliuted earnings per share (a/e) RS, 106.61 73.23
(face value - Rs, 10 per share}
¢. Effect of potential equity shares (c-f) RS, - 323

14, Qutstanding forelign currency exposures



The Company does not use forelgn currency forward contracts to hedge ts risks asscclated
with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commtments and forecasted
transactions

Foreign currency exposures which are not hedged by a denvative Instrument or otherwise as
at 31 March, 2011:

Currenc Payable Rupee Receivable Rupee
aquivalent aquivalent
{Rs.) (Rs.)

Uso 420,143 18,759,400 5,842,172 260,852,981
(1,156,075) (52,185,221) (3,591,957) (162,140,934)

Ger - - 2,687 193,307
() ) (13,219 (899,325)

SAR . . - .
() (-} (96,000) (1,150,589)

Note; Amounts in brackets represent previeus year flgures.

15, Related Party Disclosures

a. List of related parties

Til

Uitimate Holding Company
+ SAIC Inc., U.S5.A.
Holding Company ,
« Science Applications Intermational Corporation, U.S A.
Substidianes

« Scicom Technologles Inc. {STI)
« Scicom Technatogies Limited (5TL)

Feliow Subsidiarles

« SAIC Limited (SAIC Ltd )
+  STPL Holdings LLE (STPL)

Key Managemeant Personne!

« Sudipta Gautam



b. Transaction/ balances cutstanding with Related Parties:

Transaction / Holding Fellow Subsgidiaries Subsidiaries
Outstanding Company
Balances
SAIC SAIC Lid. STPL STI 5TL

TRARSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR

Sa es /Services 736,976,970 38,964,975 . - -
(597,451,819) (286,263,634) () () (-)

Re:mbursemnents of 44,716,425 . - - -
@y penses (paid) (66,001,505) (-) () () {+)
Dividend Income . R - 4.862.987 4,776,214
(-} (-} ) (-] {-)

Dividend - - - - -
(140,886,926) () (27,952) (-] {)

Share Camtal Refund - - 2,587,500 ' 88,060

(-3 -3 (-} {=)

BALANCES OUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END

Degtors/Unbilled 246,347,578 11,504,988 - - -
revenues (116,407,148) (39,371,303) (=) () ()
Paybles 18,759,400 - - - -

{52,185,221) {1 () (-1 (-}

Share application - - - - .
money {37,250,000) {-) (- (-} (-

Provision for dividend - -
(140,886,926) (-] {27,952) {-) (-)

Mates: AmouJnts in brackets represent the previous year figures.
16. Employae Share Option Plan(ESOP)

Under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (‘the Plan’) of SAIC, Inc. {the ukimate holding
company), eligible employees of the Company have been granted coptions/shares in
accordance with the terms and condltions as specifled 1n the sald Plan. As per the Guidance
Necte on “Accounting for Employee Share-based payments”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accauntants of Inda, the Company 1s required to record compensation cost and
disclose inforenation relating to the shares granted to the employees of the Corrpany, under
the above Plan,

Ouring the current year, the ultimate holding company has charged an amount of Rs N
{Previous year Rs 540,B84) as stock expense pertairing to the abave Plan from the Company,
which has been accounteg for by the Cormpany

Since, the Plan 15 assessed, managed and adrnisterad by the ultimate holding company, the
Cempany does not have all the required Information to compute the complete stock option
expensg for the options/shares granted to the eligible employees of the Company.
Consequently, the Company has not been able to account for the complete stock option
expense cost ang disclose all the required detalls of the above Plan as per the said Guldance
Note,



17. Segmental reporting

Detalls India Outslide Indla Total
uUnited States United Others
of Amaerica Kingdom
Segment revenue - 682,115,514 90,747,678 62,421,817 835,266,009

{1,329,494) {597,451,819) (302,639,072) (19,055,273) (920,475,658}

Segment assets

95,996,269 246,347,578 11,698,290 3,000,413 357,042,550
(369,833,756) (116,407,148)  (40,270,628) (7,513,072) (534,024,607)

Capital expenditure 16,674,602 - - - 16,674,602

(6,501,832) -} (-} (- (6,501,832)

18, Disclosures as per Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006
{MSMED)

Based on the information available with the Company the balance due to Micro & Small
enterprises as defined under the Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Davelopment {MSMED)
Act, 2006 15 s, Nil {Previous year Rs Nil) and no nterest during the year has been paid ar Is
payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006,

19. Transfer Pricing

As per the Transfer Pricing Rules of the Income tax Act, 1961 every Company IS requlred to
get a transfer pricing study conducted to determing whether the international transactions with
associated enterprises were undertaken at an arm's length basis for each financial year end,
Since the law requires existence af such informatlon  and documentation to be
contemporanecus in nature, the Company is In the process of updating the documentation for
the Internatlonal transactions entered Into with the associated enterprises during the financla!
year The management Is of the opinlon that its intermationsl transactlons are at arm’s length
s0 that the aforesaid leglslation will not have any Impact on the financhal statements for the
year ended 31 March 2011

20, Previous year's figures have been presented for the purpose of comparison and have been

regrozped where necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board

DAYAPATRA NEVATIA SUBRAMANTIAN LAKSHMANAN
Director Director
-~ s
r\g!ﬁ‘)
Ry rues

VALERIAN JOHN FERNANDES
Company Secretary

Place: "e,mnauﬂa_]&

Date- ”1 5%)20/)
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detaris and situativn of tised asaets

by The Compuny has 8 regy &1 programme of physical venfvauon uf s fixed ussets by which all
Fxed assers ase vertfied in a phased maneer over o penad of three years In our upiman, Ui
peeindseiny of physical venfivatwon s reasonable bav g repard 10 the size of the Lompans and
the nrtune ol 1y Assete Ay miammed Wous, ma mueral doscrepan.ics were notiged an such
venfiitien

teh ] ined assets dispuasd ufl dutimy the vear sere mot susstanoal amd trercfore do oot oftea 9
EOING LORCETIY VKL mgliLn

1 I e £ ompeny dues nul hold any phyaal invesrery ant Per ge, W pacagtnph 1 tet g plicable
1 Tne € enpany by tetiher granted por hen wny loaus sevured or winsecaied o ur fiom vompanicy
Lirtite oF other parties covered i the repister mantained under sevnion 301 of the Compames act
1946
1 B o opinton and scoording 10 the nfamaton ard explananong povero vy hese o 2dignan

nunrtal contesl wvsiem cammensurate with the wze o1 the Csmpany and the rature ol s busins
with *ggaid 10 purchase ot fived nssels wed wilh 1eguid to the sale of sersices The el aties of th
Ce mpany do not involve purchase of inveuntory and tae saje of gords We have not nbserved am
wajor werh nesaes st e miernal viniiol svalor duning the conrsg of the auin

¥ fit wat opInpn urd aceorduig w ihe infurnuativn and vaplanations ziven fo us, there are 1O caairdas
. ad arrangements the parenilans of whnh need 1v be entéred o the register nomtaned unde
secton Ut e Comprines At 1930

Al Ipe Company has 0ol acvepted any depoaity frons the publi,
ATH Mo nzernad wind Lwas cwrrad onf diertng e veur
Yir ihe Cundral Gosenn ont Bos nor preserilred iy s niginties 0f wedt fovords umder Seviea 2094 iy

af the AL vor ary of £11¢ services rengeied by the Compans

™ i) Aviording Wb mtormatian And gaplarations given (o (s aod ost the batre of ow esvam aatien
ut ahe 1evaeds of the Campany amaurts dedueted aceited in the books of account i respeet ol
undsgputed ssatutory dues inclatirg Provident Fund, Frvplovees State Insyramee Income oy
“ery g §as and other matenal stalulary ducs hase genurl'y buwn regalarty deposated duniow s
vem by the Company with the sppropriate wihorities A explymed wus the Company did

Lave ey dues ol Aot 01 Invesinr Education and Piotection Fund, hales Mo Coastems Doy
Lxeiae Buty ang Wealth 1y

Swlapding e the anformatin and explarations gaven o us no sidssputed ameunts pavahle
respect ot Provadent Fund, Erpluyees Sste Insurnwe, income Tan Service Tax and utae
Bl st ary deds s oubsiandmg s A7 31 March 2015 tar & penod more than siv ol
o the e they Becs 1w pavable




BSR&Co

[ax and ather malerial statutory dues were ouIsianding as or 11 March 2013 tor a petiad
mare hdn sis monins from the date they became payable

1) Acuoroing la the ifarnten and explasation given to us thete are o disputed anmounts
paysble in respest of Sernce Tan The toliowing dues ol Income Tax have nol beur
deposited by the Company on ageoin 2t disputes

7
Sanme of Natwre i . Amaunt (Rs) ‘ Peripd so which the | Forum where dispute
the Statue e Ducs f amount relutes | Is pending
[PV . - i R
'
Incwme lnegume Tas = R 10000050 ) Aspessment Yea Depuny, Commussitm
Tan 2aaa-0y of Tuvome Tax

Aypesls Yinmb n

‘
L Al 1961
b

I

{Pvamt Inome lax He 101058, 140 | Asscsuncol Yeur Camimssiorss of
Tax | 009 1) ingome Tay Appeals
Act | %al 1 ' “Mun oA
A
Inueene tn~ome Tas Re 381,099 850 | Assessment Year C uaniasoner ol
| Tan . 20t o . Iacome Fan Appous
| Awiee) ) e I Muabw

*Nat gl amount paid under prown Ry 17,369,873

Aceprding o the wnlermalivn and explanations grven 1o us, the Company did not have
ans does 4 aecount of Sales Tax, Customs Dury, Fyeise Duty and Wealth Tux

’ The Lampany does rot have any accumuiated fosses w°he end f the Pnancial ysrr and bas
not iurred cash losses 1n the financial year 31d 10 the immediately preceding finauwial yeur

Y] The Company did not have any walslndiog duty W any Tinanc 0’ Insutubons bank or
debentuie helders duning the year

\Y The Cumgatty Bas nol granted any {owns drd advanues on the hasisy of seounhy by way of
rledge ot shares, debentures and viher securies

puil In cur upinawn and auentding w the imfannation and explanarons given to uy Ui Compuny
nat & chit tund! mudhe’ mutual denefit funds souiety

v Accordrng 1o the wformation and exp nnations grven ta us, the Company -~ nat deahing of
trading n sharey, secursies delvantires and ather investnoents

(S Avvording o 'he iforuanan and ecplanations glven 1o us, the Company BAS nol guver any
yuaraniee tar oans ruken by others rom banks or Finany el nstunons

w1 The Compars dad mil fieve and "enn foens owistanding during e wear
Nl According e the avbrmtatoan aed oo planatans givén W us wnd on an overall esan mavon of

e dnbance sheed ot the Company we mig of the opivien that the funds 1aised on shont ere
basis have not been used for tongrlerm imvestaent




BSR&Co

ey

The Cumpany §as nzt nede ame prelerental alleiment ol sharg s Wy companies: Tms pam
coversd m the vegister mnin aned urder Seetion 301 of the Ac

The Comprny Tid 100 uns e any oulsiand.ng debentutes during the year
The Company ks not rsed any Deney vy pubby 1ssues
Accoiding to the ) ormarion and explananon s ghven (0 s 00 huud o 01 by the Campuny

has been naneed or reprorted during Ihe Lourse of aue audu

fer BS R & Cu,
¢ hgetervel devehearants
e rentistrativn mopnbie 11 238%

Sugeiet Sachdev

Flarres

dlumbarship nuieber 203 43
Bangabore

Dag 19 Juma_ 22170
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Wipro Technology Services Limuted
“otes 1o the sceamits as of nnd for the yesr voded 31 Maich 2013
(Atmount in R, ercent share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

sammury of npnificant acesunting pubickes

Company ueeryHy

Wopru Lachindepy Serveeas Limned (the Compansy 'y wis incorparated an 15 yoprember 2004 ay
Cor lechnulogy Servizes Limiled as 0 owhaidan of Ctiverp Banking ¢ orporghun Purstant o the
share ourchase agigy nent dited 21 sanauey 28, all the shares of the Company were parchased my
Wipra Limied. pew the hoalding compaos of the Compoun

ve Fannpany¥ b ACHYITIES Lampiise saftwere elated support servaoes, prosd Iy whome e
e nnplugy seltware wolulons mantenute wd echnology I astu T suppon selvives

Bosg of preparncyn of fimanciul yutenrents

Tlhe Noaeinl state nenty are prepared and presented under the b storiedl LOS] Lonmvennon tn ¢
Avrual Dasiy of doouia B aid 0 scconianes wath she provlsions ol the Companes Agl s
f he Al ard the sccounung prop oy gunerally accepiad m India and comply with che
aveauniing standands preseribed i the Companies (Aceoiniing Standards) Rules, 2006 10 1he exrent
srplcahie

L'we ol estatmites

7w preparatian of finaneal statements i contursnn with tedera ly duecpted accowi ng pracn e
(L AAP T In e reguires Dlasaginont oomake eabitnales atd assuimpnons thar atect e mpore !
il b assels  abiaues pevenues diwd enpenses dnd 1 discle e of conbagent waaets g

labr iwies on the dae ut rhw figencnl sistements The eviunates and asslimptions used 12w
Nocanipiiy M2 Mnaneal amenienss are hyised upon mandgement s s aliaton ot the relevunt s
Aand zucumstances at of e date of i bnancial statements  Acsual esults may ditler from g
e.tinntes ased n prepanng the accampany g Bnancial smtements Ay revisian @ acuonatling
vanmares i tecognized prospeslively In coment und tuture perags




Wipry Fechnology Services Limrted
Nates to the secounis us of and for the year eaded 31 Muarch 2013 (continued)
{ \mount in Ry, except share and per share dat, unless otherwise stated)

14

Frged ussets and degrecution

Fuved dssets are onmied al vast o acguisition less decumi Jated depreciasun loss impairment los
anv The cosl of fived assets includes frelght duties, taxes and nCibentn’ eapetises sl s tae
aoquisition and islallibon ol the 2t

Deprecianen 1o provdel on the straight line methor  [he rales of deprecistion preserded 1
Suwedule NV o the At are considersd as the rinemum rates 11 the management’s esumate o i
watlul Big of ¢ fiked asset at the e of wgumiton ol die ssset or of the remaming usetul hit o
submequent review s shorree thai rhat envisaged in the atorgsad Schedule depreciatior 15 pros do
st 3 Tppher tae bused ol mansgu e’ s ¢samgie of the wwetul hls cemmng asetel L

Pugsudant bu this pul ¢ depuetiation avthe 1ived assets bas been provided o1 e followmg 1o~
which are ligner than the cortesponding rires presenbed 1 Sehidile XIV 10 the 4

Asacl ualeguln Depredation e
Funtue wnd fintuies taune,
(7 e equipeent 20000,
, L oMpuer equipren? 33 iy,
| Computer anflvare LRV
| Vi les R o _2R00%

L easehold amproveens’ and feased vehicles are doprecated vyer thy leaae erm o the ¢ nmaie |
ot tul bile of the aveely whithever is shorter

Al ussety indiv idually costing Rs 5,008 or less are deprecimted in 'uflin the y ear of purchase

Deprecsation en assets purchased o yolt' Jduning the year 15 recopmised on 8 orw raty Praais v i
statement ot profit and loss [rom up o thy month prior & the month in which the assets have ben
dsposed oft

Lmpairment of gssets

Ly Contpany assessey at eanh Liaange sheet dale whether thiere 1s any 1adicaion that gn assel 1.3
be mpared 11 any o udicabon txiats, the Company csumates the tecoverah © amount ©f 1he
assel [0 quch recoverdble ginsunt of the asset 15 less than it varrY g amosnt i Sy amuoni
1# reduced o (13 recoserble amouet The reduction 15 tregied as an wnponent luss and 1,
recogiized 0y the statemem of prafil and toss 1€ a1 the bu'ance sheet Jade there is an mdication i
a previously assessed mmpmonegnt loss na lenger exists, the recoverable amount i reassessed
the asset 1y reflecred ot the recoverabie wownt subpecl % & masunun GF deprectable storicat o«
The recaverable umoont s B gher of the aasels ney selhng proce and value o ase whieh wmeans e
pesent value of hiture (ash Nows expecied to arse om the cong nging use ul e asset @y o

cvunngd dispusal

Fmiplesy ee beneflts
Erovideni fund and emplosee stwie insurance

Thgible emplovces rece ve 'wmeits inm providert tund patimnestered by the Govermnenr (.
e juyees state msaranes L EST'E whieh are deliied coninbouton plins Bath e entpluyee aod t
Compuny make monthly contoibutions to the plan equal o 8 specitied percentsge ol e covern
cmpinyee's salary Asrepards ESL the abpiesee and emplos er ¢ach make monthly coninbutions
the £ mplayees Stare Insurance € orporasion




Wipra Technology hervices Linited
Nores to the gecounts as of and tor the veur ended 31 Mareh 2003 (rontioued)
tAmonnt in 143, Laeept share and per share Jatn, wolesd otherwise stated)

io

Enrpiuyer benefits (rontmurd)

The Lampany « co bttt 10 iese tonds 1 1ecugnized iy ua expiense n the statément 9t po it
and loss

Gratuiny

In aceotdanee wish the Puyment o1 Granets &gl 1972 b Campany provides foe a fump o
pavirzol 10 clgihle employees of renrement death ur IRIMINACON OF #0013 0% nient based v thy o

m salisry sad vears o empioyment with the Compsny Th gratusty fund s thanaged by the | te
Insurence Coporanon of Indm 10IC) The Company s ephipatron i respect of he gratuny pho
whigh 1s o defined senefis plan s prosided tor based on an acfuar 21 valudtson camed vt % a7
nlepradent sotoan uning the projected unil uedi methad  Actaarial gai, or luss v ey oginiges!
wimgshatgly i he singnent ot profit and Joss 4y INEAME oF ¢apense

Conipenssted shscices

e empluyees ut the Comipary are entitled 1o compensaied sbaetive tirongh prvslege leave, 1
shplasees can garry-torward o poation oi the unethzed accrued compensated sbaenes and ehhse |
i are penods of tectone cish Lumpensaliar al reurement death o winma shon o e phoy et
tor e wintbeed Jeoued amnpetsated abseave The Carrpary regords an ablangon |,
vempetesaled absenses i the penod nowhich e erployer meedes the wervces Ban ndie e -
orulemenm The Comrpats Teasures the capected cosd o) comprnsolod alnence v e adf it on o
arwunl tan b Comaany expeos W puy as desalt of the onied entitle nent tho has av, i a0
at the balanue sheet daie Long wrm compensated abscnces e accrued Pased on actuanal vaiuatio
atthe ba'wnee sheet date careied ot by Al independent scluary

Hes enne recognitiin

Kesentie 1o privianiy dernved lrom saftware end technology nfiustructure semvices wontr it
A Tangeinenis with customeny are aither on a fived prse o3 o 3 lunc-andd materind basiy

Ravenue from thine-aml-namgrial contragts 15 IEORmsed 3y the relatcd scrvives are perlosnic -
Revenue ham: fined pnce coniracrs 15 recopmsed based nn peiceniape of completun Percentugs ot
tenphaon s determmed based on projpcls costy mumed o dale as o percontage o wrzl esomal,
praect w086 (egyed o complete the praject Wher 1otad vy, estimate exieed revenue inom
mrangemens the eshmated Josses e recogmzal 18 e siaternent o! prolit uad loss o the pernn o
which such | waes begome pronabie rased or the Current Contracs e1l.males

Rovenue b services v reeopiised nel ol service @y in e perod v whuh the senvaee o
1ot dered, Exerse dity s pot appl cably mothe achivlties ot the Company

Linbuled revenue jocluded 03 alher Current asstts  epresents gurnirgs 11 ¢veess of billings as al i
halane g shegt dare

LI 8T U 156 13 FE O e oD Bine prupartanate bast

I sdend mueon morcoogised whon figh e receve s eatabuanod




Wipre Uechnology Services Limited
Nutes to the secounts as of und for the yenr ended 31 Mareh 2013 (cantinued)
{Amountm Rs, except shure und per share dara, unless otherwise stuted)

1%

L

Investmenty

Tnvusinents are geeher dassifed as Gnrent of lorg e1in baswd oD management s aention ot
Ineeption  Leong-terns wiestaents Are caragd 31 wonl A prossson 100 dusioetion s made
retugniee o des hine, othe than temperry, i the value of Jong-term mvesiment and s detenmn o
separdiety for cach mdin dual wivesiment Current investrnens are camed di lower ol wost d 13
value On dispasal ¢ the imvestiment the diterence between it carying amonnt amt nel Jdis, o
proceeds 1s charged ar Lredifva to b slatginent o profu and loss

Furelgn exchange transactinns

Tratstlons 111 OTe €71 cuffeney e auveunled for al o fate provailiy st e dute sl de
crans tion Exehdnyy ditference al any srssrg ool of mransactions sested dunng the sear
recngiisud 1 INe slsement o) profu and loss ot ghe vear

Mhonguaey assets and Pabibties Jumumimated i torogn Cutrenies and vulstandmg au the ba'aie,
sheet date are trans ated 4t the sedi-end exchange iate The resutant exchange ditferenies ! s
et s szl omthe stacment of profit and luss and relaed asets i Labilines arg arcerming
restased an the batanee shegl Nui mEmglan 10rgn CUngny keims are transisted al bistonca! cos,

Torvation

Lismesline eapense Lomprses ¢ utent ta (1o amounl ok tas L the vent deteimneg i 4o,
with the incame tan faw and duottrnd tas vharge of wredht coeeting the 1as cilects wl o mine
Jrflerences hetwern awcounung ineome yagd laanhle mewime for the vear)

M atemptiee tan (MATY pad i saardenge with the ay laws wirwh gives foe o o
evotusmly beneliy i the Torm of sdjustmgat of lalure msame 1as Labnlity, 65 consicdered as 1 dowe
o there s copvpuine exidence wat the Company will pay acmtal noome lax i fulure see
AvaEpEy 1 1 Teaogiti?ed wa an wssel o the nnlance shcet when it s prahehle ol he ot -
ecorome benetit associated with gt sill Mow to the Cumipany and the asser vas be meastred
rzhnibiy

The Jdelerred tas charge or wruds and the wortesponding, deterred 1ay habilifies or gaagts are
reconzed usiny the x rates that have been enacted o subsiantively enacted by the balance she.r
ante Lreterted tax wielk are recoynized only 1o the extent that sliere 15 reasunable vertmnts that the
assets can be reahieed i future however, where there 1« unabsorbed deprecianen or carned 1nrward
Juvs unddet tavunion laws deteried wa mascts are recogaized only 11 there o o virtual wertamty ol
tezlzation of s assels eterred 1av aswas e s ad a5 a5 s Balabee shivet dale ind weito
dowt o wr et up 1o reflect tie amoant that 1 reasaraply  saall cotam tas the ce.e mra, be (o
be reahized

The Company ollses Qnd YEAr U Yar Dasts ouerent s awety and hebihities where b o
legally erdurceahie inghl and whete domiends o oselile suuh dasets ad abilines o1 2 ret basis




Wipio Technolugy Services Limtted
\utes to the uccounts 45 of sad for the vear ended 31 March 2013 (eoatinued)
(Amuunt i Rs, except shaae nnd per share dafy, uniess otherwise stated)

112

Y]

Laases

Opemting Teases

Lu ases where the lessor eftectively retins substaniially a1l the nsks and benefita of ownership uver
(h. deast teem Rre classilied as operating leases Operatwy lease reotals ae recoginsed as an
evpPefng Ui a strdini-Hne hisiy over The 'ease term

Fownce leases

& uaets 3hen On N0ANCE lease ate recopnized as 4 fived assct 2t ine Tair va'ug of the msset o1 proser
vae of the mmmum lease psymenis, wlichever is lower, An equivalent habilav 1s Sivated at the
\o epiion ot the leuse Rentnls paid are apporwned between linance charge and principal based o
the implaat rale ol rerurt in she somract The finance charge 15 showi as iderest expense amd [y
pr reipal amount fepred s reduced frm habity

Provasions and canhinguue vy

1 e Company Credies o piossion shen ficre s i present abhigalion ¢s 8 nesultol 4 pdst event i
probrbly rujuiires 2 owdluw ul cesounes wid 4 1Bl csimale can be mid: af e a et al e
obligatio A disclowre or 4 contimgin labihins 1y e when there (v a possble ol wen or
presonl obbigaion e may oul probably will not veguare an autliow ol rowurcey Wit tharg - 3
pessthe abligasion or o present obligatiun (n respear 0] whivh the Ghelinoud of wanflow of resourye
1> fEmOte, NO ProvIsien or iselosare 1s nade

Pruvisium arg 1gviened at cach Balanes vhsd date and adjusied 10 16710cL the current best wstnnni
[v 1 1w Joenges probable that e autlow at casntes would be regquned 1o setle the abligatan
Ty PrOYISION 13 revetsesd

Contmgent assets are o1 reeagnised mothe finand salements However, comngent asets are
sosessed continualiy and of 1t virtually certam char an geenmme beneflt will anse the awsel w !
Jelated Inuomie e regLpmnesd 1 e period in which the Jhange accus

tarnungs per share (CEPSY)

Ihe hasi carnings pei share s compiied by divading the et prefu aibunible woequa
shnrzhulders lot the year by he v eghted avciuge number of equity shares oubstanding duning e
vedi [ he number of stares used 1, somputng duluted earnings per share comprises the weghle!
averape number of cquiny shares conydewed for denving basic eamings per share and alau the
weighied aseruge Aumber of egaits shares which could have been waued on the conversion ol sl
wikbutive polental equnty shares  IMlutive potenual equity shires are devmed convermed 4y ot
Leginring o) the period unfese they have heen 1vued a1 a later date. In Lomputing dilutive camines
per share only porental equity shaes hat are dituteve and thal etner reduces eemmes pet shure o
yierease loss per share are included

Caush flow stutement

Cask flaws we repored using mdieel nethod wherebs et putit before wy s adnsied far b
cllaclh O Lansastuhs of 4 non-casly gature and any deterrals or decruals ol past or future won
st ety 01 Pavment The wash iews frons regular ievenue geenati g Mot ng anid hinaia ng
o Wl 0 Che Comipans arg sugregadled




b4

L&

¢ nshoamd casdh eguhoalenis

Cash and cush equinalerts tur the purpeses ot [Mancial stalement voluptise vish a4 Hard at
hilances with bane and olier short e hgund wvesiments 1hat me ceadily convertible wio hnown
nmoeunts ol vass gad ere wibveet womsigmbeant sk of charpes m valie

Employee stoek opterny

he ¢ ompany bus i b isvired ooy vharest stock options o 13 shares However the halding comp s
has 1vaned stach uptiuny 2 i shargs W weiin employees ot the Campany The cost ol wrl st
wptiars 1y chorged o the Cempany by thy holdrg company e Compai mess ares i ot
Vatg nAsie A dlug inethod  The costis recogmured in the statenant of profit ond loss on astri ™
ane s grer the vesting poaad
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Wipru Technology Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements(continued)
(Amavnt in Rs, eacept share and per share data, unless stherwise stated)

21 Nuted fu wecounis

L1 Related Partles
Tu Name and nature of e2lationslep of related parties thal direetly  or indwreerty through ure v non
niRnnediries coavral the Compiy

MName of reluted party Mature nf relntionsinp
Wipro | nnied Holdig company

thy  Name and nature ab retatonshigd of vibor telated paroes w L whoe the tramac ions had owcnind
curing the vedr

“ame ul related parey Sty of relativaship
Woipro Travel Ssrviees Liited 1 ¢lbrw subwdiary
Wipro Tecnnulogies Movicw Felluw subsidiary
1 Key ¥Managsment Pezsonnel Nutwre of 1efatlonship
M Sounut-u Ghosh Munmeing Dhirelur
! Mr Jayanl Jambolhar Duectior
: N Dipak Kar Bohia Dhirestos luppointed ssuh eftecd from 30 lanune M0 5
. A Guoonandan M Mirecior Wppoimied wath etect hom 30 Liuan 204 5)




Wipry Tedhisologs Seevicds Linttul
Notes to the fnneial starementsicentinued)
{(Aniuunt in Ba, except share and per share clata, uniess otherwise stited)

ul Related purty transactions
E'En:;;e‘ ‘of ansaciion T Hnlll!r;;(‘com pany | _Lellow subsidwries
| Veurendedl ' Yeur ended  (vear cnded | Year ended
| 3 March 31 March M March 31 Muarch
L B T T R 1 : w i
-E\ DErhiy - i VA ‘T T
Suli ungratlng cypenses ! |
W L ST emewial - -
:Cou recharyed by the 1 ; L
Cumpany j_“___ . o J '
_‘ﬁ_._p::_n_l waed . 19 \)68" 19 . ST — T,
Sule of assely o e o
Soprelmmwd 1 oens_ 0w t o i
|Purchose of mssets I
Wipro [ imued ) TBebdS 2303200 -,
Frupluvee stock conpensutiun T Jr -
Pexpense thurged o the i '
i€ ompany DS . T
W rpro | unsted IR L J_'!U_‘MJ R
s bub-cuntraching charges : ) [
P W lechnolagies Mevieo - - E4igoeus - |
 Truyvelleng expentes _ i
Wit Travel Sersices Lnited 'l - . - T lti-t::bl:)" _T.._7—\)—';_’-t)l
h) Remposraton of key mnnagerial persoanet, for Juyant Jawmbotkar, enaging Liredine
Lo ised the Following
¥ean ensled Year ended
31 March 213 31 Muarh 2UE2
S Al bornisgs RS Lo T
Canipunan o provdent lund wnd ather "unds 127,364 2TA T
I atproy ces stovh compe aMiun cusl 140 950 180 ¥,
6,627,132 T083.038

Managerish iuneanoa Joss mi include pravisiur (o1 compgitaad absenues wid graban as the
saune dre actuanally deie mined {or the Company o 2 whatle and ~epurate Hgures for daectors are b
avadble

Pl




Wipra Technulogy Services Limited
Notes to the finnncie] stutements(continyed)

tAmount b R, except shure and per share datn, anless otherwise stuted)

) Ralances with related paries
Nature uf transaciony Hulduitg cumipany i Fellaw ‘ia).sl&lu-r!es
Yeur endid Y eur ended : Yenr enided Yeul cuded
31 March MMarch 131 Surch | 3 Mureh
e . FIE) 012 ) nts i
T rade payebles (lncluded uader current Habilities) '
Mpro Limiled WIS gl T
ipie Travel Services Limeed . - 75 42 587 0nh
_'\\Jﬁﬁ-ig:ﬁl_u_lui(g_xi,_\dcuw " - . 17 697,747 1% gy ‘}5'7

*
N

Gratules

I aveonlance wath apphicatie Tadiog laws  the Company provides Jor pratuty a debimed been
robement plan WGrams Flan) coverinp certar valegones of emplayees The Umtuity Plan pros e
4 lymp sum payment to vesled einpluyees, 4, raure menl, death o fenfiunatse of enplyyent r
amount baacd an tho respective emploves 3 insg drasn salany amdt the years of enplayment wik the
Company  The Company provides the wrawe ry bepefil trrough antual contribunions w4 juad
manased by the | e Tnsumace Corporaten af nd 1 1€} Under this plan the settlument abligatior
reradints with the Company nithough the tnsieer adsneysiers the plar and deremunes the contriby ey
oreminm required to he patd by e Conpany

3 Mareh 2012
2

31 March 201
WML

"Chu nge in benefit |;I:|Igmum
Prujected Benstn Obigutien (PBOY at the beginming ut
e year

; Ser e Lost 4239 g0 7 1ok bt
i eest Luss AEEE RN 1 HoY seu
" Henetits pad 11 008,040 (Ra 1y,
Lrgtulity teans ferresd - 15 804 R1ue

ALkl gam
PO a1 e end of the vear

(4,984,380
24§32 2y

1H 934 40

24247, a0

Chonge in plan wsseny SE Shurch 20103

47 516 090

51 March 2012

Fau vafue ol plun avsets 4t tic bewinnmg of the yer 13 T4 6

Fapeted ruturn on olan adsets SEDe 34p4 "7l
Fmip eyer contobubons

Benetivs paid - [C LERIRUN
ALsigs gain 1234 2y
Farr valug ot plan asscis at the end of the vear 1382800 . 315%6 ety

the Compuny hes invested the plan assets with the insuier munuged tutady The evpecied nne o
return ot oban ussel i ased oF enpeutation ol the Bverdge lany term rte of selum o espucted o,
v perents ol e fund g e estinarcd wen ot the obfiganea




Wipro Technology Services Limited
Notes tu the financial statements{continued)
tAmoant in Rs, except share und per share datn, unless otherw ise stated)

tet gratuicy cost for the yeor ended 31 Murch IUL3 and 2012 13 as follows

Y ear eafed Year endud
31 Murch 2033 31 Mureh 2002
L urmee] serviee L' LIRSt RTINS
I aereatun dufined Lo it shligdinn 104141 LT
{soseutod sILHY O fl st Asse s ISR DI V> Abd My
Netditaarial gaim recogmzsd oy the vaar {4,988, 38 (R S
_ ot neluded n caplanee costs 2.81300t 23R
“Faperience 31 March 30 Marh 31 March 3 Mardh 30 Maruh
adjustment Wil m1 2041 Wi yny
. Lefined henefi WSS (242470 (23790 (34 TIUY e S v,
alv put on ¥t end ut
, Uie puniod
Pl amsety ot endt ul »1 32 A 47,576,470 43,741,830 13371 45 TR Kus U
the pelyd
Funded staws 16,439,590 1132054y 19,942 600 11093 6BOY {14 %0, 5un
Frperience TI57 130 (2207 4,00 13 507 650 16 995,126 (h SO W
am {igss ) an plan
Tnbhoes
o perie ge (MR Jud il F28 1o HE L
L3 {'ovs g o pans
EESTII
Seludri! gatf |aeaa 12§48 7400 FRBIR Y] Gllgs 3342000 G A )
due fu g 10
3 PULING




Wipro Technology Sersices Linnted
Notes to the flnancial statements{continued)
IAmountin Ry, escept shure and pec share dntn, unless atherwise slated)

1l

Lratuity {tuntinued]

The wuoghted average acuardl assumplions wsed 10 determme berer’t abligatons and not perndy.
BrALaLy CON Are

Asvumptiany Year ended Yeur ended
MM ™Murch 208 31 Murh 2052

Lyitn it e T abi
Rate o1 1n1ease 3 eopeindiseh levels vy RIRT ) I

o R M retuny on plan asssls K000, b,
) Noualily cate LIC 194 9e) Lit (14994 da
' ultimate ubom oy
‘_E\__ﬂl Jdoawnl rate 1300 e I_o fﬁ]jb___ 1o IHJ‘: N

The Caripany assesses Whese absumatons with its projected lang-tes n plans of growth ad prevatent
wdusity standards  The esormales ot future saliry merease considered 01 aciuanal valuduon (ke
aeenunt of inflagnn wemomly, promoton and ather relevant tactors sugh ps sopply and deaeane
'actors ar the empioy meny mahey

Aul MR P 2013 and 2002 UD¥sallbe plan nts ware nvsted i the issurer mapaged londe

Asut Ay at

3 March 2013 3t Maren 2052

Preve st value o tuanded obihy sians 23831218 224710
Fau va e uf plan ssets S1 382 %O 47576 0T

, Faiess of obligation over plan assew! (plan (20,850,594) (13,329,540}

| nssets aver obligatlons)
iR

Counngenc liabalities, capulal/ ather cameniiments and guaruntees

Contigent 1 sbilines

Ayl Ayl
3t Yiareh 2H13 J1 Viareh 2upz
lncueng tas metters (For Ay 2UnT-208 )+ - 4% TYE Y
Jnsoine tay masters (ko AY - 2008 20045+ 28,703,921 2.9
Tow ot minttan s oF or &Y - 200% 20103 40T USR 14D
Ingome tas naners (Fer Ay - 20iw2uily 38‘!_.&@'-12{}_

*Cortngent hubifity lor AY 2008 U9 15 10 tespeet o) s maders oot 1o 21 January 2009 the Jate o1
puguisition &f the Company by Wipro Limiied the helding compary  [he evenrual ladiliay ot ain
whiea the Company iy mnr i respeet of these ratters s ehgible tor a cearbusement Gan
Cieorp Hank oy Corporation




Wipro Technulogy Services Limlted
Notes io the Raanca] stements(eoatinned)
tAmountin Rs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

L3 Contingent liahilttes, cupltnl/ other commitmeats and pusrantees [vuntinued)

hy Ibe Campery has provided haok guansaites n fivour ul Solia re Technulogs Pk of Inga i~ 71
auhiies of By 700 QU3 Maich 2012 R, 700 000)

. For commtment relabng w lessey reter note 23 10

214 efern ed wvation

Detgnea tie gaset uivhuded i the balanve sheet comprises ot the 1oilow [

Ayl A% pl

30 March 2013 3t Yiriah 2012

Dzlened Wy avats thabiluy g
Provy swm 1 busias - LaS1URY
Exvess of deprecio e 2martisation an Tisga dasels 23,742 111 S &Y <4l

Aoy led 1 e unts Sver deplec aton Aot ation
wlder inuonie iy law

Qher oy dsatiow anues 9,407,114 LEINEIR
Deferred 1un asset (oel) 64,170,240 63159157

L5 Farnmgs per share

The campste o of carniigs per hare 1oset o below

Yeor ended Y ear ended |
3 March 2003 31 March 2002

Eutnlugs per share '
#rafil after e 1or the vear 1 UI7 §R1 889 1,332,004 303
Weighted ny eripe numbar of cgu b alares
vulstandaaig during the yea
baste and diluted 39 B4 o8l 28 Ry
Farfrtuags per share | lace salue ot B il such)
5 1ale and diluted sy, 1aw




Wiprs Technology Services Linied
“oles 10 {he ligancis) statements{continued)
tAmount tn Rs, except share and per shure duta, ynless otherwise stated)

HN]

Emplorvee stoch onptwan

Wopro Dinsted Uie holdimg company  1as granted emzloyed siouk pplinns o emplosess ol
Cumpary - [he stock compensahinn cost i co.nputed unsder the indminsas villue mathod vd uiaroed
Wi siraight L Basis over thie lotal vesting periad of five years The imnnse v alue un the Jdi
ot grant appuavamales the fae vatue For the venr endad 3t March, 2013, *he Company bhes hrer,
vharyed Bs L6355 T82 (Previvus year | 3500801 far the sroch compensatinn espense ansing trig
optiony yranted by prrent the holding company

1 urther, under the € o group wapile accunutiion plan 2003, 2006, 2UU7 snd 2008 (thy pany) e

ehigirie etgplopees af the Compary nad hoen yranted stuck awards of equity dhares at the ermtwinl
habding Cotpany € agrour Ing AHer the Gaguistlion by Wipro there was an, sceelorated vestnr of
all shk wares ovistanding as 4l 26 Fanoans R0Y and the Commats ol nrolnized 3 by o I
F M4 000 ¢ March 012 Ry & 394 000 ) pavable it e p B kg Corparalon

Fan vabvs disclosures rog ored 10 18008 0F LIf U4 o DO 06 G 0untug Tor gmployee share bused
payirents aacd by the lust ke ot § Rartered accountants of India have ool been made as (0 1o
vilue related 12 the shaies that warld be wlimaely granted 1o she Company + employees s ant el

b sagnfioent v the upinore ol the manayement

“egrent infarmation

(he Lompeny 5 aoerresily engaged o picvabig seliwie related support servoages PRAD .
0nforiaumn N SOIWAre slutui unigadide and tecknalop) intrasiruciure suppo
seiviees 10 Cligroup evnibes globslly, whith s conudersd 4 oie segtient Beie thete an
separale repurtable segrends, a5 1equued by Avconiing Staidagd 17 o Sewnent Reposing




Wipro Technology Services Limired
Notes to the financinl statementsicontnued)
fAmount in Rs, except share and per share data, unless uiherwise statect)

AN ]

1Y

i)

Ducs to micro, small and medium enlerpives

The My ot Miere Small ind Mediom Laterpeses hda issued & Ut Muiirandam Gatu! 27
August 2008 which recommends Bt the Moao und Stull Brtersr ses should mention 10 e
worrespendenes with s vastemers the Eodteprencurs Memorgadum Nomber 2o alloeated alier 11y
of the Memiundum  Accondingy e diseiosire 0 respest ot e wnaimnts pavabie Lo st
gaterpuses as At 30 Manch 2013 has been mde w the tinngie) stdtements basea on intonnaar
seeeived wad avoilable with the Company  Ou the basts of milomiutiun and records malable her
are e dues payable W Yiere and small emerpries The Company has oot received any clanm toy
v rest Dot any supplier under the said Adt

Purticutars Yeur ended Yeur endigd
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

The ponvigul amount remuing unpand wooany -

supplier ws al the ¢nd of gdoh aceoantiay vear

Th a teress peiaining uepard ey supphzr iy Jal -

e ciud of ¢kt stoaunting s sue

The wmount ot anterest pad by the L einpnns alouhy,

with the amounis of payieat meds W the supphe

teyond the gpanigd day dusing the venr,

- Iplerest

Frneipsl

e amoual of inieres due and pavanie for the -

quarter for the penad of delay in muking pavinem

{whieh have been paid but hevored the apponive Jay

Juring the yedr) bat withour adeing the ntere

speeified under this Act

The amount of further iterest reinaming due and -

pavable gven 10 the succeeding vears, until suh date

when the nterest dues as abose are actualhy paid 10

by small citeiprise

Larnngs In for cign cachaoge and expendleste i foreign currency

Exrmies i forenmm exchange

! Year ende;l Year ended
' 31 Mareh 2013 3 Murch 20012
:Scr\ L ey e 252% TR 159216720
TForul 3328160081 1591 .207,2240
; .
[,
RS
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Nutes tu the financiel state mgats(coitinued)
PAmeuntin Rs, except share and per share dats, unless otherwese siated)

MR

(hy

e

aj

(33

Favmng  foregn exchange and expenditure in forelgn curFency {cuntimued)

Expendinure in foore@gh vuiriy

Yeur ended Year ended

3t March 2013 3 Maach 22

| rvef gxpenses 22742303 4TI M6

Suboll TALEHIE Tonts 08062 41 87 Hhet

iher, Jliell LU

fotwt . 42,1 94,146 51,901,772
1 eases

Tue Company bas @mken oftioe premives an aperanny leases Giross rental cupenses far the year ended
31 Much 2013 wgrepand to 1ty 60 250 74712012 Ry 72 435 hddy

ITese Jed-ts huve lacs 1 peniads mamarg hon 3 months te & maviowm of 3 yeary and the
ledal pay it semmimiests 1o the lech-m perod sie s foliows

( Ay ut A ul
. 31 Marek 2003 3 Maich Zu12
J Mivlowwm lease payinenss for non-camce lwide leave

- nyt Laler than one year THUAR 4w B YUY -
| et Than one vear and urt laee than live veors 200 107 {530 TE M
Celntershan five vems .

Yelugies have been acquired under Lnance feases Fhe intal punanum Jease paynients at the halancy

sheet daze nterest and tax included 10 sueh payments g [resent vatue ot nhitznum lease pyyment
#ie v lullows

I' -l’\-iu_'u;num..l‘l.‘s-se ;;';n;:l;__ ) As ||l“~ _A_\_nl
31 Muarch 2003 %1 March 2012

| ta) taral nurirrum luase pasments . 87 d

k) § utire mterest and iy meluded in (a) abave . g 4G
AL iesenr salae st mimimum lease payments J_Ia) i) - 645,645
The arstaray profle ol finance lease abhpabons » a3 tollows

é;ﬁuu - —-'\TM_-___*M 3] -

31 March 201 11 Muarch 1012

-aul 4 st ong yoor L SIREN]

ot - 671,310
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(Ampunt in Hs, except share and per share dafa, uniess slherwise stated)

2EE1 0 The deends ol clusing balaney ol invesiments tor the vear endud J1 March, 2013 and 31 Mareh _07
Rie as follows

3iMarce 2013
Linis Atrount (Rs)

Iirvestnzents en Mutual funds (ncluding divicdend rolivestment)

_Avs Luguid Fund Lo 332,096
Birla sum Lafe Mutual Fuid . LESTRIG] | £90 94 770
Ecvlldnc‘. Mulual Fumd o . £7,44 jﬁ-ﬂ_ T L :3)23303 _’1‘)_

BSL stutudl Fand e . %__ _-"9_:9:-‘; hU 1 ik 048.4§°
DW & Muruat Fund T THaaTR48 19C 8K 180

FF’ B‘_-“.'k—RUtLV;G}J!'Iﬂ] Fund JRRCHIRUY) - 'I-‘s( 900t
HIVEC Mutonl | und ) T s 4 T30 Lt g
LTI T Prudenting Mutyal Fon { 100 TSLBeh 1 005,908 and
IUHC Mulaal bund ¥5 862 M ev Re
JP Murgan Muman! Mund i 20,741 232 T30 199 4wy
Ratah, Mutual Fund I T TR T Y
Heligare Mutu_.}l_Fulzd B _ I R =L LA X IS,L)OD_.(II?O
SH1 Mual Fund 163 805 41589808
Tata Mutvdl Tund 3G 000 Lo HI N BRI

Ul Muatbeed ML 256948035
Totu o o S17asd0ey 988,700,191

__ 3% March 2012
o Units _ T Amaunc(Rs)
Investmenty in Mutual funds (including div id;ny !_glnv:hlml'lﬂ . "
Ebirle s Iite Mutugl bred 171323734 85 K02 14K

Fruskiin Templeton Mulual fund RREIRLL 177606432
HUFC Mutua! Fuad R Ty Ed
hotah Muua' Fumd o T ) I_ 512974 20 Ui Qo
Relintn e Mt wl Fund B 2,063 964 G,LYY 30"

T Mama ond T e T Awian
Forat e _1S0LMH1 . SuTaIsauf

113 Uthens withm tathes corment Tabilies inciudes habhity ugered apainst indeees! recerved o1 Lioome
fan reunds, pertanmg b the ussessment yeam 200T-08 and 267910 amounting to R 74 748 <240
(3 March 2010 Rs Ml payable 10 Citurp Banking Corporation as per B1C fenns of share pun i,
Apreciienl betwesn Wipro Limited snd Cineorp Banking C srporation
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(Amount In Rs, except share and per share data, unless otherwise siated)

21t

Hd

211§

104

Semvice tax input Leedit recervable resversal

Durirg dhie previoes yvear, the Company had reassested vanous piovisiuns ot Service Lay Roles and
neeondingly has reversed the provision recorded i the earher vears agnirst the senvice tx nput credi.
dmuaunbng to Rs [dé 760,594

Dischusure of forelgn currenty eaposure

The Compuny duts nol enter e any derivaitive contraw's 1o hedge 11 nish assuciared with foruer
wire wy Hucwaoaens The unhedged foregn wurmendy exposure pn the recervables af The yosr v o
&lven below

Tt T 31 March 2012 3 March2mz

Rs LS Ry Ush
Rece iy able wowands S5 60 79 Y1392 SI4AE 9IS 10114370
| sy s renderd ;
y Linbilgdd revenue 58.iv 1N [RIEIVE REY 47,358,114 G2 860 }
i_T.;_xflc parabje 274893,747 10,249 IH,(N\‘:‘J:‘)_" _BS_é_IS‘,I"

Subsequent event

With o view to rabonalize the straciure and aperayions of the Company. the Hoard a1 Directors of the
Cune aey have wpproved o soheme ol amalgaination under Seceon 39 10 394 and other wpphoable
provis,on 3! the Companies At F9S4 tur e pumose of amaigaew iwn ol the Carmpany with Wop-u
e ihe tokdimg company, wuh gRees frem 1 APt 2003 on 19 Apnl 2803 The gperatads i 1,
Carnpy are proposed 1o oe daker oves be Yopra Dinled and gony comearn s and higogy 1y
Tanencial statemen's have hecn prepared bosen an Fo gouig wONeen asampion and e adjus 1ens
are requited o be made 1 the frangini statements relanng 1o recovernbibity and classdivaton o
recnded amounsts of @ssets oF 1o ame nty and asaficaton af bl tes

Prevnne vear hgures have boen regrouped and eclassilied, where necessany 10 confoem i the vurrn
wear's preseatation

As per our iepon uf even dute anached

furB S
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Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Wipro Technology Services Limited

We have audited the attached balance sheet of Wipro Technology Services Limited
(*the Company’) as at 31 March 2012, and the related statement of profit and lass and the cash
flow statement of the Company for the year ended 31 Maich 2012, annexed thercto  These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management  Cur responsibibty 1s to
expiess an opinien on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auchting standards generally accepled n India
Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement  An audit includes examining,
on a 1est basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclesures i the financial staternents  An
audit also includes assessing the accounting punciples used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the aveiall finaneial stateinent presentation  We believe that
ow sudit provides a reasonable basis for our opimon,

[ As required by the Companics {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) 1ssued by the
Central Government of India in ferms of sub-section {4A4) of Section 227 of the
Companigs Act, 1956 (*the Act’), we enclose n the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragiaphs 4 and 5 of the said Order

[ 381

FFurther to our comments in the Annexure referred W above, we report that

() we have obtained al} the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowladge and belief were necessary for the puiposes of our audit;

(b} in our opumion, propet books of account as requued by law have been hept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

{(c) the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account,

(d} in our opimon, the balance sheet, statement of profit and less and cash flow
statement dealt with by this report comply with the Accounting Standards referred
10 1n sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Act,

(e} on the basis of writen tepresentations teceived from the duectors as at
31 March 2012 and taken on record by the Boaid of Directors, we report that none
of the duectars is disqualified as on 11 March 2012 from beng appeinted as a
Wtor in terms of clause (g) of sub-sectian (1) of Section 274 of the Act,
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Auditors' Report (Continued)
Wipro Technology Services Limited

(fi in our opminn and to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to
us, the said accounts give the information tequiled by the Act, m the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India®

I. 11 case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
3! March 2012;

1 n case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for year ended on that date, and

11, n case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date

For BS R & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Finm’s Registiation No 101248W

b Sy

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Partner
31 May 2012 Membership No 042070
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Wipro Technology Services Limited

Annexure o Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2012
{Referred 1o in our report of even date)

(i)

(i)

(i

f1v)

(vt)
(vin)

(viny

{iv)

(a) Fhe Company has maintained ptoper 1ecords showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and simanon of fixed assets.

{b) The Company has a reguiar programme of physical vertfication of 1ts fixed assels
by which all fixed assets are venfied once in every three years, In our opinton,
this perindicity of physical verification is reasonabie having regard to the size of
the Company and the natuie of 1ts assets. [n accordance with the programme, fixed
assets were versfied by management dunng the vear and no materal discrepancies
wete noticed on such verilication

ic) Fixed assets disposed off duiing the yeat were nol substantial, and therefore, do
not affect the going concern assumption,

The Company 15 a service company, orimarily engaged m providimg software services
Accordingly it does not hold any physical inventories Thus, patagraph 4(ii) of the Order is
not apphicable,

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, 0 or from
companies, fitms ur other parties covesed i the register mamtamed under section 301 of
the Companes Act, 1956

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations prven to us. there is an
adequate internal control <ystem commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business with regard to puichase of fised assets and sale of seivices The
acuvities of the Company do not involve the purchase of mventory and sale of gnods, We
have not abserved any major weakness in the internal control system during the vourse of
the audit

In our opinivn, and according to the information and explanations miven to us, there are no
contracts and arrangements the paiticulars of which need to be entered into the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act

The Company has not accepted any depostls fiom the public

According 10 the information and explanations provided to us, the Company's busmess s
covered under the scope of the internal audit system of its holding company In our
opinien, the Company has an inteinal audit system commensurate with the size and natuie
of its business: Aowever ko nternal audit was carried ot during the year

The Central Governiment has not prescribed the maintenanee of cost records under Sectien
209(1)(d) of the Act, 1956 for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly,
paragtaph 4(viny of the Order in not applicable

() Accoiding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed stututory dues including Provident fund,
Employees® state msurance, [ncome tan, Service tax and other malcrial statutory
dues have been regularly deposited during the yem by the Company with the

wrlatc authorities,
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Wipro Technology Services Limited
Annexure to Auditors® Report — 31 March 2012 (continued)

()

(xi)

{xii)

()

(xiv}

{xv)

(xv1)

(mvi}

(xviii}

According to the information and cxplanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable m 1espect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, [ncome tax,
Service tax and other material statutory dues were outstandmg as atl
31 March 2012 for a period of mare than six months from the date they became
payable

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Investor
Education and Protection fund, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Custom Duty and Excise
duty

1b) According to the information and explanabons given to us, the following dues of
Income tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes

["Name of the Manmeof the Amount (Rs) Period to which the Foram where dispute
! Statute Ducs amoun relates is pending
Iome  Tax  [ncome Tax Rs 25,795,270 Asscasment Year Commsiener of
Adl, 1961 2007 - 2008 Income 1ax Appeals
* In¢camic Ian lncome Jax Ry 28,303923  Agsessrnent Year Deputy Conmnussianer
1A, 1961 2008 - 2009 of [ncome 1ax
Appeals

I'he Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and
has not incurred cash losses i the fineneal year and in the immediately preceding
financial year,

i our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defanlted 1n repayment of dues to us bankets v to any financial institutions The
Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

The Company has not granted any laans and advances on the basis of security by way of
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities

In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the Company
15 not a chit fund or a mdhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 1s not dealing ol
trading 1 sharcs, securihies, detentures and other investments

According to the information and explanations given (¢ us, the Company has nat given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions

According tn the information and explanations given to us, the Company did nat have any
term loans outstanding during the year.

According to the nformation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the company, we are of the ppinion that the funds raised on short-
term basis have not been used for long-term investment

The Company has not inade ary prefetential allotment of shares to comparnies/firms/parties
covered in the register maintamed under Section 301 of the Act,

(x1x) Gllﬁ Company did nat have any outstanding debentures during the year,
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Wipro Technology Services Limited
Annexure to Auditors’ Report —~ 31 March 2012 (Continued)

(»»}  The Company has not raised any money by pubhc 1ssues

(xx1)  According to the information and eaplanations given o us, no fiaud on o by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit

ForBS R & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
firm’s Registration Not [01248W

&quji"

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Parther

31 May 2012 Membership No 042070
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Wipro Technology Services Limited

Nates to the accounts
for thn veen cuded 30 Meardh 26012

tCurer oy, Indin Rupees)

] Bachground

Wipra  lechnology  Serviees  Fonrted  (Cthe Company®)  was incorporated  on
19 Septembar 2004 as Colr Lechnology Services Lomiled, as a subsichary of Citicorp
Banking Cerporation Puisuant (o the share purchase agreciment dated 21 January 2009, all
the shares of the Company wete purchased by Wipro Lomned, now the halding company
ot the Company

Fhe Campany's activiies  compise  soltware  related sippoart  serviees,  pamarily
infonmation technolozy soltware solutionafmantenance and techinology  infiastiuclure
SUPPOH sely ces

2 Sunmmary of significant accounting policics

21 Baiv of preparation of financial statements

Fhe financial statements are prepared and presented under the historeal cast convention on
he avenial basis of accounting and i acvordance with the provisions of the Cempanies
Acl, 19%6 rthe Acl'), and the accounting priseiples penerally accepted m Indim and
comply with the accounting standards prescobed - the Companies (Accounting
Standards} Rules, 2006 to the catenl applicable,

22 bae of estinysiey

e preparation of Tinancial statemenls in conformidy with generally aceepted accaunting
principles (GAAP) in India requnes management to mahe ostimates and assumptions that
alteet the reported amount of asset, Tabities, 1evenues and expenses and the disclosine ol
sontingent assets and Labilmes on the date of the financial statements The cstimates an
tssumptions vsed in the aceompunying finaneial statements me based upon management s
svaluation of the releyant facts and eirconnstances as of the date of the financial statemenia
Actund resulls iy ditter brom the estimates used m preparing the acgompanying finaneial
slalements Any 1evision lo accounting cstimates is wwcognized prospectively mocurient ad
future penads.,

2.8 Fied assers, depreciation and impairment

1 Fised assety are varnesd a cost ol aequisinon less accumulated deprecintion Jess
iparment loss, ifany Cost mcludes freight, duties, Lises and incidental expenses
teldatad 1o 1he acguisiuen and mstallation ol the asset

) Deprecation s povided on the stugehit-lne method on prorata basts ten the
monl o wlich the assets have been i oo use,  The ates of deprociation
prescnbed i Sehednle X1V 1o the Act are considerud as the minimum rates 1 the
menagement’™s cstintdte of the uscbul tile of a fived asset at the time of acquisiian
ol the psset o ol the remaming usetul iife on a subsequent review s shorter than
that «nvisaged i the woresad Seheduole depreciation s provided at 4 igher e

based an management's estunate of the us il hicfecmanimg useul dile



Wipro Technology Services Limited

Notes to the accounts (Continued)
fen the ver ended 38 Mool 2042

(Cunency: Indian upoes)
2, Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.3 Fived assets, depreclation wnd pupainnent (Continend)

Pursuant to 1his policy depreciation an the fiaed assets fhas been provided at the
tullowing rates which are lugher than the couespondmg rates prescibed m
Schedule X1V 1o the Act

Awet o T Doprediabon e |
Fatmiture and findures 00
Otfyes, Lquipmmen 20 00%,
wnmnputer - cinpmnt 33 3™
Compuler - salttware RURHILM
Vihieley 35 (%A
1easedd Volncles Ul Ok petod of the Tease on ecanommie uselul Ite whichever 14wt
ImfH ey ment on Over Hi puniod of the lease o ceunomie uschul ite whichuver s shorte

Jeperold grumies .

) Al assets mchvidually costing Rs 3,000 or less aie (uily depregiated at the tate of
[133%,
) Deprectabion o assels sold during the yeas 15 1egognsed on a pro-atd basis i the

statement 0f profit and loss up o the month prot o the mosnth i which the issels
have heen disposed off

¢) frmpatement of assets

Ele Company assesses at tach balance sheet date whether there v any mdication that an
asset may be nnpaired [0 oany such mdiation extsls, the Company estimales (he
tecovernhle dooumt of the asset, 1 such jecoverable amount ol the asset s less than s
cartying amount, the canymg amoeunt 1s ceduced W 118 recoverable amount  The reduction
s trealed as an wmpanment loss and is tecognized i ibe statenent ol profit and loss 11 al
the balance sheet date, there 14 an indicaiton that a previgusly assessed impainment ks no
longer exists, the recaverable amuount s teassessed and the asset 15 1eflected at the
recovernble anmount sulyeet to a masimum al depreciable historical cost ‘Lhe 1ecoverable
amounl 15 fughet o the asset's net selling prece and value m use, which means the piesent
valie of fulte cash flows expeeted o anse fiom the continung use of he assel aned s
eventual disposdl

A Emplayee benefits
Provigent fund and Employee State Insucance

Migible empluyees teectve henelits Hom provident tund administered by the Gevernment
arel employees state msurance (RS which aic debined contribution plans Buth the
employee und the Company mdhe monthly contaibitions to the plan equal to a specdicd
percentage ul the converwd employee's sdlary Ag regande TSI the smplayee and employe
cach make monthly eantitbulians o the Lmployees Stile Insuzance Corporation T urther
the Company contributes & parl of 1ts contributions 1o the provident fund bust inanaged by ”:P:

the halding company (which s o defined benefit), w mile the remarder ol the contnbutipn’ 3, 2, -~ 2.0
i mhade to the Government's provident fund o ‘L >
13 e

‘"-J FAT



Wip-o Technology Services [Limited

Notes (o the accounts (Condinmued)
foe the vewr ended 0 Mac b 2002

(Correr ey dian ripees)

2

3

-1

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Emplayee henefite (Comtinaed}

Phe Company™s contribution to these bunds s recognzed mthe statement of polit wud
fusy

Gratuity

Ingecendance with the Pay ment ol Gratnily Act, 1972, the Company povides for a lump
suny payment ta ehigible enployees, at relirement, death or termimation of employment
based on the Jast diawn salary and yesrs of employment with the Company  1he gratuity
fund s managed by the Lile surance Corporation of India (LIC). The Campany’s
obligation i respect ot the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided T
baverd on actuatial valwation camied oul by an independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method - Actuarnial gam ar tuss is recognized timmediately i the stalement of profit
and toss na incoine or expense  The Company contribules o eniployes geatuily Tumd
maintaited by the iokhing compairy with | e Insmance ¢ veporation of India (1L1C)

Compensated absenees

the employees of the Company are entitled 0 compensated absence thiough powvilege
leave The employees can ey -forward & porton ol the unutibzed acetued compensatud
absence and utthee tom future periods o recetve cash compensation at retirement, de dth ol
termmation ol ciployment lor the unutiiized aveiucd compensated absence The Campany
teconds an obhgation for compensated absences s the penod o which the eimployee
renders the services that increase this entitlement The Company medsures the expeted
cost of compensated absence as e additional amovnt that the Company expects W pay as
o result of the unused entitlement that hins accumulated at the balance sheed datle |ong
term compensated absences are aectued based on acluarial valiation 1 the balance sheet
date carrigd oud by anindepemdent actiary

Revenue recognition

Revenue o pumanly  derved Tiom software aml wechnology  mbiastructure services
coptracts. Artangements with customers mre cither on & fined prce o un g bine-and-
natertal basss,

tevenue from done-and-inateinal contracts s secognised as the related seivives are
wiformed  Revende from fised prce contracls iy 1ecognised based on peicentage of

rompletion

tevenue o services isoaecepnizcd net of serviee Las m the petiod io which 1he service 15
iendered

nterestaneoame s recagnisud on pernd propoeriionate basis

Dividend income s cansidered seiven right to recetve s established



Wipro Technology Services Limited

Notes Lo the accounts {(Continyed)
for thy veear onded 38 Mavch 2002

(Cunteney Indian tupees)

Summary of significant accounting poheies (Continued)

Frvestieenis

Investments dare either olassified as cungnl or lung lerm based on management’s mlention
al the time of investment Long-lenm investments are eannied ub cost A provision [in
dnmnution 15 made W recognize o deching other than lemporay, in the value ol kemg-1eam
mvestment and 1s determined separately for cach mdividual investiment

Cutrent mvestinents are caned at lowet of gost and {air value.

Foreign exchange tramactony

[ tansactions iv foreien cunency e secaunted 1o: at the tde prevarlmg at the dote ol the
nansaction Fachange diflerence, tfany, ansing out af transactions seitled dunng, the vear
are recopnizad m the statement of profit and oy of the yem

Monetary assets and habibiies denommated in foreign cunencies and oulstanding at the
balance sheet dale ae tanslated at the year-end exchange vate Che iesultant exchange
ditterences, 1l any are recognized i the stalement of prafit and loss and related assets and
fiabilies ate accordingly restaled wn the balance sheet Non-manctin y furcign cureenicy
vens e translated at hstoncal cost

Tusation

Income-lasy expense camprses cunent tix {i e amount of tax Tor the period delenmined in
aseordanee with the income-lax law) wnd defoncd iy charge or credit (eflecting Lhe tas
elfects of nming dillerences between accountmg incame und taxable income tal the

preriod }
Cutient tases

Provisian ter taa s tecogized based on the Lay payable method, based on e estimaled
tax liabaliy as computed in accordance with the Ineame-tay Act, 1961 Minmum alterante
tay (MATY patd in sevordance with fax baws, which gives 1ise Lo laloie econamic benefits
inthe form of tas credit agamst lutare meome tax hability, secognized oy an assct in the
Bakuwe Sheet 1l there 1s o convinemg, evidence that the Company will pay nermal tay
duning the speetticd peniod

Deterred tax

Il deterred fax chutge of credit and the cotnespondmg deferred tax habibtics ot asscls are
recagnised usmy the tax rates that have been enacled o substantively enacted by the
balance sheel date, Delered tas assets are tecogiteed anly to the extent there s redsenable
cerlanly that the assels wan be realized i future, however, where there 1y tmabsorbed
depreciation v canied forwand loss under Laxabon laws, deferred 1ax assels e recopmse:l
onlv if there s a varlual certainty olicalizadion of such assets



Wip-o Technology Scrvices Limited

Noles to the accounts (Continved)
low the veer ended 31 Aol 202

(Currer oy Indhan rupees)

2,

240

Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (Continued)

Foxation {Cantinied)

Dleferied ty ssscls ate seviewod as at each halance sheel date and wadten down or writtea
up e aeflect the amount that is reasonablysvittually cortam (as the case may be) o be
real (sod,

Assels ard frnbnhiGes sepresenting curtent tas e disclosed on g net hasmis where there 1y o
legally enjorceable right to set oft and whete the masagement mtends to settle the asset
ang hability on a nel basis

tecannting for fease

Gperating Joases

Leases wheie the lesser effecnvely retwns subatontially all the risks and benefits of
ownership over e lease term are elassaficd as operating leases, Operating lease rentals are
recognized as an exvpense oo stsaght-hinge hasis over the lease lerm

| mange lerses

Assuds tahen o finanee lease me recognized as o fised assel at the Lar market vabue of e
aesct o present valoe of the mnmum fease payments, whichover o lower An cguen alont
hanthty s created at the mceplomn of the lease Rentals puid e apporiened belween
finanee charge amd principal bused on the tmplicit rate of retuen i the conbael Fhe
fimance charge s shown as micrest expense and the pancipad amount tepaxd 15 reducad
from Labilny

Frovisions amd coniingences

Lhe Company creales o provision when there 1s 2 present obligation as a result of o past
event that prabably reqrares an oultlow ol 1enowces and a relrable estimate can be made of
the amount o ihe obligation A disclosure o1 a contingent lablty 8 made whei fhete s a
possible ebligation or a preseat obhgulion that may, but probably wall nol, requie an
outtlow uf resanrees When (here s possible abligatinn or a present abligidion in respet
Howhich (he Dhelihend of vulllow of iesources 15 remote, no pravision on disclosure 15
aracde

Provimions are reviewed at cach balance sheet date ind adjusied o aeflect the carrent hest
stimate 10t s no longer probabice that the outlow of resources would be 1equaed w
settle the obhgation, the provision is reversed

snfingent assels wie not pecognised in the financial ststements Howeser, contingent
aely arg asvsessed contmually and a0 s virluadly eenlam that an ccononie benedit will
e, the asset and related inceme are recognsed mthe peiged mowhich the change oceurs,



Wipro Technology Services Limited

Notes to the accounts (Continued)
fear the vear ended 31 March 20172

{Cueney  Induny nppeest

Summeary of significant accounting policies (Continied)

Farnings per e

s e

The nuinber of equuty shaies used i computing basic camings per share v the weighted
average number of shares oulsianding during the penod,

Diluted:

The aumber of cquity shaies used i computing diluted carrmgs per share comprises the
weighted overage equity shites considered lor deriving busie earnmgs per share, and albse
Ure wesghied average nunber ol ety shaes thal could have been issued on the
conversion ol all dilutsve potential equity shaes

17



Wipro Technology Services Tinited

Nodes (o acconnts (Canfrated)
sl A0 A dy 20100

(Cueng e Indign tapeys

wh

6

S M 1042
Hhutre capitil

il nescd
SEO A s oas e SO0 00 eonny shates of Ky Hieady UGN

1 Mauch 2011

SO0 01y Dl

S DG

SUU DU Dudl

Ivsowd subserthid nud pond-up

19 201080 T Mevion sear 39281 680 wgoiry shares of R 10 each Jally puud-up 392,846,800
The enhre ssd, subsernibed amd pmidenp vowity share captal s hehd by Wipro

Femdud Hloldmy Company toe Ur sotly sy o

392 Sk KON

192,446, 10 300 446, 800
Flhie ollowing s vcconcdietion of ecembir of slutred s ad 30 Macch 2012
Oparang vumbaer of cguky shanes oatstasding, 39,284,640 2868
Movoment durimg the yean . .
© b numibie ob cewty Shmes sdstiading B0, 284,631 W 088 0RO
Pty 4 sharchotdars haveng nunee than % ol the 1wl numibser ol shyres
sipbsGeimchinge s we 31 March 2002
\'mm'.;'l:'l“h; Sharihalder T B Ok Sombor o Shres Numbwr ol Share.
Wipto L inited, Hedelig © oeipany G ay FR284.6GR 39 251

39,284,664 39,284,008

The Company has ooy oo lass of sharos referred Lo as equity shares haviag pac suliee of Bs 100 Tl holder of eqinty sharc s
entits e to e vote por share T the eveat of lyusdation at the comp any, the holders of equily shares will be entitled t recerve amy
of Wiy v, ayseis of the Company, alter distreebution ul all prelerentad amoonts  The ditnbuton sill be snproporbion 1o the

amaml e rof cguily shaes beid by the sharcholdios

Reserves and surplus

State nent of Pradit aisd loss

Balanoe Brouehil Torw szl 4,775 4 38,548 T A2 46165
Add roist o Uw yo 1332004323 1,193,971 K07
Balan.e wnmied lormvad & 1§17,442 871 4778418 S48
F.ong term horrowings (Seow ey

1ot obligabon i relabon to s bes soquieed ik finamee Tease (Raty Mot

2411 by - 52147

thucteed apinnst related vehn fes)

Fagur

Lony term Provissans

Frovscon deremiployor ety Unearked frase 9,180,260

10,866 K10

¥

9280260 = .~ 1gu66 800



Wipta Technology Services Limated

MNates 1o wecounts (Comntinged)
ava 80 Nk Jni?

{nrneney Inddedn rapreest

Trade pavables

1 isthe payahles mciudy
Al o g and smal enterprises (Kedei nole 23 4)

3 Maveh 2512

A March 200t

e 1o other than micio and siall ciderprines 1266 415,593 S8Y 806 617
1,266 413,593 S48 Kbh 617
Giher carvent linhilihes
Vevrued sadurses and henefits
SSaluries wind bunc ity 32,684,550 (RS IARY!
B and meuniives 13,039,626 | % (g 70
Statutary Inanliies
~Providont furl 2,409,306 1923 210
v dedugiad ot souree 355,768 AU IR
BTN 2,004,007 4,205,180
Cunnd maturees of iinange lease ohhgations {Relor hote 231 HhY H48.0648 1394200
Iscenred agaient icfato) vhisclosy
54,343, 0iH %Y 453 450
Showt term provisions
Provision (o ks i af advinee s af s 877 039 Dm0 11 B w38 Riv oo S0, 186,105 Ihi 777

I'rovisiont bor canployee bemlits « lnavarled leave

E904 i

I 717,20
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Wapte Technology Services Limiled

MNotes to accounts ( onftivd)
avert U e 2042
AL wrreey dndian tupoes)
B Mareh 212 "1 March 201
11 Long term lonns and advances
£ mccared Ceananfered yuosd)

AT anedil aintlenam - 139,873 034

Ay et £ s ek ol prostam for Lol By 1370886032001 Ry 41745860 1 143,534,526 AT 871
vidvancr tu grabinty fuml 13,320,540 19,012 6au
Loy loan o emplovees 3 004,932 FUbpuA2
Prapatd oy rinwmy 5635114 621 18
Coapatal adyantes 1,323,753 161,306
Ui deposily A4 821,84 A1y Tht) b

. _S86,578.081 0 ,0/9 M8

12 (rthes non current assets

fllmecared Considersd poods

1 ong e deposits with Bank with matanty meee tan 12 months [IUINIRES AR 220 Doty 000
Interes | acertiesd on lised doposiis 654044 [ R
100,688,917 221155416
13 Current Investinents
taafcd Newr Frad
T esteeries un bdion mamcy tnarket mutoad Tiasls JRaler now 24121 LINRER IS (MR ST R
Pt aleost or muerha Uy adue wiichewer is fower)
. 5911 171 L ORLSIT
Apgnapaty B vilue of quated mvestineds DOH,E40, 1601 L2117 685,001
14 I'rade Recervabies {Unsecared)
Irad reeervables valstimdmg lor & periog oweeding sis months lro the
date they ane due Lor payimean
- eonsidoresd cod ST HLUGS
= comyidered doubtint JEARLSTL RN AS A
452401 2,537 43 171 134
ey ravastion Jor douhetud dobts (4LARL5TH 1171731395,
A 5,726 -
il receivables
- considered goiui 149,032,136 W17 1ol Jax
- cotrodescd douhtful - [
189,042,150 o) 161 ER
1ase Proveaon tor doubtiuk dybts N -
i3 449,032,130 #0761 288
Trdal {1+ ILTSIMNG B, 161 I8

71



Wipro Pechnology Services Limted

Nudes to acconnis (Contintied)
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Cash and bank Balances

Clasdr angd eash eguiv dends

Lsadances with buiks
Megment xoeunts
uy e posil ueenuntys

O him bl

Othes haak balanees

= Diep st veath wrigin b wystinsy tor mors Ui 3 moaths bud dess than 12 months
Dicpomats wth oegan 0 matogs Tor more than 13 months

Depee it wth myaturety for more tas 12 nonths
At dasebomed under nen-curecnt assets [Reter naly 121}

Balan .oy wallt banks Beld as imarpns mooes deposits aganst ga sronfees (Relor pode
RERTINH

Short lerm loans and advances

1 aphosee tavel and b idvimees
Propaid wepuinses
CRher depsits

AT cndilantiliomant

Dhibnnne ey wth statutory anfhionties - Sesvice Goopul eredil reveivable
Fass Proetsion (9 daabtind pdviiees

Other curtvent assets

ot el cennsadirod god)

lareres | an criked on i d de posids
Unbild wevemn

Mmch 20082

1 ML094, 162
2RELDKLDON
1

Ll IAIEILINETL)
ERLIAAHTRLY

31 Munh 20 ]

168,156 497

()

£, 422,300,000
Lagd 117,240

4, T80, T, 167

2653508 74K

O3 KT

THLOD

Lads 1

220 ety 00

FU( DOV

W

1,534,400 T uhil o
15,745,121 17 107 6yl
LRI 239,746,173
160,537 491 IS0, 3
171,666,397 b6, T 594
(HA40.816) {116,760 50
165,625,581 B
26,163,472 TR0 dh 10

L7, 377640
17,251,114

T TIa628 700

21 KR 169
E TR

a5 Lol 2ah
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Wipro Teehnology Services imited

Naotes to the accounts (Continned}
Jor the vear vaded 3 Mareh 2012

(Cuerer ey, Tuding suppees)

23.

by}

Notes Lo accounts

Refated Parites Biselovir ey

The related parties ace broadly clissified as follows

[H]]

thi

Namw amd notare ol relnisdng of related parbies that duedly, of mdiectly through one o more

mrleri dianes, tomdenl 1he Company

Name ol relntest patiy
Wipen Lumiledf

KMime and natire ol relalionshig vl other tefated parties with whenny the trunsuclions bad owonered

durtng he presious yean
Fedlow Sabsidineies £ vsaodimles
Wipte T nvel Servaces Famid

Iney Nanggement Peexonnel

Nume

Mr Sounites Cibou

fe Ty it Jambualhar

Transactions with selated partics

Natsre of (st

Fapenses
Reimminsement of emplis ee
sompessation gt {m ludal in
Suly Contracimg /P vofessronal
Fees)
Wipta Lanuted
Carvt eeehargal
Wipte Tmised!
Bule of assets
Wapro | amilad
'V Purchise o aseeds
Wipro L imaied
Iravelling expenses
Wipto Droved Servicts Dl

.
t
'

g Cempansy

Year enmidedd

3 Maech 2012

TISTRG,NTH

FEOBR 1S

32

2,503,200

Mature of velatiomdip

Hahlwg company

| ellow by

Natwre of relativnship

Konaging Direetor

I edior

Felliw Salruliries £ Associates

Y vat ended A cir ended
3 Murch 2011 30 Mareh 2002

RCTI LAV .

2rAVE U -

S A3 IR -

Year ended
3 AMareh 2011

17565 5K)




Wipro Technology Scrvices Limited

Notes to the aceounts {Continued)
Jor thoe veew eicded 31 Mareh 2002

(Currency Andaan tapees )
23, Noles to accounts (Continued)

230 Retated Partres Brefosures (Continned)

€) Transaetions with key managerial personnel

aliry and lonuses
‘nntibution o e dent Tund and otiier oy

| mplisves s slouh compensalion vsl

Wby Balinces with 1clated partics

Holding € anrpany

‘;u’uilul'l‘ of Bnacimns
Y ear ended Y car ended
o March 2002 31 March 3011

Isuadey creditors (included wader
curtent lahiilies)

Yenr encled

§1 8Maich 2012
6,627,317
549,462
150,290

4,527,769

Y ear ended
31 March 2012

Wanro | imiled 1.190,547.227 b L YOR T
v“'T_m Ll Burviees | nmlf_(_l L B - - B
e) fries Trom Dhrecio

i

Yo ene bakance willy lavant lanibothin

ta
.
[

Crretuily

-\‘cm cn:ch'
31 March 2002

Fallow Subsulianies £ ossounies

- SH7.008 IR EY

Vear emiled

31 Alareh 20101
h 325 1
ARER %

hE s
G021

Y enr ended
H March 20010

Year ended
3 March 2001

RESFAT]

In accordanice willi applicable Indian laws, the Campany provides for gratuity, a defmad
bunelit tetnement plan (Gratuity Plan) covermy certam categonies of employees The
Gratuiy Plan provides a lump sum payment to vesied employces, at relirement, death oy
tetmiretion of cmployment, of an amount baserd on the respecive employee’s last drawn
aalaty and the years of employisent watl the Company . The Compay - provides the
oratuity benefit thisugh angval contobutons o fund managed by the Dile insuranee
Carporation of Iacha (LICY Under tis plan, the settement obiigutinn remadmns with the
Company, although the hwurer adounisters the plin and detenmines the conlobution

premiem reguired 1o be pand by the Campany

[ ¢ IIR;U_"( 1 benelit pbliga b

D Pragec i Bsencin Oblipahion (PO sl the heganming of the yeam
B coat

lnde sl cost

Bunfats pad

R ERUTHITRIRTIS VEN
Actu sl Tossespan)

E PHCat the wad ol thie seal

[ B
L

23,799.030
7, bk 0
1,469,360
(A4, 200)

(5 K008 10

(1,424,470

2H247,000

e |
ENETSHE

P 2y 200

2 q0n 170
(1,78 sy
iR SYG S1th
chd, 26k JSn
23R G




Wipro Technology Scrvices Limiled

Notes to the accounts (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 36 Mo 20102

Cureency Indisu capees)

Notes to accounts (Continned)

Creatreity (Contined)

Cleange in plaa asseds

Fan vilue of phaassals at the begmmmg ol the vear
Eapecied etirn on plan asscly

[anptoyar comtnbutions

Hewelits poaw

Actiartal gamndloss

Lo value ol plan assets gt dhe end al the g

2012

43,741,630
340d, 710

(RGN
1,234,290
37,876,670

011

3ILITEAW
2458 770
{15 oy
U1 784,500
TRE Y30

SR T

The Company has mvested the plan asscls with the msurer managed funds, 1he espected
rale o) retorn on plan asse! s based on oxpectation of the average Tong larm nate ol etun
especled on mvestments of the fund durmg the estumated term ot the obligation

Mot geatuity cost for the year ended 31 March 2002 and 2011 is as Tollows:

fanrenl selvige Lost

Inturest on il [ingd bengdit oblgation

Fapested anhirn on plan assuty

Diabihty Banesderrad

PO aetial 1] basses 4 geinad recogitesd m e youe

Vet ncludod o mplote [N

Faperwace lpustmend

1O Cnmps U assinplinss

Delined ben i (ZE247.130) {23 1 030)
ubligatien al end of the

puerisk

Ihan asacls i eind of The 47,87 .61 41 7H &30
P riesl

Teurmledd shals s 2RI, 5 00 1 1) 6
I aperionee Camgless? (22074113 P an7 ol
m Plan D abihies

Papuritnee Candlo e 1,234,290 184230
Ch Plan Assis

Avtaril pamddos O chin 131,850 GG

Tan -l!u' }Ttlll' ended
31 March 2U12
168,04}
1,569 360
(3,405,770
5,800 16
(8,959,574
Z,»H_:I.H'HJ

M Aluech 200

(34,105 1Y

33370430

ARV R IH]
109940 | 1

175 Ll

A RRRETHN

31 March 200v

Eor the year cnded

31 Macch 2001
1) a1y, %0
1568170
(2458 1
HSUA LD
{300 THY
(3 121 h8
3
(13541 35

I¥ ROR IO

(HET3 1dfh

th 502 180)
HE o

{3 159 ®ah

§ Nbwroh 2008

Not Applicably

Mot Applicably

Mol Appluable

Ihe weighled average actugnal assumplions used (o detenrune benefit obigalions and net

penodiv graluily cost are

Lasunt piishes

Thsount rate
Hole ol ingrcmse e eentipedisation fevets
Rie o peturss onpla assives

Bortaliy 1ul.

Withdrawal rate

b dhw vear ended
31 Murch 2N 2
860,

5.5

o

EI7 (Y9 - Y0
ultimale

14 15%%

Far e your caded

31 Maurch 2011

L

LS

2

[N RLE B
ulhimale

13 1%




Wipro l'echnology Services Limited

Notes (o Lhe accounts (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 Mareh 201 2

{Canreney Indhan cupees)

23, Notes to accounts (Continmed)

LoV
-
La

Grafny (Continwed)

Fhe Company assesses tiesy dssumplions with s projected long-term plans ol growth aiul
prevalent mdustry standasds  The esbenates ol fntie salary inceease, considered i
actusnal valution, Lake account o milation, semordy, promotion and uther relevant
Lactors such as supply nd demand factors e (he employment market

As al 31 March 2002 and 2001, [04% of the plan assels were invested i the msurer
managed funds,

!> Aval s oat

VL March 2002 51 Manih 28
T Presant satay ol Tunded ebligations 24,247,139 PITN NS0
‘ bt valne of plan imsels 4757067 13711 63
[ Eavess of oblgation over plan wssaisd {plan awets over 23320510 (Y942 i)y
I abhigutisns}

Provudent hund (PF):

[ uddition 1o the above ol employees reeove benelits from a provident fond The
suplosee and employer cach ntake monthly contabutians fo the plan wqual to 1276 of the
covercd cmployee’s salary A partion of the conlibuton s made {0 the provident fand
Iust eetablished by the Parent company at group level, while the remainder of the
contnbution 15 made 1o the Governmeat s provident fund  The inleiest tate payable by the
wust ta the beneficiarics 15 1egulated by the stalutory authoritics ‘The Compuany has an
abligation 10 mahe goud the shortfall, 1l any, hotween the retuam from it tuvestiments and
the adnunisfered rage

Up 1o yew ended March 312011, nthe absence ol gundance from the Actuaria] Society al
ludia, actuarial valugtion could not have been applicd wochably meastee the provident
jund Habiites Dunng the year ended Maich 11, 2012, the Actuanal Society af India
issuied the final guidance lor measuiement of providunt fund bubihties: Accordingly. based
vt such notuaial valuaton there s no shoritall m the tund as at March 31,2012

I'or the year ended 31 March 2012 the Campany contributed Ks 20,914,330 {20H Hs
0,365,767 1o PP and ofher cmployee wellare Tunds,

The detals of fund and plan assets are pven below

Change i the beaelt (ll)"l;':lilﬂll An ol Asont
31 Blarch 2012 31 Murch 2001
T value al plan assets 3979400 I IR 135
Prosent valus ol debined bonehit obbigstion 3,411.407 A 217558
Laenss of Tobhieatom s over plan assets) 7 plao ek ovel 67,504 (3122, i
ubligatins R B T



Wipro Technology Scrvices Limited

Notes to the accounts (Continued)
Jor the vewr ended 31 Mareh 20002

(Correney  Indan ripees)

2.2

233

J

)

)

234

Gratuiy (Continued)

Ehe prmeipal assumptions nsed i determining the pesent value obligation o mteieal
guraniee onder the determmistie appieach lor provadent lund tust are ns follows:

.\“un];nmm o " Lo the yoad endud For the vear ended
31 Muarch 2012 31 Mardh 20H)

P DHscount rale 3.35% 7957
Ascrageoreniining lenure of imvestimonl peatioho O years 7 yrary
|_¢iueranticed tale ol retun 8.25% _U A

Contingent linbelstes, Capitaly ofher conmitiments and guaruntees

Contingent liabilities
1 - - ~ woTm———— '¥

:‘:\ ai ATE 1
3 Maach 2012 31 Maeeh 2ot

Toonen L onrallors (hoe Ay 2007-20R) 13,795 271 11795 27
Income Las piidors Clor AY - 2{08- 2004 IH305,9213

Smee the above slated contingent halslity s on espeet of s malters priop 0 21 January
2009, the eventunl linkdity, 1f any. which the Company may i in rospect ol these
matters s chigable tor a renmbursement from Citicorp [$ankaing Coiporation,

The Compuny has provided bank gnaanlees m tavow of Sottware Technology Park ol
lchia oS TPE mithensties of Rs 708,000 12011 Rs 790,000h

The Campany’s eperalions are corned oot leom o registered unit in STPL and as per the
fnpo-Cypont Policy (2002-2007) an TP wnl 1s sequited o achieve o positive Net
Forcign Pachange (NTF) posiion as presctibed m the STP scheme,  calowlated
cumutatively for a period of five yems from the date of commencement ol business

[ comeyquences of nel meeting the above comanntments wonld be a retroactive levy ol
pnpott daty an previonsly pupoded duly bee capital gomls  Additionally, the sespective
authoribies may Yovy penattics on soch delfanlts on o case-to-case basis, with a discietionary
puseer dot pormdting extended tune  the 1easons aie genoine The Company bas inponied
duty-fice capitul goods m prior years as well as dinng the cunrent vear, bul remdins o
posdive Mol Foreign Lachange (NEF) carner as o 31 March 2012 The Company's
manageinent (s condident of meeting the esport abligation within the stipulated umeliame
15 menhioned above

For commitment relating to lewses, tefer Note 23 11

Deferred tavaiton

Deferred tay asset inchuded n the balance sheer compt ises of the ToHowing

\aud T asat

' ¥1 Muach 2012 J1 Muardh 2001

l Dufened tas cswsets? (haknisty )

E o isinn b s 16544182 -

4’ Prospaon v eratinty o 1Y 207

| Dhtberoney Be tweeen bk and s depreciation R R RH ] NEREN PR L]
S OB L Sl lens iy 6,911,515 21955113
Diefosred Gy avsed (ner} 63,259,137 Sh U367 .

24 S



Wipro Technology Scrvices Limited

Notes (o the accounts (Continued)
Jor b veent coddedd 31 Adarch 20002

(Cunteney bndure nipoes)

PAN

21y

216

NoLes to accounts (Coniinued)

Farings per sfuire

['he compulaton of eqmngs per share s set oul below

1ol the year t'mlc'si For the venr eniled |
A1 Maceh 20112 I March 2011
I a1 nmges per share
Profat aller s lon The vear (A - Re 1,332 323 1,353,970, 8497
Number ol wjntly shates 18]
Nuther ol sharcs at e dugammg al the yea 30, 2R-4080 34 284,680
$utal naaiber al egusly shares onbsLasebneg al the end at i 284,680 39281,640
)(‘dr
Houtnal vabue al the eginty shares - By par share 14 0
fand up walue per share 1 i
Werghted aviiage number of shares at Ry 10 tnlly post up 349,254,681 1% 2 LaRU
Basic and diluted sanmngs per shiare of lage value of Bs [0 AR Vi
the veat (A7 (1) . ]
Muanagerund resiinesration
‘ﬂ“ T T T T T T T T  ar ki year tnded  Fon the yean ended |
I M pch 2012 Y ATandh 2000
- Nabry amd hoauses 6,127,317 25 ‘
- Contrhulion (o provident [ wsd and oihes Tunds 549,462 SAu a2
< Laplesy e sock comipensalion vast 156,990 K& 7R
L 1stal 1337769 Hh g usl

Manaperil remineration does nol inglinle provision lor compensated absences and
oralindy as, the same are actuanally determmed for the Company as i w hola and separate
fignres dor diectors are ot avatlable Computation of net profit m aceordanee with
Section 198 and Section 349 of the Companies Act, 19580 has ol been dischkined, as
connmission by way ol pereeninge al pralils is not payable Lo any direclor,

Fmployee stack vptiens

Wipro Linmted, the holding company, has gtanted einployee stock options o employess of
the Company  bur the year emded 31 Mach, 32, the Company has been cha eud
Re 1350901 (Provions year | E96.406} for the sioch compensition expense anstig from
aptions pranted by parend

Fwlher, under the Ciligroup capiial acanmulation plan 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008
(the plans), the ¢hgible cmployees of the Company had heen manted stock wwards ol
equity shares of the erstwlule ultonate holding Compumy. Citigroup e, Adter the
aequisition by Wipio, there was an acsclerated vesting of all stack wwards oulstanding as at
20 Janwny 2009 and e Company bas recognized w bability of Ry 494,000 (2051 R
4, 10 D00 payable to Citicorp Bankang Carpoiation

U



Wipro Technology Scrvices 1imited

Nates to the aceounts (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 38 Aarch 2012

(Conrgongy, Indauy ripees)

23,

23.7

248

239

Notes to aceounts (Continted)

Lmygtopee stach aptions (Continged)

Lair value desclosaies requared in teams of the gaidunee nate on aceounting lon employee
shate based payiments ssued by the Institule ol Chartered Accountants of India have nal
been aade, as the L value related (o the shares that would be ultumately granted o the
Contpany’s enployees i not ieadily ascertanable and m the opinwn of the management,
s pot bikely to be significant

Segment i fornafion

Ihe Campany 15 cuntently engaged n providing soltware refaled support servives,
pumarily nformation  technology  softwae  solunons/mantenance  and  technology
mlrastructure support services 1o Critigroup watities globally, wiich w considered as one
segment, Heneg, there are no sepmate reportable segments, as requined by Accountng
Standard 17 on *Scgment Reporting”

Dases to miicro, smnedf and miedison enterprises

On the basts ot the wtonmation aud records avatkable, thete are no dues to Micro and Small
ehterprises, which have registered with the competent auwthonities  Accordingly, the
disclostre mrespect of e amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2012 has
been maile ' the annuat linanciai statements based oo wmformabion reecived and avaitable
with the Company, ‘The Company has not reeerved any ¢laim lor snterest teom any supplec
undet the Micra, Small and Medmum 'nterprises Development Act, 2006

Pun treudnas I ow the year ended bor the year ¢nded
J1 Match 2012 31 Mar 20110
Fhe prmeipal anssunl tomamimg anpasd looany supplict as Nl il

ul the end of 2dh avetunting sear

Tt anterest remmining unpanl o any suppleer s a0 the Nl Ml
wd ab cach poconnhing yeut,

T wmaunt o onerest paad by the conmpany afony with rat Kl
e wnounts ol payment e o the suppher tesoned the

appanied iy dunsg the yeal,

- herew

- Proacpel

e amoant of mictest due and pay able Tor e quarter Tor Nl M1l
he perrod af delay i mahang pyorenl {wluch have begn

pud but boyond the appemicd day dunmg the yean) bol

wilhout adding the interest spuut figd unden this Acd

Lhw msount of turtlier pmerest romamng due and pavable [\IH R
vien i e sacceedmp years, bl such date when the
el dues as abose are actoally pad ot simall

CRICTpIGY

Ty



Wipro Technology Scrvices Bimited

Notes to the acconnts (Continued)
for the year ended 31 Maveh 20102

{Currency Indinn tapees)

23

23 1

()

2uid

da}

b}

Naotes to accounts (Continted)
Earnnes 1 forcignr excliange and expendittiee i foreign cureency

Barmngs 11 loreign eschangie

Tor the yens ended Fan tle vear ended

31 March 2012 31 NMearch 2010 |

v ez from solbware devcopmeent, suppurl sl namtemuse 2,950, 714,448 ERCV RN UL ‘
serviee lees

2936,714,448 HREEIRAL N D,

| vpenditiie i toreign currency

For e venrended  For the vear endod

X1 March 2002 31 Manch 200t

CHovafue of taparts - A 063 B2
Lrased cughormes 1,714,763 21 IRE N2
Metsvork g uspuses - 2465 M9
Subcontraing costs 42,571,665 53454790
Onhwrs 4,671,344 -
SLy6rITz v, 172 152

f eases

The Company has taken office premises o operatig leases Gross 1ental expenses for the
year ended 31 Maich 2002 aggregated ta Ba 4963 581 (2011 Rs, V1,054,110,

[ hese Teases bave lockh-m penads tangimg irom 3 months (o 4masiinunt ol 3 years, and the
O lease pay nent comedments Ton the Tovk-m period are as loflows

AW -\\ at
31 March 2012 J1 M 2001

Mindmum lease paymendy for non-canscliable lse

- not later than one year JE S5 HIN SIS WY
- Lder thany eonge year and nod Lagon e Tive yeas - AT A3 82K
Tl {2.453.?{23 Hn H;,“l Ml |

Yelieles have been aequired ander finance leases  Hhe tolal o lease payments at
(he batance sheet dite, interest and tas weladed m sueh paymenls and present value ol
numun ledse payments e as Jellows

1‘ St feave pay menis Aeoat Ayt
j ALl 2012 31 March 2011

{a) Tatal summnm lease pasineats 671,34 836 51
(b3 Loture ineanest and tes mcludud in ga) abuve 15,605 A0y, 213
645645 IR BT

{0) Presenit s atue of moumum lease paymems (a0 (hid



Wipro Technology Services Limited

Notes to the accounts (Continned)
fere the vear cnded 37 March 2042

(Cunency Indian nipees)
23, Notes to accounts (Contintied)

2311 Lemses (Continued)

The maturiy piofile of tinance lease ebhgations 15 as lolows,
¥ §

Ferwnd 7 .'\s‘lll ) .t\_\\__nl
31 hareh 2012 31 March 2011

- ol later thon one yon 671,318 LB 1N
= later than one yead and nol later tha (e yoars - T84 668
= Leter than D vears

I(fi.[l B ) o 671,340 - 747375757,“71”

2312 The details of closing balance of investients Lor the year ended 31 Muwcdy, 2002 and
T NMach 2011 are as Toltows

T3 Muarch 2012

Uty Amaunt {1ty
Breustmients vy Mahea! dasds G ludimgs dividend somyestine ait)
Sl Sun Dike Muotugd Tunsd 17,132,373 S85,602,1148
Frankdin Templetan Maotowal Fund 150,384 177,666,452
LD Muatod [ and 1,111,814 20,330,184
-Kotak Mitual | und 1.512.9%4 20,0M0,000
-iRe b mnee Mutual 1 uned 2,663,901 6,635,307
AU Mutial 1o 2676 42,483,840
Talal 22,601,182 CWTILES

31 Mareh 2011

Linity Amount {Rs}

Sarla ~un ble Mutual | und 15 563,707 120011 0

i =Frankim Tanpladon Mutual §and 711 [ELTICUE RIS
SO Muoteeal 1wl 7 193 064 912
SO Prudenuad Maaal bund K089, 730 15 062 035
=100 C B dual 1 und in,AXY BOY f2 028 4y
-hootk Mabindes Mutaal | uad 34,907 608 V66,031 Naa
=1ala Mutudl Fonyd 11 3749 19264t

| Tmal ]0!2!8!]3-1 L2101 %8 ‘_l?

2313 Service tax input eredit seceivable reveral

Duning the cunsent year, the Company fims reasseased vanaus provisions of Scivice Tax
Rules and accordmgly has reversed the provision ieeoided in the carlier yeanrs against the
sarvice tas input credu amounting Lo Rs 146 760 594

{ %

v



W

Wipro Technology Scrvices Limited

Nates to the accounts (Conrinueid)
fer the veqr ended 31 March 2000

(Curteney  Indian rupees)
23, Notes to accounts (Continnned)

2300 Daclisure of fareign currency expasure

The Compaty does ot entet into any <denvative contracts to hedge it sk associated with
lorergn cureeney Nueluations [he unhedped ke curreney exposuie on the 1ecervables
at the yea end 1s given below,

T o 2 T T nn ) “‘1
It Ush R s |

{ostoisnt denonnated tn UST

Reccrvable wvards sunaces 861,763,029 10,951,041 G17 128 31k 11,138,650

et

23.1F  Prior year compuraiives

Ml the yea ended 31TMarch 2006 he Coepany was using pre-ieviacd Schedule VI o the
Companies A 1950 tor preparation and presentation of financial statements Duning the
year ended 31 Maich 2012, the revised Schedule V1 notified under the Companies Act
1956 hay become applivably o the Company The Company bas reclusselied previous yeu
figures o this year's classificaion The adoption of revised Schedule VEdoos net impacl
recogimlion and measwrement principles tollowed tor preparation of financial statements

As et o tepoil ab even dite attached

lor B&% R& Co, Far and on behat of the Boad of Dircddors
¢ f fereed Tecountanty
Fivm's Regostration Noo LOT248 W
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Auditors’ Repurt

To the Members of
Wipro | cchnology Services Limited

We Lusp audied the aftached lalance sheet of Wipro Tedinolopy  Services  Lunited
{ e Cornpans 1 a~ a1 31 March 2011, the profit and loss account and the wsh e stulesent vl
the Cotag any tor the yeur ended J1 March 2011, anncxdd therels  These Dnancial slatements are
e rospussabaliny of the Cnmpany's managemnent  Our responsitilice > Lo eXpress an opiman o
*he s Dt sl atarements dased an our sudy

Ve comlin fed our andit in nccordanoe wilkl U anding standands peaerally accepted i India
Tho v Swanduds reguite thal we plan and perform the audst ta ahtun ressonable a=surance abow
swhethel the tingmoral statements ane free of matenal missiziement 4n sudit includes exva vy,
e sty bnsie evrlee suppartne the amavnts and dischosures in e finow sl statements  An
plt ol o gobides 2:3e58ing the acoounting mnopks uwed and vgaiheot esimdles made by
mrnag et o well L evaluatiag e overall financial statcmzed presentaton We heheve that
vt aadi provides o reasenable hasis dor pur opinion

Ay gured byt Compainegs {Auditnt’s Repomd ()rd{r, 20073 (*the Onder | aued by e Contral
Caovrrmneng s Inckia i torms af wub-scoton (44) of Section 227 of the Compaugs At 1956
Cthe A, ne enduse  m e Annewure & stalement on the  maners specitied i
e spraphs 4 wad S ul the sand Onder

Fartr ko ahosve comment we repar that'

1 o e obtaned all the wfortnaton and eaplanations, which to thie bost ol o bioalelpe
and et wert nocesaary {or e purposes uf vur audt;

o] W ogenien, peoper books of account sy reguircd by bw hate becn Yepr by the
T ALy, S0 1AC a8 It APRCArs feDm bUT Sxanunation of thase banks,

W) the belasce sheet, protit and kess account and cash {lew stateinent dealy with by His repoed
are 1 agivement with the bioks of acoount;

1} i uer opinon the balunce sheer, profit and loss oceount and cash Now siaterment dealt
ash by this report enmply with the Accounting Stasdards relerred t i sah-secuon (301
af serunn 241 ol the Act

1 wn e b 1oaf written representations rocerved T the directss 28 une 31 March 201
and aker onormoond by the Board of Doecwers, we repont that pane of thwe directons 15
dia abified ax on 31 Manch 2001 froos Being apponnted us 3 directnr i tenna at clanse (g1
.G}l: desectn ¢4 p ot Secton 2 nf the Act,

T T

For WIPRO LIMITL L

(V. Bamur® =270,
Comsuny seurut sy

AP i r——— detdme- . o
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Audilors’ Report (Continued)
Wipro 1cchnology Services Limited

m wn our opanan amd 1o e best of our infunuanion and aezording ) the explandions prven (e
e, the =aid avyoumits gpve the informanen required by th AuLom e rannes an eegured
aped v B troe and fur view in confornnty weh 1 sccaunbng prinuiples pengally
arcepled m fudia

L m case of the halance sheet, of e <late o aflair of the Company s, o
31 Manch 2011,
1 i Luse af the protid and loss account, of the profit lor yer envded on thel date, el
m w ase ot e cash Nows statepacnt, of the Lash Qow Tor scae ctded onthee dale
¢
fuBSH& Cu

Chprpered Acootntunis
Py s Repastrationg Wi [D1248W

a4 "JLLJ-»'-_*—I:’_":_:,__

X Bhavesh Bhupehy
Mumiu Purrmer
31 by 20010 ' Muaieestup da SN
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Wipro Technology Services Limited
Annexure (o Awdilurs® Report - 3 March 2011

HR Aurr Lo et pepitt of © ondan

i)

(i

{1

v

{vart

ity

(1%

1l Thie Compeny lus santained proper teconds showing 1ol patioulars nchsding
quantitutive details angd simaation ot fixed aswis

1 The Company has a repalar programme of pliysical seeificatiun of it fixed wssots
By which all faed assels 1s verified once i esery Uiree vears  Tn our opinsin U
periadicaty of phwsical ventication 18 reasonuble having regard 1o the sice of the
Campany and the nature ol 15 asvetd, hawever na {ixed assets have boen serifiod
Junng the current year

wh Fistd avobts dispused off dunng the year were Lot sebstantial, amd theeelore du
fiot affect the pomp conooin assumption

Fh= Company s o sefsiee COMpany, prmarly engaped i peoviding witeare servie
scepedingly 1 docs not huld sty plysical inventuries Thas parggmaph 4ing of the Onder 15
rl applicable

The L ompany has nesther granted nor lahen ary loans secwed ve cmecured, to or from
wolbparnes, Bt or uther parties coveiad o the repster thamesd under sewtbon 301 of
the 0 vmpar s &, 1956

4
I wut dpunoi and acenrding 10 the nformaunn and explanatiw. grven beus there »w an
advguan internal control systern commensirase with the size of the Cumpas und the
aate of s pusinees with regard 1o purchaserof fived asvels and sale ub senvces The
act e, vt the Canpany da nat imvolve the puuchase of inventory and sale of ponds We
have art chsennd sy major weshness i the unersal control sy stemn dur e Be osarse of
the e

e epin o, and awcarding, to the mfannation ared explanatians HIVCR I s there ae o
contrae s ad wrrangeiicnts the particalans of wheeh neat wobe ontered 1o Lhe Tepisicr
Ircigome b andee socnon Jul el the Act

He Company hs o weeepled any deposits trom the publ

Accciting 20 e tdormation and explanativns provided 1 us, the Company 's busimess is
conered e he seore of the mtenal avdt syvtem of o1 holding company  n our
vpimon the Company has an intemal audit system commensorste with the size amd natgre
al busime sy

The Cendrel tonemment hus not preseribed the mmntenance of wsd records vbder Sectin
JIKdL ol the Act 1956 for anv of the services rendered by the Company
heemdingv, paagraph 4evni) of the Oceder i nest applicable

(b Awconhing o the informanen and expitiations gien & us and on e basis 0f our
carmimation of @i ecords ot e conipany, ETIDUAL deducted weorued in e
bt ks at aceount in respect of undisputed statueury dues meliding Provident T und,
I ume-ax, Service 1ax and ollier muterwl statutory dies huve been regularly
depostted during the year &y the Compans wih the apPIoprace auliorilics evcept
lur dues of has deducsion an saurce cggregating lo Ry o 06 U1S ictuding inierest
‘1::" A ITT whin kg poied cdsegrently
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Wipro Technology Services Limited
snneaurc to Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2011 (continued)

Avtording 0 the informatien and explanations gven Lo 1is, no wndispruled amount
puyobile an respeet of Pravident Fund, Income Tax, Service Tax and ather muteniat
statutary dues were outetandmyg s &1 31 March 2011 ter p penod of mare thas sy
manths frum tie dase they became pavable

A< explatned te us, the Company did not hase any dues pn mcount of hivestoe
Lidu atsa ared Brotection Fund, Fmpinyees Ste lnsusane Sales 1av, Yealth
e Custom Duty and Exgee duty Theee were o dies o0 aceov it ot ess under
sectinn $414 of the At since the wforesaid section has not yol bees: minde etlertne
Iy the Central Government

{h Au g 1o the infummaton and OpnAtONs gien W the following dues ol
Income-tax hune net heen deposited by the Compary in avcount of dispuees
| wame o 1 Aature of iw Amonar Ryl Fermel 2 phah e Comen phin '
{4, qun [usr WL Jeenpte e pundimy |
finz Les Aul [acome Tas Rs 257 1T Antecamirri Yenr C nenrsdi el v
taf) T NeA Tnryoms Tan
- ApFea
- — _
™ The Company does ol buave any pecumulated losse - ay the end ol the Doataoid? sedr i

has 1ot enrrad cesh Josses mothe finanaidl year and in the immedistedy preceding
TP

4
il 10 aus optaun sl acerrding 1o the information’and explanatiuns glven w the Compans
pae it defaulind mrepayment of dues o s bankers or 1 oy fnansal mstaitianse The
Conttpan Ak ot hase any oubstanding debenrures during the year

[EY1H] ke ¢ umpany has ot granted any bonns amd mlsances o the baars uf security by won o
pledpn af shares, debentures and piher seeutitics

pva) Inoct pprmon and accardmy to the mbonnanun and explanatians piven ko ue e © ompany
vonnt v tund or o nidhe mutuel benefit foad! seciely

vy Accw Tng 10 1he nformadion aw eaplanalions gryen 0w, e Cottipansy 1 vl Jeimg or
tradvre 1n shares, securities, debentuees and other Investments

(AT Aqcn Jwnp o the mformation and expianations grven @ us, e £ ompany has nol gren any
suscantee for loans taken by others trom banks o finnneal Insohitions,

Ui Accending i the infarmation wnd explanatons grven o us and coan overall evasninstun
ol U1 Wabwnece sheet af e company  we are of the opruon that the tund Tanad an shor.
teem bk lave not heen wsed for tenp-temiinvestment

i) Asccendug ta the imformation and explanation. @sen 1o us and on A asgral] esaneation
af The Malance Sheet of the Campany, we are of the ppinion that no funds have keen mssed
et 5] ot ternt basts

frog The ¢ nmpany has not made any prelerenbial aliotment of shates to comparies fume'parties
tove od 11 e repister mammined under Sechion W1 of the Acr

1%} ‘(ilil ampany I not have any sustanding debentures during the year
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Wipro Technology Services Limited

Annesure (o Auditers’ Report - 31 March 201 (connenued)

fsar The L ompany has nat rised any money by pobic s

o According ta the information and explanatany given W bs no traud oo er by the

L ompany has boen petweed or reporied dunng the course of our andit

ForBESILA& Co
Chariered Aucuundunit
Irm's Registration No 101 243W
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Wiprs Tuebnolegy Services 1 lnilie)

Scheduled to #he linancia] stulements
Sk ahe peor ernded T Mapck 2000

UL u sy Than Fupessy

i Hnckground

Wopne Dechasbopry Services Limted {he { ompany’} was swaipmand i 19 Seprepibes B ar
o Techrours Sunvices Lonited, os a subsailooy of Ciaeorp Bardo u Curparation Parsaant i sne
ttazr pumh . apeerrett dated 21 January 2009, ull the sharee of the Company wae purchsie by
Wipra Limuied, e Boldug company of the Camparsy

. Compans s act Wues i saftwwr relirad appan wnoces. pomenhs w irn atam
tenr ran bt softwar, wolutiensimawe ienance and recnulogy o leastouc e AP 307y ey

M Swmmary of significant avcounting pojicies
21 ttases uf pregatslen of Moancial staicmenla

L. Loarers stoerenta e prepared aml presentad under the Fadrmt O rowr comverhing e

v T r ot sotuunare ' N accorderee Wtk the pros s of the Corgnree. Al Ve
Lo v i acrouing i g gencrslle accepted ol aed vy st the s cuem @
BETIERR e cobid o L Cen pase S 30 ounting Starbard < Hatle o T1au D the ovtan ) 3 ¢ st~
\

1z v bl watiitades
T, =~ pantwa o) the firanciel statemenis o gnnf..-m'lr, wih penerall. aceepred eecoumhing
Froopl 1O SAF S TegUITe  inusagemient 19 mike eshimaiey arul s wmptaons that diod G epeind
g el we2t hidbdifizs covenees and expesscs and the Jou losnze of cont ngenl wse's arad
ltahts mee cn b due obf bnanaoal stagiients Th: esomales and assumplions (oo mo e
anuampans re bl satznents are tased apen Datmgenor s osheatea of Ueosclhvant L and
Lo T e as ol the dare ut the Tinancial staternents Achel rocsdes may Qi ffer oo Do citnmares
ALY 1L PLITAnnE Ui o o Mpanyiap fnancia’ satements AT 4 reososn Jo diooin g alim ey s
oenpized prospec b ety cdest and fiture penody

K Fised nssity, depreciation and bnpairment

X fived e are wsrnied it cost ol gequisitior Jess acuumuloied diprec o ous P arment
ook b ans Laral e Bindies Leeighi, datses 1aaes and incidentas expenases related o ke anogu siion and
wintalla aoe ot the as.et

b Deprecia 1o ws provaded on she sttaght T srcthosd on prosasa bane e the nasrhincabicl
1 3g~te hnee been pist 10 use e eades ul deprsoataas prosthud o 80w XY lthe At g
coodenc T ac the rantm cates B the managemeant’s extynate of the usetul | e of u ied asset &
et ot sequisiion af the assel ue of the remnrung useful bide 0t o subse Juert review v sharer
thor al wvesaped oo tae whomesad soliedube, depruoatiuo 16 peental @t oa tepher nite haged on
oo oaramnt s e Linal. ol the wyely! Qe remainog usctul § e
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\eipra Ted hnolegy hervloes Lluneieed

N hedubes (1 Lbe Baancial slateayents coatinued)
Fre szur omdid T8 Aok 20T
Wi—erc e b Lo Fupees
2 sumimary of signiticant mecounting policies (¢ onfiued)

Purusa 1o has policy, depreciviion on the fxed Gs=tln hae beer prosuded o the dudl ong rate,
wl e1ar_ heg et 1l the compsponding raiss preact hed o hedute IV

[ Ahet frepreciation rate
| — i...—- - . _ .
[ LTI
AR UL | nent LRI U
' B U _
(o -eflae 6
Wil fhog ol putted P b+ wec i wrefil L ntuche 1ot e
Ny traanerd e Tegaeh dd preamry = D gttt oF b b oan orcot ey g Tl ke aanRaser g thnen
L A voces 1 vsduarly costing Ha TG el g e bo oy abepme ue Lol e e ot 10t
1 Diepre 1 on assels seld dureg the vear s secopmsad oo g pes=ts o0y 1 tke prol ooand

Il dowontlog te the panth prot o e muogth reshich e st dw @ o Lo 2d utt

o1 Frypainnet of assel B

The €01 pli v 18y ases ot cde? haiarce sheot date whathen aaere scany tdu v o 110 wp srtings he
et IEose v Yondie o vesees, the ('x‘om|u|1}‘|"x|n| Hen 1= = ovrpible vt At o e 3t 1t
wi bt o Ble armeeand 0f the assel s less Than ufL amng wmont the < 1rmyrg enon' ooa'e ol
g it 0 U oordle amonnt The reliebae s Ireated as anar parmen 1ot md s caiereald o e
ot vl o vome et e alaee sheet doe, there 1v an ind cater hat 2 pios uosly eeyyred
i pedmen Toes o datlger evasrs the revgverable armou-Uis zeasrasscad 2t e e Dis eelleotmd ot v
doiner, ko wrernd subect o a manmum of depreciable st cal vt

L Foiplasee hensfits

Provsdent lund and Emiphnec htate Insurance

ks oopoeces receive boaelin ftum prosulent fund suinetorad b o Ginerrreent and
el cs e amnrene §UN ) wh ok aie detaed conmibution plae fhotn s empoaves sl e
Cooapart ok ond By cnntobutiansy W he plan egnal toon o specifict porc v nf the s ot
Co oo e 3 gs reeards FSTL tha en ployee and empl ser each e oo T wor et s e
trepl se Srars Insmane e Corporanon. Feoinee, the Compoan cormmbuies s par ot o conir b op o
ae mrvd o hemd tus managed by 'l hcldug Ve Pwtet s o dofiy ol bopep 4, whaly ez
renvnrudet ol the contnb fion 16 marte i the Goyeensoend s prosaden” fuaad

The ¢ oz ia s caatrsbubion s e e Jumde 1 recopnazed e the poofd und e o cant
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Wiy 1echinology Sevvives Limited

Sehedules to the finanelsl sratemenss {continued)
for e aear erdod 31 Mared, Wil

sy lediar Rupes)
2 Summaty of sigaificant aecounting policies {Continued)

24 1 mployee Bereflts (lannased)
Corntwety

1 acvcrdar e with (e Payment of Granhy A, 1972 1he Compa vt fes bra lanp ot v
el ublc erppliyes, a1 reruement ur Eom nauon of o payment hled on tn st dmuwteaslees atn]
yaur of employment wrrh the Coanpany The gratuity turd 1y osua ged by e Lafe hosuroce
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Wipro Technolegy Scrvlees Liauisl

Schedules to tha finaezisl siatements (coatinued)
Far the venr ensied 1 Murch 2001

{{ 1prency Indan Rupect)
18.  Notes to accounts {Contlinued)

12.3  Conhingent liabilitles, Capitalf other commitmeats and guarantest {cantiuped)

dj T Compenay's operabioni ae carmsed ol from: a repaatered wend e ST and @ per the
Impoct Sxport Policy (2002.2607), an STPL umi 10 roquieed W Actieve a pomlive Ket Foreign
Exchange (NFFR) powition ax presribed i ihe STP scheme, caloubited cumulatvely for a perrad af five
years from the date of commencenicnt of busingay

The consequences of nol meellng Lo phurve commuiaanis worikd be a retroactive bovy of impiat duty
on preswsty imported duty fre¢ capital goods Add:mmlly the respective awthonbes moy levy
pensities on such defaults on a cane-tu-case basis, wuh A dsigretunary power for permuiting eatended
tme if the Teasons sre pensine The Company has iinported duty foee capital poods 16 priot yeais as
welt a5 dunrg the currem yewr, but remams & postie Qe Foraign Exchonge (MFE) earmer ag an
1) March 24 1 The Company *s mansgement 1 contidert of meeting @ie export obligalion withn the
tipulated un.2flame as mentioned sbove

1B.4  Deferred tasation

Defeged tax ayset i luled a0 the balumee shee! compnses of the followiap

Farculars

. Aval Avat !
——| Y Marchloil Al Marek 2041
Dreferred bia aescts {lability } — e
Frovens febeas 0 et - - LA T B
Presrsinn fon gramley . o 16,149,203) VED
. DufFerpce briacen beok and fa deprecistion o 1,202 Wi
i tas, divalboances o 1,750,313 ™ o vea s
Deferred Las aased {pet) ~ 56.916,7Y vyma
18.5  Earsings per share
The computa'ion of carmings per shore i ket out below
| Particulurs For the venr eaded | Forém yamr ended
.13 nanech 2oy 31 Mageh 2010
KAt nlag per bhaty
Prof 3fias tax for Bue yoar {4} Hs 1,553 771 89T 1,357 420,409
Mumbsr of eguiy shaym (B) - -~
| Number of shares 2 the hegiming of the year - 39,104,050 12,204,680
Toral nurnbet of eauity shares cutsminding at the end o1 t yeur __ 1984 &80 13284 68U
Moctnal value of the ¢onilty slimren - Ry per shiarg .. I
Pasd up valug fer shore A 0 1 )
Wegdved avetage puiber of blu..‘u ol Re IO Fulby paddop MR | V0,244 £80 ™
Bagie wrd dilw ol rernengs per shiote of Face valer of Re 10 far the yoar (A) (W) -] M| e
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Wipre Techrology Services Limited

Schedudes to the flapncial statements (continued}
for tha yoar endadd 31 Murch 214

(Carrency- Indian Rupeest
18. Notes to secounts (Continurd)

18,18 Thues to wiliro, smabl and medium enterprises

Un tbe bagls of the nformation and records gagtlatle, theme are Bo dues B0 Mo, Small sod Mediuim
eterpnises, which have regutered with the competent suthonoes. Accondingly, the dusclosure
respect of the wmounts payable 1o such enterpiiscs s ot Magch 31, 201§ has been made it tie annusl
Ginancal pawments hased on information recen ed and avalable with the Company The Company has
not reverved any clam for mterest fiom sny supplier wnder the Micco, Sl sl Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

Forticulars For Il‘c yoar cadest For the yeer sndsd
31 March 2011 31 Mar 2010
The ponupal smount scmamung unpasl o aav N Nil
supplier as at 1he end of each accountng vear,
The wmlehest remamng unpdnd (o Ry suppbes & 8 ~ul Ml
the end of ench accounting year;
The amownl ¢ 1 incerest pand by the copauy along S B} Nl
with the amounts of paymens made o the suppler -
beyund the appotnted diy dunng the year,
- Enterest \
« Puncipal
The amwunt of interest duc sod poyable for the ' N il

quaner for the period of delay i makeog payment
{which hase beeh pad bul beyuod the appoinied day
durmg the yeat) but without adding the interest
st ficd under this Act,

The amount of further interest rermsmung duc and sl Nal
payeble even in e sucopeding years, untl puch dale
wheno the mierest duet ax ahone wr actaally pad w
the pnall enterprese

1811 Earntngs and cxpendlture ia forcign currency

{8) _ Lamngs m foceign currency

Purtlcuiars . - For the year emded | For the yeat eaded
L 3 Merenze0p 3t March 2619
| locvune € wnt snftware devebopnienl, Support and mambnaoee wens ht focd 3240,221,457 3 A84.£33,089
3,249.228,447 3 B84, 835,089
(b Lapendsture i formgn cuirency .
rnm“ﬂ [For the geursaded | For tha yoat ended
o . 31 Mareh pai} 1) ifarch 2616
wiprm rf enpital s . 1,003,102 3 119,818 '
Trovel expenses . . P U TRl madysvg
Nevaarhing oxp et . : 1.545,79% $280218 - 1
Emphoesoows . FRASIN
E‘d"“" e e e " em L MLALY i
) WATLISY | Tt |
Ih
r, . -' ILI
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Wipre Technology Services Limited

Schedubes ty the Hasnclal el smenty (comlinued)
for the year encidd 3| bdarch 2011

(Cuttvniey Indian Rupoed)

18, Notes to accounts (Cozntinued)
18,12 Loases
'Y The Cornpray has wkon office peeanises on operating keases Gross renrai expessey (or the year

endid 31 March 2011 aggeegared o Rs 91,654,110 (2010 K. {00,672,598)

Thwse leasey huve luck-1n pervods mngag from 5 nionthy v a maximum of § years, and the mnimem
lrave payment commitments for the bock-in penad oo as fallaws

“ arut A
R 31 Mareh A1 3| Masch 2010
Miglmwen lente payments for won eaterdlalde beose "
= Ayt leer than ume verr F - £3,500 40
- ialel i o yope and not luter e fiva yean o Lhm
LTatnl ——e . 173,263, 740
by Vehicles have been acquired winder finsmee loases The wial mummum lease paymenls sl the

balanes sheet dale, interest and tax included e swd payments xnd present vilue of nurinwn leax

Ay tieents Are a6 follows

Arw

| Mindmiss beae payments T A
.. e M 20 March 2ots | 3t Maech 3010
s gal Teeal mmmnym lesie Jy Ipais - 4,338 813 13 £ bk
fbp Liure wirmen und cax inchided i 13} shove e 09,213 L 510087
L\C_LP‘}?."' et pronmum lenwe ooy {(mi- bt} s ARSI 11 Bon 77
U mataties profile of fnance lease obligaonas o as follows
“Perlad” o - A3 al Asn
31 Murch 0L 3§ Maweh 2010
1 Laler Bhah vee yEat . 3,758 Rad 4,148 084 -
tauer g oyl and pet leier than five pea Ti,0d8 5,334,754
- bty rhan five vears o
Turat . . ! [ 12 616,343




Wipes Technnkigy Services Limiied

Schadules to the financis tiatements {contoucd)
for the war emched 31 March 201 f

(Cureey  (ndian Rupees)
18.  Notes to accounts (Centinued}

1813  The details of perchases and redemption of Inv estmeiita Tor the year endad March 31, 207 Land

March 31, 2010 arc a» follows.

Fartenlaa Fae the year ended 3t Mareh 268(
L'nitx Amwni(Ra)
I |eyesmenns i Murval Funds (nn ludmg Sroxdend reusgnent)
Dabs e e e LA5058520 1.669.554,158
e e e s 18,190,008 131,301,900
-HOFC e - i 12,3439 141,540, 793
JCIC! Prwnfoninl [ 43 HTAN 154,520,017
REC 101,344,018 1067513460
¥ Mg 15,864,391 113,268,482
L XCTY) 16,614,512 2118884 400
%ffjﬂl}:_e__ e — e A7, 142081 250 012687
” _d1pmy st L,138 364,188
{ Tala — 909,47 9145611
b e i Temaleton 14,584 us,“!p&!_@
UT _ [ 98,194 AN 10
I — 9,{50.27) Dea
K sempslim r’mm______}_{\_mg
JFhrln ' 1 APATL A1} LANSAILETS
oS T 15.190,006 i gus e
| Mere e . . 571980 Tean1903
10 Prudeprial _ Lo oS T51 M TR
13kL a6A11E2 | e ANATY
IF Moipan _ e [FATLN S]] 195,260,481
|-Ratek e s L 3L 19426 Y |
-Hrfutnz AT T RAMA72 V64
SOt R XTIy Y 1,111,944, 184
Taw NNz 1323441
|ofimakln Temgluom | L : i3243% 1,332,892.012
um e e . 45,2940 RSP0
B | LS T
v oo m
Particuiars 'L For ile year andod 31 blureh 2910
H ———gs ——
e s T nhs ArrbuiitHe) f
Tnvewiznend s Gluten) bunds (e badang dis nensd rervestment’ H
oaa Teeplnn T wiog 39T 290,540
G114 — e o - - [ 4nSinag 195460511
ICICt Prodenpal . . DO PRNE, 3.7 .t IV UL L L, L S
I Ll
Rodemption o motun] fundy . —
-HbL e - . - s I LARILL 156,460,531
101 Pesdential . [ 42 20419, 447 247337
b e - = — J T T
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Wipro Technnlugy Services Limited

Scliedules t0 the financlal stetansenis mtinund)
fur the year ended 11 Marck 2011

LCurrency Jodisn Rupess)

15, Nuley to sccounts (Contdauved)

1844 Thscloswre of foreign carrency L3 T T

The Cumgaity docs not enter into any denydiive contracts 1o hedge 1 risk associnted wath foreign

carrency [Tutuations The unhedged fonsign cusmney £xpusure on the recesvables at the year end s
tleon below

! ELIL 2410

r [ H} ‘\ ush Rx Uso
Antourst dengwifnaind in 18X

l Kexgovable koveards oo iecs rodered AT IR rfil."ll.b.ql 9558311 L b6 VR

I8.t5  Other matters

Vhe information tequired by paragraph 40 of Pagt 1] of Schedule VI o the Campanes Act, 1956 1 mor
appl cable smce the Company 18 nol a manvfactunng concery -

I8 16 Prior year comparative N
Previous peruals figuces hasve been reguaped ¢ reclussified os 10lluwy
+ ULatulled eesene amouating 1o Ks 70450735 and Iraerest scrued on faed deposts

anoanting o Ba 51 955 g4y have been regroups from fruiny and sdvdnce t other curten
FEEATS

Accngd FAPTASCE Btnvnting 10 R | 5,939,002, wdiysted dgUnSt MU foloverable 1n
cath or hind have beon tegraupc.d o curteat habidines

- Sumdny oredioes amounting w Re 290,247,219 has been wgrpupod from other cumment
fabrimes W yundry credilon

- Actrued expenses anuwating to R 145,807,275 hos been tegrouped from other current
ltshilitiey, bonus payable snd professiunal fies payable ty accrued expenses

/;’ Pl R, \ \\\
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Wipto Technnlegy Services Limlted

Schedubes (o thie fisanclal statoments (contfiied)
for the year mded 1 Maech 2001

(Curreacy Irutean Rupees)
1K.  Notes to accounts (Continued)

1818 Priur jear comparartives [eaninued)

Ststplon habdines emountirg to Ra 26,8VT362 hac been reprouped from other camrent
Hnbalibies fo statutory labilities

JerBu R & Co Fur and on behalf of the Board of IHroctars
Chartcied Accounianis ¢
Fam Repsratzon No  I0L248W

% w. ﬁ““’:'r'l“ -

Bhayesh Nhopdin - Soandire Ghaly “Suresh Senapaly
Fartner Munaging Dirve s {nreetur
Metnberhip e’ 142070 '
1
L]
,/ L by v
Chans P
dnyafiyda bntk}p/ Meyhna Ranka
Lirer fur Comypany Seerefary

i
Flase Munidal

4 Kfay 2011

Place Mumbay

31 May 2012




frwe pudy - D
BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Maruthi Info-Tech Centra Tlophona 4+ 91 80 3880 6000
11-12/1 Inna Ring Road Fax + 91 BO 3980 6899
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Ta,

‘The Board of Ditectors,
Wipro Limited,
Doddakannell),
Sarjapura Road
Bangalore 560 0135,
India

Wo understand that you need to file a Scheme of Amalgamation between Wipro Energy 1T Services
India Private Limited and Wipro Technology Services Limited with Wipro Limited and then
respective sharcholders and creditors (“the Scheme”) with the Bombay Stock Fxchange and Natonal
Slouk Lxchange (fStoek exchanges”) under clause 24 (1) of the equity listing agieement. In this
comection, you hove requested us (o issue @ cerlficate 1o the effect that the accouniing (restment
contuned in Clause 18 of the Scheme (“accounting treatment contaimed 1 the Scheme’) 1s in comphiance
with all the uppheable accounting standards Clause 10 of the Scheme has been reproduced below:

Clause 10 - On the Scheme becoming effective, the Tiansteree Company shat! lolow the accounting
preseiibed under Accounting Standard 14 and other Accounting Standards as applicable, wsued by (he
Institute of Charteied Accountants ot India and notificd by the National Adwvisory Comimiitee on
Accountng Standards, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification Noa. € 8.R 73HE) dated
07.12 2006, as amended from tume Lo (ime,

Rased on ow examimanon of the accounting Ueatment contained 1n the Scheme and according to the
imormation and eaplanations provided to us by management, we certdy that the accounting treatment
contaned 1 the stheme 15 in compliance with the 1elevant applicable accaunting standards spewfied
under Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 (“lhe Al wiich, as per o clanfication issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, continues to apply under section 133 of the Compamies Act 2013, (which
has superseded section 211 (3C) of the Compantes Act, 1956 w.e MMiom 12 Seplemiber 2013

This certificate is bewng issued by us in connection with the Company’s filing of the Scheme with Stock
eaditanges and 1t should not be copred, disclosed, quoted, crnculated o relerred to 1 communieatton in
whole o 1 part {0 any oiher person o used fo1 any purpase without our prior wiilten consent

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chaitered Accountants ————,
n Registration no: 101248W

- - 1
L, ~
ot i L '

SN
) For WIPRO LIMITED,
Sdpreet Sachdev

Partner \&\”\/
Membership Ne. 205385

(VY. Ramacharidran)
Bangatore Coinpany Js cierary
8 January 20114

HEAECD s painprshy dvmowally Roplsiarad Clflce’

RApgalpuge No (BALTIZY) comvarlo it Iut Finorn, Lsuha Dxe ohus
BYA&CH UL Liwed Labiny Partngrshigs Apglio hilts Cempo awd

woth LLP Apgpauaton Mo AAR D181] N M Joyh barg Mahotaksturs

with affags tram Ueiulier 14 2043 hMamizm 400011



X "DEVIKRUPA', # 635, 5th Cross
("‘ ANANTHA & CO' Mahalakshm: Layou; Bangalore - 560 086
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel BSH58982, Telefax 23191483

E-mail  gachb@gananthsandcocas com
ganantha_ce@yahoo com

To

Mumbai Stock Exchange
Natonal Stock Exchange

I Pie amalgamation (as of March 31, 2013) of Wipro Ltd standalone-
We have venfied the audited accounts of Wipro Limited as at March 31,

2013 and certify that as at the close of March 3 [, 2013, net worth of the
company was Rs 2,42,295 million

Particulars Rs mn
| Share capital 4926

Reserves and Surplus R

Capital reserves 1i39
| Securittes premium account T1758

Restricted stock unit reserve 549

Ueneral reserves 143773

Foreign exchange translation 501

reserve

Hedping reserve 1278

Surplus in Piofit & Loss a/c 78371
| Total Networth 242295

2 Post amalgamation net worth (As of April 1, 2013)

We have estimated the net worth of Wipro Limued as on opening hours

of Aprit 1, 2013, the appointed date for amalgamation based on the

networth of Wipro Limited on March 31, 2013 plus the proposed issue of

shares post amalgamation as per the draft scheme of amalgamation for
= netger of Wipro Energy IT Services India Private Limited and Wipro
chnology Services Limited

Head Qffice "Srnimghi” No 36 & 36/1 181 Floor Malhkarjuna Temple Streel, Basavanagud:, Bangalare - 560 004
Ph 41204245 E-mail gananih co@gmail com -
l Foe s Ton d T
MRS Lo -

For WIPRO LIMITED,

A

(V. Ramachandram
Eomplaery & e




G. ANANTHA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The pooling of mterest method has been adopted for recording the
! amalgamations of the entities o Wipro Limited

{ Particulars Rs mn
i Share capital 4926
i Reserves and Surplus - o
: | Capital reserves 1153
| Securities premium account 11829
i Restricted stock unit reserve 549
' General reserves 143789
Foreign exchange translation st
| reserve
Hedging reserve {278
Surplus in Profit & Loss a/c 85833
Total Networth 249858

11 1s understood that no other transaction has been factored since it1s
opening balance.

This certificate is issued at the request of M/s. Wipre Limited Bangalore

Partner

Place:Bangalore
Date : Jan 2, 2014
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WIPRO

Appiving Thought

Extract of the resolution passed by the Audit Committee of the Company at their
meeting held on April 17, 2013,

APPROVAL FOR THE DRAFT SCHEME OF MERGER OF WIPRQ TECHNCLOGY
SERVICES LIMITED, WIPRO ENERGY {T SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
WITH WIPRO LIMITED

The following resolutions were passed.

RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of the Stock Exchanges, Securities
Exchange Board of India, Shareholders, Creditors and the Honourable High Court of
Bangalore, Honourable High Court of Mumbai, Honourable High Court of Deihi and
other regulatory authonities, as may be applicable, approval of the Audit Committee be
and is hereby accorded to the Company for amalgamation of Wipro Technology
Services Limited and Wipro Energy IT Services India Private Limited with Wipro Limited
(Appointed Date for the merger being April 1, 2013) as per draft Schemes of
Amalgamation, draft notice for Calling meetings of the Shareholders and Creditors
(subject to the Orders of the Hanourable High Courts) and a report to this effect shall be
issued by the Audit Committee making recommendations in support of this proposal for
merger of Wipro Technology Services Limited and Wipro Energy IT Services Private
Limited with Wipro Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Audit Committee also recommends this merger proposal
to the Board to consider and approve the proposed Amalgamation as per the draft
Scheme of Amalgamation

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr Azim H Premy, Charman or Mr N Vaghul, Director or
Mr S C Senapaty, CFO & Executive Director, or Mr T K Kurien, CEQ-IT Business and
Executive Director or Mr M K Sharma, Director or Ms Inderpreet Sawhney, Senior Vice
President-Legal & General Counsel or Mr VV Ramachandran, Company Secretary, or Mr
PV Srinivasan, Senior Vice President-Corporate Taxation be authorized to do all such
acts, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary to complete all formalities In this
behalf including necessary authority to carry out the required changes/modifications to
the Scheme of Amalgamation and other related documentation, as may be necessary.

Certified true copy
For Wipro Limited

\( W
V Ramachandran
Company Secretary

Regd. Office: Wipro Limited, Doddakanneih, Sarpapur Road, Bangalore - 560 035, India Tet , +91-80-2844 001 |, Fax +9.80.2844 0054



Annexure-1

WIPRO ENERGY IT SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Pre and Post Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2013

1)
SI. No. Full Name of the Share holders Type of Share / No. of Shares % of Sflare
Debenture Holding
1 |Wipro limited and its Nominees Equity 879136 100
Total Number of Shares and Paid up Capital : 879136
Note : Appointed date April 01, 2013
WIPRO TECHNOLOGY SERVICES LIMITED
Pre and Post Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2013
0,
Sl. No. Full Name of the Share holders Type of Share / No. of Shares % of S!mare
Debenture Holding
1 |Wipro limited and its Nominees Equity 39284680 100
Total Number of Shares and Paid up Capital : 39284680
Note : Appointed date April 01, 2013




